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Harbin Electric Company Limited (the “Company”, formerly known as
Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited, which duly changed its name
on 1 July 2011) was formed through the restructuring of Harbin Electric
Corporation (formerly known as Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group
Corporation), which is the oldest large-scale power plant equipment
manufacturer in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and its
three affiliates: Harbin Electrical Machinery Works, Harbin Boiler Works
and Harbin Turbine Works (the “three major power factories”). These
three major power factories were founded in the 1950s. The Company
was established in Harbin, PRC on 6 October, 1994. The shares of the
Company were listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“HKSE") on 16 December, 1994.

As at 31 December, 2011, the total share capital of the Company
comprised of 1,376,806,000 shares, of which 675,571,000 shares were
H shares traded on the HKSE.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the largest
manufacturer of power plant equipment in the PRC. The Group's
principal activities include:

° Thermal power main equipments: boilers, steam turbines and
steam turbine generators with single unit capacity up to
1,000MW, the largest manufacturing base in the PRC for clean
coal combustion equipment, CFB, PFBC, etc, accounting for 30%
market share in the PRC;

° Hydro power main equipments: hydro power generators units
with single unit capacity up to 800MW class, accounting for more
than 50% market share in the PRC;

o Nuclear power main equipments: nuclear island and conventional
island equipments for nuclear power plants with single unit
capacity up to 1,000MW class;

° Complete set of steam power equipment: 9F class and 9E class
gas turbine and combined gas and steam cycle set;

° Clean energy: R&D and production of products such as wind
power, solar energy, hydro power and desalination;
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Overview of the Company (continued)
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° Other products: ancillary equipment for power stations, industrial
boilers, industrial steam turbines, control devices, AC/DC motors,
valves for power stations, pressure vessels and axial compressor,
etc;

° Turn-key construction of power station projects;

° Contract supply of complete sets of thermal and hydro power
equipment;
o Import and export of equipment for power stations;

° After sales service for power station equipment products;

o R&D of engineering technology for turnkey power equipment;

o R&D of power equipment and its ancillary products;

° Technology transfer, technical consultation and services;

° Environmental protection engineering services, such as
desulfation and denitrification.

The Group possesses a pool of top talents in scientific research,

technology and management, as well as a comprehensive range of
advanced production and research facilities. Its capabilities in research
and development, production and manufacturing and power station
construction are among the best in the power plant equipment
manufacturing industry in the PRC.

The Group is located in Harbin, the PRC, which is known as the “City
of the Power”.
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ATERRESES CORPORATE STRUCTURE AND MAIN BUSINESS LINE
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Harbin Electric
Corporation (“HE")
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Holders of H Shares

50.93% 49.07%
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Harbin Electric Company Limited (the “Company”)
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Nuclear Power Gas Turbine Environmental
Division (Combine Cycle) Protection
Division Division
90.94% 70.90% 89.63% 100% 66.67% 89.33% 100% 100% 100% 97.30%
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Harbin Boiler Harbin Turbine  Harbin Electrical EEAR ARAR ARAR Harbin Electric HE Harbin BEERA ARAA
Company Company Machinery Harbin Electric Harbin Power Harbin Electric Power Power Plant HE Modern Harbin Power
Limited Limited Company International Equipment Corporation Equipment Valve Company Manufacturing Technology &
Limited Company National (QHD) Company Limited Service Industry Trade Inc.
Limited Engineering Heavy Limited Company
Research Equipment Limited
Centre Co., Ltd Company

Limited
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Financial Highlights (continued)

AEBAFZEE  BEERBERIIQOT : The summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
© last five years are as follows:

BE+t-A=+—-BLFE

Unit Year ended 31 December,
By 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(&%)
(restated)

LR AREFT 28,487,782 29,172,224 28,629,522 29,903,544 27,648,584
Turnover RMB’'000
R 25 Al A ARBFT 1,639,960 1,361,901 984,512 1,573,247 2,115,820
Profit before taxation RMB’000
ARG 7B A BG4 A ARBFT 1,228,661 1,001,108 606,206 1,041,837 1,527,979
Profit attributable to RMB'000

equity shareholders of

the Company
BEMAE ARBTFIT 50,396,051 50,756,109 52,876,381 48,966,625 42,090,490
Total assets RMB’000
BiEHE AR T 37,872,817 39,592,267 42,659,119 39,398,700 33,678,080
Total liabilities RMB'000
FEP AR RE RS AR T 1,921,614 1,462,394 1,678,236 1,431,845 1,199,417
Non-controlling interests RMB’000
RATRNDIEFE AEIRREZ AR T 10,601,620 9,701,448 8,639,026 8,136,080 7,212,993
Equity attributable to RMB’000

equity shareholders of

the Company
BRIFEE AR 7.7 7.05 6.27 5.91 5.24
Net assets per share RMB
FREZ A AR 0.892 0.727 0.44 0.757 1.123

Earnings per share RMB
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Financial Highlights (continued)

FEEH . PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

AAREBEAKEER AR TIRESEETE The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
RIS THKE AR - ARIHESBESRME - i corporate management services to its subsidiaries, together with sales

of various kinds of power equipment.

HZ201ME 12831 BLEE HZE2010F 12 A31 BILEE

Year ended 31 December, 2011 Year ended 31 December, 2010
REEEMDBEXEREXTEERM = 2 &R BE R LR RN EER
Turnover and contribution to operating Contribution to Contribution to
profit by major product categories Turnover operating profit Turnover operating profit
ARMT T ARMTF T AR#BFT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2] (&F71)
(restated) (restated)
NEF R 17,295,041 3,842,950 17,984,152 2,534,295
Main thermal power equipment
IKE F RN 3,162,786 958,992 2,599,998 619,133
Main hydro power equipment
BIE TR 5,104,920 278,315 5,060,211 170,478
Engineering services for power stations
B RECERE 719,100 286,505 919,028 307,563
Ancillary equipment for power stations
22 i M K B E m B AR 75 2,205,935 343,872 2,608,835 558,336
AC/DC motors and other products
and services
28,487,782 5,710,634 29,172,224 4,189,805
H R U s 330,779 303,521
Profit from other activities
RO FEZERZER (4,401,453) (3,131,425)
Expenses not allocated to major products
BT A& A 1,639,960 1,361,901

Profit before taxation
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Group's annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2011.

In 2011, the European debt crisis has been spreading around. In
contrast to the apparent slowdown in the global economy, China’s
economy enjoyed a stable and relatively rapid development posting a
9.2% GDP growth. Although the demand for power supply from
international market remained, impact stemming from political and
economic uncertainties has become more significant. Growth in
demand for power consumption in China slowed down while installed
capacity kept rising and so did the proportion of clean energy. During a
year ushering in the “Twelfth Five Year Plan”, fiercer competition
among the power generating equipment manufacturers is anticipated.

It is heartening to note that the Group's operating scale has become
steady and profitability recorded healthy growth. That kicks off the
“Twelfth Five Year Plan” with a good start. The Group recorded a sales
income of RMB28,488 million, representing a decrease of 2.35% over
the previous year. Net profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company amounted to RMB1,229 million, representing a growth of
22.73% over the previous year. The value of new contracts amounted
to RMB44,611 million, representing an increase of 5.22% over the
previous year, among which RMB24,482 million was attributable to
export sales which made up 54.88% of the total contract value, hitting
another new high.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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In 2011, the Group sped up its adjustment to product structure with
initial results. The construction of the main plant at a wind farm in
Zhenjiang was completed and 4 contracts for wind power products at
an aggregate contract value of RMB881 million were awarded. The
Group commands the largest share in the hybrid equipment market
has introduced model 9FB03 and model 6FA into the domestic market
of China. By signing the contracts for seawater desalination projects
with Datang Wushashan power plant and Cuddalore in India
respectively, we have further penetrated the large scale seawater
desalination and water treatment sectors. We also took a monumental
step in the development of photovoltaic power generation by signing a
strategic cooperation agreement. Production of nuclear island products
has commenced and some of them are ready for delivery. The Group
has been engaged in developing new products and new technologies,
winning over 100 patent authorizations and a number of R&D awards

at provincial level.

During the “Twelfth Five Year Plan” period, China will adhere to the
principle of “safety, high efficiency, low carbon” in exercising
reasonable control over the overall consumption of energy, optimizing
the energy structure and transforming the development model of
energy. Thermal power characterized by high efficiency, energy-saving
and environment-friendly as well as hydropower noted for its state-of-
the-art and eco-friendly features will become a cornerstone for the
healthy and sustainable development of the power generation industry.
As new energy technologies like nuclear power, hydropower, solar
power, biomass power and marine power further develop, power
generation equipment has attached more importance to large scale,
cleanliness and efficiency. The power generation equipment
manufacturing industry is enjoying ample space for development and
being presented a more promising prospect.

LL0Z Hoday |jenuuy paliwi Auedwo?) 011108|3 ulgieH
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

220125 HREEEGHGNTIZEM - T
EELEF  BREBEENFEESHERE
MBREMABEAKE - PRBRFRELT [BF
S | M TERERAN—RINER RN LB T
R BHERPELERE FRERER - F
B AEERE-FIRRERER  BEEIH
iRk BESEMAEES - TEINRAED

EHEMEROME - ARBERERBED
EEgREIBET 8 BIREESD  mL D
TEF ) - RIS MM - RITE EAIHEE
N RITEEEER S BALEEREKT B
TOEE BIFER - BOHEB2012FHRE L
— B BRAE B RN FAE LB SR

L RS BSMBRREAEENEZREE
RITEHEEFSKE  EEEK 28BET 45
ERHREARPO X FMER

o

REE e @B —FE——%F=H++tH

Looking forward to 2012, the instability and uncertainty concerning a
global economic recovery will grow and the fallout of the international
financial crisis remains. Market conditions will remain highly
challenging. The PRC government has pronounced a general direction
of “progress amid stability” and a series of more effective austerity
measures to maintain a stable and relatively rapid development in its
economy. At the same time, the Group will further enhance its
awareness of crisis to fend off risks in an active manner. Besides, it
will endeavor to safeguard shareholders’ interests through prudent and
rational allocation of funds, constant strengthening of existing

construction and ongoing improvement to operation quality.

Bearing shareholders’ expectations in mind, the Group has full
confidence in its future. The Board will work closely with our staff with
great cohesion and good fighting spirit to strengthen the Group's
capability of market development, self-initiated innovation, control and
management, and corporate governance. We will do everything
possible to strive for excellence and propel the Group’s 2012 results to
a new high in return for shareholders’ support.

Last but not least, | would like to express my gratitude to our
shareholders for their concern and trust, to my colleagues on the
Board, senior management and staff of all levels, business associates
and our clients for their support and contribution.

Chairman

Gong Jing-kun

Harbin, the PRC, 17 March 2012
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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This section must be read in conjunction with the financial statements
and notes to the financial statements as set out elsewhere in this
annual report.

MACRO ECONOMY AND INDUSTRY
DEVELOPMENT

In 2011, the European debt crisis has been worsening and spreading
around. Developed countries saw a feeble recovery and emerging
economies a slowdown in growth. The PRC government insisted upon
its course of austerity measures, stable economic growth, price control
and structural adjustment to ensure a stable and faster economic

development, culminating a 9.2% GDP growth.

China has stepped up its efforts to adjust the energy structure by
lowering the proportion of thermal power and increasing that of clean
energy such as hydropower, wind power and solar power. In light of
the incident in Fukujima, the pace for the development of nuclear
power was slowed down. Growing demand from abroad has made up

for the lack of domestic demand.

In 2011, power consumption across China grew at 11.74% over the
previous year. Installed capacity of the power generating units nation-
wide has reached 1,055,760MW by the end of the year, representing a
growth of 9.25% over the previous year.

NEW CONTRACTS

In 2011, at the backdrop of the complicated economic development
and highly competitive environment, the Group rose up against all odds
and won RMB44.611 billion worth new contracts, of which RMB23.546
billion (or 52.78% of total contract value)for thermal power equipment,
RMB3.24 billion (or 7.26% of total contract value) for hydropower
equipment, RMB3.358 billion (or 7.563% of total contract value) for
hybrid equipment, RMB7.676 billion (or 17.21% of total contract value)
for power engineering, RMBO0.717 billion (or 1.61% of total contract
value) for nuclear power equipment and RMB6.074 billion (or 13.61%
of total contract value) for other products.

Leveraging on its strong competitiveness in the thermal power
equipment market, the Group signed a new contract for installing 4
units of 1,T00MW ultra supercritical boilers in Xinjiang.

—
—_
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Management Discussion and AnaIyS|s (continued)
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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Our competitive edge in hydropower equipment has further
strengthened. The Group has signed contracts for 6 units of 250MW
pumped-storage hydroelectric power generators in Liyang, Jiangsu and
4 units of 425MW water turbine power generators in Houziyan.

The Group commands a leading position in the hybrid equipment
market and has introduced model 9FB03 and model 6FA into the
domestic market of China.

The wind power equipment segment has succeeded in opening up the

domestic market and won 4 contracts for wind farm projects.

The nuclear power equipment segment has signed a supply contract of
conventional island for the power generating units 3 and 4 of Tianwan
Nuclear Power Plant.

The seawater desalination segment has secured two ‘birth certificate’
projects respectively from Datang Wushashan power plant and
Cuddalore in India.

The Group’s environment-friendly equipment tapped the export market
by signing a contract for selling 3 units of 600MW thermal power
desulfation island.

New contracts obtained from the international markets set new record
high, totalling RMB24.482 billion, or 54.88% of total contract value.

PRODUCTION AND SERVICES

The total output of the Group's power equipment for 2011 reached
22,332.2MW, representing an increase of 3.60% over the previous
year, among which the total capacity of utility boilers amounted to
23,010MW, decreasing by 11.74% over the previous year. The total
capacity of steam turbines for power plant recorded 20,257MW,
decreasing by 2.74% over the previous year. The total capacity of
steam turbine generators was 15,297MW, decreasing by 14.73% over
the previous year. The total capacity of hydropower turbo-generator
units totaled 7,035.20MW, increasing by 94.53% over the previous

year.
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Notwithstanding such negative factors as rescheduling of delivery
timetable, concentration of delivery and tight availability of funds, in
order to accomplish our production target for the year, we have taken
practical situation into account before taking effective measures in
response and finished our jobs to customers’ satisfaction by
strengthening our capabilities in management and production,
upgrading technology and arranging reasonable production schedule.
As a number of nuclear island products have commenced production,
the production of core makeup tank for Haiyang nuclear power unit 1
was completed and delivered.

R&D AND TECHNOLOGY INTRODUCTION

In 2011, the Group continued to increase its input in R&D. During the
year, the Group was granted 102 patent authorizations. Besides,
241 R&D projects were completed and 20 accolades from
various disciplines awarded, among which the { =% 2=/4 B A7k 5 3%
BB EL) won the second prize of National Science and Technology

Progress Award.

The introduction and absorption of technology has made impressive
headway. As to nuclear power, we have secured the knowhow of
designing and manufacturing a number of AP1000 components. As to
hybrid equipment, we have completed the technology transfer of the
9FA combustion engines and signed an agreement of technology
transfer with GE in connection with the 9FB0O3 combustion engines. As
to wind power, we have completed the technology transfer of the 2.75MW
wind turbines and prototyping gets under way. As to seawater
desalination, technical proposal in connection with the “large-scale
multi-purpose seawater evaporation and desalination equipment and
system operating at low temperatures” obtained approval from the
China Machinery Industry Federation. As to compressors, technical
preparation for prototyping has been largely completed and production
of the combustion chamber, a main component, has commenced.

REFORM AND MANAGEMENT

The establishment and implementation of a performance-based
appraisal system ensures the annual target and goal can be met. At the
same time, policies in respect of new products, new business and
incentive were formulated and adjustment to product structure
achieved positive results.

—
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Management Discussion and AnaIyS|s (continued)

(BB ARRERMREINIRARE)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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By issuing an internal control manual and effecting the procedures
therein, introducing a self-assessment mechanism to internal control,
organizing control on development and promoting efficient operation of
and on-going improvement to the internal control system, a

comprehensive risk management is running in an orderly fashion.

The Group has been striving to promote a positive atmosphere in the
workforce by emphasizing the attitude of “dedication, concentration
and professionalism”. We have set up a professional hierarchy as a

reference for assessment and recruitment.

Through optimization of design, higher utilization of materials, lower
inventory level and enhanced management of cash flows, cost control
is tightened and operation is being run in a more cost-effective way.
Meanwhile, consolidated procurement by tender has effectively
regulated the purchase process and lowered the purchase costs.

PROFIT

In 2011, net profit of the Group attributable to the shareholders of the
Company was RMB1,228.66 million, an increase of 22.73% over the
previous year; earnings per share were RMB0.89, an increase of
RMBO0.16 over the previous year; net asset as at the end of the period
attributable to the shareholders of the Company were RMB10,601.62
million, an increase of RMB900.17 million compared to the beginning
of the year; net asset per share was RMB7.70, an increase of RMBO0.65
compared to the beginning of the year.

During the period, the increase of Group profit was mainly attributable
to increased gross profit.

DIVIDEND

A dividend of RMBO0.14 per share (appropriate tax included) for 2011
(2010: RMBO0.14 per share) was proposed by the board of directors,
which remained unchanged as last year.
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TURNOVER

In 2011, the Group recorded a turnover of principal business activities
of RMB28,487.78 million, a decrease of 2.35% over the previous year.
In particular, turnover of the thermal power main equipment business
was RMB17,295.04 million, a decrease of 3.83% over the previous
year, representing 60.71% of the turnover of the principal business
activities. Turnover from hydropower main equipment was
RMB3,162.79 million, an increase of 21.65% over the previous year,
representing 11.10% of the turnover of the principal business activities.
Turnover of power plant engineering services was RMB5,104.92
million, an increase of 0.88% over the previous year, representing
17.92% of the turnover from the principal business activities. Turnover
of ancillary equipment for power stations was RMB719.10 million, a
decrease of 21.75% over the previous year, representing 2.53% of the
turnover from the principal business activities. Turnover of AC/DC
motors and other products and services was RMB2,205.93 million, a
decrease of 15.44% over the previous year, representing 7.74% of the
turnover of the principal business activities.

In 2011, the Group recorded a turnover of export of RMB5,975.31
million, representing an increase of RMB675.82 million over the
previous year and accounted for 20.97% of the turnover of the principal
business activities. The export was mainly to such regions as Asia and
Africa.

COST

In 2011, the cost of the principal business activities of the Group was
RMB22,777.15 million, a decrease of 8.83% over the previous year.
The decrease was mainly due to the Group’s effort in cost control paid
off.
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GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

In 2011, the gross profit from the principal business activities of the
Group was RMB5,710.63 million, an increase of 36.30% over the
previous year. The gross profit margin was 20.05%, an increase of 5.69
percentage points over the previous year. Among them the gross profit
from thermal power main equipment was RMB3,842.95 million, an
increase of RMB1,308.66 million over the previous year. The gross
profit margin for thermal power main equipment was 22.22%, an
increase of 8.13 percentage points over the previous year. The gross
profit from hydropower main equipment was RMB958.99 million, an
increase of RMB339.86 million over the previous year. The gross profit
margin for hydropower main equipment was 30.32%, an increase of
6.51 percentage points over the previous year. The gross profit from
power plant engineering services was RMB278.32 million, an increase
of RMB107.84 million over the previous year. The gross profit margin
for power plant engineering services was 5.45%, an increase of 2.08
percentage points over the previous year. The gross profit from
ancillary equipment for power stations was RMB286.50 million, a
decrease of RMB21.06 million over the previous year. The gross profit
margin for ancillary equipment for power stations was 39.84%, an
increase of 6.37 percentage points over the previous year. The gross
profit from the AC/DC motors and other products and services was
RMB343.87 million, a decrease of RMB214.47 million over the previous
year. The gross profit margin for the AC/DC motors and other products
and services was 15.59%, a decrease of 5.81 percentage points over
the previous year.

EXPENSES DURING THE PERIOD

The Group's expenses for operation activities during 2011 amounted to
RMB558.04 million, an increase of RMB49.25 million or 9.68% over
the previous year.

Expenses for administration activities during 2011 amounted to
RMB3,040.18 million, an increase of RMB285.30 million or 10.36%
over the previous year.

The increase in expenses during the period was mainly due to the
increase in staff costs, sales services expenses, depreciation charges
and R&D expenses.
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INTEREST EXPENSE

In 2011, the Group has incurred financial charges of RMB72.55 million,
a decrease of RMB66.99 million over the previous year.

FUNDING AND BORROWINGS

The Group has three major funding sources for operation and
development, namely shareholder’'s funds, trade receivables from
customers and bank borrowings. The Group arranges borrowings for
each specific project. Except for some special situations, loans will be
raised individually by the Group's subsidiaries. However, prior approval
from the parent company is required in respect of borrowings raised for
capital investments. As the number of orders and advance receipts
increased significantly during the past two years, the Group had
abundant working capital and has thus repaid substantially all of the loans
for working capital. As at 31 December, 2011, the total sum of the
Group’s borrowings was RMB1,895.86 million (31 December, 2010:
RMB2,209.96 million). The Group’s bank borrowings are loans from
various commercial banks and the State’s policy banks with interest
rates stipulated by the state. Among the Group's borrowings, the
amount due within one year was RMB581.62 million, a decrease of
RMB45.38 million compared to the beginning of the year. The amount of
the Group's borrowings due after one year was RMB1,314.24 million, a
decrease of RMB268.72 million compared to the beginning of the year.

DEPOSITS AND CASH FLOW

As at 31 December, 2011, bank deposits and cash of the Group
amounted to RMB8,519.28 million, a decrease of RMB4,030.90 million
compared to the beginning of the year. During the period, net cash
outflow from operating activities of the Group amounted to
RMB2,273.66 million. Net cash outflow from investment activities
amounted to RMB672.11 million and net cash outflow from financing
activities was RMB241.67 million.

ASSET STRUCTURE AND ITS MOVEMENTS

As at 31 December, 2011, total assets of the Group amounted to
RMB50,396.05 million, a decrease of RMB360.06 million (or 0.71%)
compared to the beginning of the year, among which current assets
were RMB42,739.58 million, representing 84.81% of the total assets,
and non-current assets were RMB7,656.47 million, representing
15.19% of the total assets.
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LIABILITIES

As at 31 December, 2011, the Group's total liabilities amounted to
RMB37,872.82 million, a decrease of RMB1,719.45 million compared
to the beginning of the year, among which total current liabilities were
RMB29,022.65 million, representing 76.63% of the total liabilities, and
total non-current liabilities were RMB8,850.17 million, representing
23.37% of the total liabilities. As at 31 December, 2011, the gearing
ratio of the Group was 75.15%.

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

As at 31 December, 2011, the total equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB10,601.62 million, an
increase of RMB900.17 million compared to the beginning of the year;
the net asset per share was RMB7.70. During the period, the net asset

return rate of the Group was 12.10%.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December, 2011, gearing ratio of the Group (non-current
liabilities over total shareholders’ equity) was 0.83:1 as compared to
that of 1.05:1 at the beginning of the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF
ASSET

As at 31 December, 2011, the Group pledged its bank deposits in the
amount of RMB131.16 million to secure loans for liquidity.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND MAJOR
INVESTMENTS

In 2011, the Group has a total capital expenditure of RMB1,530 million
invested in infrastructure constructions and technological upgrades.
The particulars of the investments and construction projects are as

follows:

The technological upgrade projects for 1,000MW nuclear power
ancillary equipment and the newly-built hydropower model laboratory
were completed during the year;
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The improvement project for domestic nuclear production at
conventional islands, the manufacturing and construction project of the
main equipment for nuclear island, the self-reliance and improvement
project of the main equipment for nuclear island, the construction
project of manufacturing base for main pump generators, the
manufacturing technology upgrade project for nuclear power reactor-
cooling agent pump units as well as the technological upgrade projects
for coal chemicals, IGCC and large-scale chemical engineering
equipment have reached their final stages;

As regards Phase | of the scientific research base, the technological
upgrade project for mass production of 30MW fuel gas compressor
units as well as the construction projects for boiler laboratory,
technological laboratory and material laboratory have been carried out
as scheduled.

In 2012, the Group intends to commit an investment of RMB992
million, which will be mainly used for Phase | of the scientific research
base and the technological upgrade project for mass production of
30MW fuel gas compressor units.

On 11 May, 2011, the Group subscribed for 200 million A shares of
Datang International Power Generation Co., Ltd. under private offering
at a price of RMB6.74 per share, totaling RMB1,348 million. The shares

were subject to a locked-up period of one year.

As at 31 December, 2011, the shareholdings by the Company were as

follows:

200 million A shares of Datang International Power Generation Co.,
Ltd., with a locked- up period of one year;

160 million A shares of GD Power Development Co., Ltd.;

98 million A shares of Huaneng Power International, Inc..
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group has certain amount of deposits that are denominated in
foreign currencies. As at 31 December, 2011, the amount of the
Group's deposits in foreign currencies was equivalent to RMB790.55
million. The export business and foreign currencies settled businesses
expose the Group to exchange risk.

USE OF FUND-RAISING PROCEEDS

The Group has fully utilized its fund-raising proceeds and no other
usage of fund-raising proceeds was recorded in 2011.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December, 2011, the Group had a workforce of 20,106
employees and the total remuneration amounted to RMB1,569 million.
The Group endeavors to introduce more recruitment tactics to attract
high-caliber talents and puts additional efforts in staff training to provide
our staff with opportunities for growth and development.

PROSPECT

For 2012, severity and complexity will remain a phenomenon of the
global economy with an economic recovery becoming increasingly
uncertain. The fallout of international financial crisis will exert
downward pressure on the Chinese economy which may lose some
steam with an expected slowdown in GDP growth of 7.5%.

Facing with a complex and volatile political and economic environment
abroad, and the new situations and changes in the domestic economy,
the PRC government remains adamant on its stance of striving for
progress without compromising stability, strengthening and improving
austerity measures as well as maintaining a steady yet faster pace of
economic development. The PRC will step up its efforts in adjusting
energy structure by actively developing hydropower provided that
sufficient measures for environment protection as well as relocation
and settlement are in place, effectively developing nuclear power with
adequate safety assurance, promoting the development of natural gas
industry, developing wind power in a proactive and orderly manner, and
actively developing solar power. It is expected that annual installed
capacity will increase by approximately 70,000MWV.
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2012 marks the beginning of the “Twelfth Five year Plan”. Under the
leadership of the Board, the Group is confident that we will be able to
achieve impressive progress, overcome difficulties, adjusting structure,
enhancing management, facilitating on-going development of the

Company, and creating greater value for our investors.

The Group will focus on accomplishing the following tasks in 2012:

Enhancing customer satisfaction and developing markets with full
strength

Under the concept of “total marketing”, all our efforts are directed to
market development. We strive for higher customer satisfaction by
providing meticulous design, production and services, actively
responding to their demands for energy saving, reduction of wastage
and higher efficiency, and meeting their requirements for performance,
quality assurance, construction progress and efficient services.
Besides, to provide powerful support for market development, we
integrate and re-allocate our marketing resources to maximize the
Group's overall strength.

We will consolidate our presence in the conventional market by gaining
a bigger share in the thermal power market, maintaining our
competitiveness in the hydropower market and developing the nuclear
power market with full strength. We will also continue to develop the
markets for combustion engines and environment-friendly products as
well as such new products as IGCC, compressors, photovoltaic power
generation, wind power, seawater desalination, etc.. Driven by the
exportation of EPC projects and main equipment as well as the
provision of up-to-date services for the manufacturing sectors, we have
taken a big step in exploring the overseas markets and the service

markets.

Tightening cost control and enhancing operating efficiency

We will tighten cost control to actively cope with the complex
economic environment. By promoting the “total cost” model, we
manage and control by allocating the costs to the design, procurement,
production and sales segments.
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We will perform strict budget management to step up control on cash
flows. Measures adopted include timely recovery of receivables,
reduction of unnecessary expenses, squeeze on overhead, further
reduction of inventory, and optimal utilization of funds by tapping new

resources while reducing expenditure.

Capitalizing on the benefits of tendering process, we will lower
procurement cost by expanding the scope of procurement. We will
also fully utilize in-house capacity to reduce the amount of outsourcing
operations and cut down on outsourcing prices to contain the

expenditure on outsourcing.

Speeding up technology innovation and pushing through
structure adjustment

Bearing market demand and national policies in mind, we will continue
on our course of technology advancement and product upgrading. To
sharpen our competitive edge in terms of technology, we will step up
our efforts in self-initiated innovation along with the absorption of
transferred technology. To provide technical support for product
improvement and upgrading, we will meticulously work on the
performance and projects of high capacity thermal power and
hydropower generating units. To enhance our own capabilities in
designing and manufacturing nuclear power products, we will conduct
in-depth research into the design and manufacture of the AP1000
nuclear power equipment. To ensure smooth execution of contracts in

hand, we will work on the technology transfer for 9FB gas turbine.

Leveraging on technology innovation, we will speed up the process of
adjusting the industry structure and incubate budding businesses so as
to set up new growth points. To lay a foundation for the Group's long
term development, we will achieve breakthroughs in the research of
such new segments as coal chemicals, seawater desalination,
photovoltaic power generation and compressors.

For the purpose of expanding our nuclear power segment, the Group is
setting up its own design institute for nuclear power equipment to
build up its capabilities in the design and supply of nuclear power
turnkey projects and complete the industry chain.
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We will accelerate the construction of a manufacturing base for
compressors. Taking advantage of the contracted projects, construction
and production will be effected simultaneously to expedite the
prototyping process.

We will also accelerate the construction of a wind farm in Zhenjiang
with particular attention being paid to technology transfer and
absorption, installation and fine-tuning of equipment, and pre-
commissioning preparations.

Enhancing management and developing fundamentals in a
pragmatic way

The Group has marked 2012 as its “Management Enhancement Year"”.
Quality of workflow and products is placed high on the priority list to
attain a higher degree of efficiency and economic benefits.

Under the comprehensive quality enhancement directive, performance
will be assured by technology advancements, product quality by
effective system and service quality by efficiency and integrity.

We will closely monitor the inherent risks and actual progress of the
projects so as to effect timely adjustment to our implementation
strategies and ensure contracts will be honoured.

Under the principle of total control and high precision, the Group will
further deepen its development of human resources by expanding its
workforce, strengthening personnel training, supervision and

assessment as well as optimizing its execution capabilities.

Under the principle of necessary prudence and tight control, the Group
will conduct systematic reviews and examinations as well as post-
assessments on the infrastructure and investment projects underway.

The Group will make greater contribution to the society in terms of
conservation of energy and reduction of emission by applying the same
principle to itself in environmental protection, cost-saving and

effectiveness enhancement.

Harbin, the PRC, 17 March, 2012

LL0Z Hoday |jenuuy paliwi Auedwo?) 011108|3 ulgieH H



N
~

S

(ERAEZVR -

B LloC

EE EENRENREEAE

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

BEE
HUITES

EREBEELE —NAANFLARE B8
SR TR  BEARREERRRELE
NAIBER - BRE-NN_FEEXEREGHKSE
By BREBENMRELERE  BELS(Y -
—NNZFNMAREEE - SEEBREAKER
ERBEERERE EEREIRE  KESK
BEARAEBEH AR EEIZHIE - BIEKE
EBIE - —NMNNFEMRETREE D RMMA
HAEBSRNERAFEERK - —TZTTF/\AB
ERBEEERRBEFTRFRAELIE  NAEERRQ
AEESR - —EERFRAAERESELQAE
ER NMAZTHhBEERRRESZR -

BERE  —NAARFAALE BL2U -5
RSB REARREERREEE QR
Ex e - FrE-—AN\N\FELAEERE
A TER#EMRTRAEEEE REELE
i RREBELIXAERFTELBM-
—AANFENAMAREER - FAEEZERK
RERBEMEERQRAEEHEES - BERMWE -
BZEIERL i WEAREF —OREXS
B BAOHEE  FUOBEE @ WEQR
EER BIAKE BFR EKEREZEZS
e —EENFH+_AEREEEARFEEZT
L EE AR _ZENF_AT+—HEE
ZAYNCTE =

DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gong Jing-kun, born in July 1958, a senior engineer with a
doctor’s degree, now chairman of the Company and HE. Mr. Gong was
graduated from Shenyang Institute of Machinery and Electronics in
1982. Later on, he obtained a doctor degree from Harbin Institute of
Technology. Mr. Gong joined HE in 1982. He has been deputy director
of production division, deputy manager of production department,
manager of hydropower workshop in the former Harbin Electric
Machinery Works of the Group, and general manager assistant and
deputy general manager of the Electric Machinery Company of the
Group. Mr. Gong was appointed as chairman of Archeng Relay Group
Company and Archeng Relay Company Limited in 1999. In August
2000, he was appointed as deputy chairman and general manager of
HE and in September 2000, Mr. Gong was appointed as deputy
chairman of the Company. In May 2006, he was appointed as chairman
of HE and on 29 September, chairman of the Company.

Mr. Zou Lei, born in June 1966, a senior economist with a doctor’s
degree, a director of the Company and director and general manager of
HE. Mr. Zou was graduated from Jiamusi Technical College in July
1988, and was conferred a bachelor’s degree in mechanical design and
manufacture. Then he obtained a doctorate degree from Harbin
Institute of Technology. Mr. Zou joined HE in August 1988 and was the
dispatcher, Party office secretary, league deputy secretary, secretary in
dispatching room of production division in the former Harbin Boiler
Works, Party branch secretary of pipe first branch factory, factory
director of heavy vessel workshop, factory director of Pingshan branch
factory, production director, deputy general manager, chairman, general
manager and Party committee deputy secretary of Harbin Boiler
Company Limited. In December 2008, Mr. Zou was elected as standing
committee member of the Party Committee, director and general
manager. He has been a director of the Company since 11 February
2009.
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Mr. Duan Hong-yi, born in February 1963, is a senior economist with
an MBA degree. He now serves as a director of the Company and
deputy general manager of HE. Majoring in mechanical engineering,
Mr. Duan was graduated from Harbin Electrical Machinery College in
1982 and joined HE in the same year. Mr. Duan has been a
comprehensive planner and deputy manager of the planning
department of the former Boiler Works of the Group. In 1994, he
participated in the reorganization of HE to be a shareholding enterprise
and the issuance and listing of the Company’s shares. Since 1995, he
has been a vice director and the director of the planning and accounting
department and a deputy chief accountant of the Company, a
supervisor and a deputy general manager of the Turbine Company of
the Group, and a vice chairman of Harbin Power Technology & Trade
Inc. of the Group. He was appointed as a deputy general manager of
HE in August 2000 and a director of the Company in September 2000.

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Wei-zhang, born in July 1962, is a senior engineer at
researcher level with a doctor’s degree. He now serves as an executive
director and the general manager of the Company. Majoring in
Hydraulics and River Dynamics, Mr. Wu was graduated from Tsinghua
University with a master’s degree in 1988 and joined HE in the same
year. Mr. Wu has been a deputy director and deputy head of the turbine
department of Electrical Machinery Institute, a deputy manager of
hydropower workshop, a deputy chief engineer and a deputy manager
of the product design department of the Electrical Machinery Company
of the Group. Mr. Wu was appointed as the deputy general manager
of the Electrical Machinery Company of the Group in 1999 and then
the chairman and general manager in October 2000 respectively. He
was appointed as an executive director of the Company in September
2000. Mr. Wu obtained a doctorate degree at Tsinghua University
in 2002. He also holds various social posts, including the director
general of the large electrical equipment branch of China Electrical
Equipment Industrial Association, a directorate member of the water
turbine special committee of China Power Project (FF B &) 71 T 12),
a directorate member and secretary general of China Water Turbine
Standardized Technology Committee (HF Bl /K #IZ (L KT £ E 2)
as well as an adjunct professor of Harbin Institute of Technology and
Huazhong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Wu has been
serving as the general manager of the Company since February 2010.
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Mr. Shang Zhong-fu, born in March 1961, is a senior engineer at
researcher level with an MBA degree. He now serves as an executive
director and deputy general manager of the Company. Majoring in
steam turbine, Mr. Shang was graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology in 1982 and joined HE in the same year. He has been an
assistant section head and deputy head of the Design Research
Institute, deputy chief economist and deputy chief engineer of the
former Turbine Works of the Group. He was appointed as a deputy
general manager of the Turbine Company of the Group in October 1998
and then the chairman and general manager in November 1999
respectively. In September 2000, he was appointed as an executive
director of the Company and in February 2002, as a deputy general
manager of the Company.

Independent Directors

Mr. Sun Chang-ji, born in August 1942, a senior engineer at researcher
level, is an independent director of the Company and special advisor to
China Machinery Industry Federation, and deputy head of the advisory
committee for State Nuclear Power Technology Corporation. Mr. Sun
was graduated from Tsinghua University in September 1966, and
started his career in 1968. He worked in Sichuan Oriental Turbine
Factory, serving as Section Head, Workshop Director, Deputy Factory
Manager and Factory Manager. In January 1991, he was appointed as
Deputy Director-general of the production department of the Ministry
of Machinery Industry of the PRC, and later he became Vice Minister of
the Ministry of Machinery Industry of the PRC in April 1993. In April
1998, he became First Deputy Director-general of the State
Administration of Machinery Industry of the PRC (deputy ministerial
level). He became Deputy Party Secretary and Vice President (deputy
ministerial level) of Bank of China in January 1999, and served
concurrently as President of China Orient Asset Management
Corporation for the period from September 1999 to August 2001. He
became Vice Chairman of Bank of China in November 2000, Vice
Chairman of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited in September 2001
and Secretary of Commission for Discipline Inspection of Bank of China
in June 2003 concurrently. From August 2004, he has been appointed
as Vice Chairman of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited and Vice
Chairman of China Machinery Industry Federation concurrently. He was
elected as a member of the 10th CPPCC National Committee in
January 2003, and deputy head of the Preparatory Team for State
Nuclear Power Technology Corporation in October 2004 concurrently.
Since December 2009, he has been an independent director of the
Company.



EE EENSHAEEAEm®W

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management (continued)

HERRELE  — NN —FLALE  RERFE
B S&TEMERE REARBBLES P
B TEBASRIEN  TESEHSESR
RERS - BERE-NANAFEERR/REIEXN
BREEEX  RFLAZNIE - SEBRREMR
ETIRM EMIXHRER ER BRI
FHAEEF A AR - HAEIE - EIRTHE
BEKE - —ZTT—F= ARERERTER KR
CEEESTF(PEMHIENTER - F
M TEEB QR - BRFAERE QR R -
“ETRE_ACPEEMTIEBRASRTEIE
£ BhER  TRESEHEREERERS - —
ZEERFNATARRBILES -

FRELZLT —AEOFERALE  REAFE
B SESBMEE REARRABYES &
MEX(EE)ERAFMESER - PERZEER
HERKEE SRIEMERNREEERE - FX
IT-NAARARFEERTRUBSHBHRERPR
MERB)PREE - AFNAZNITIE- BF
AEEAZRERER Rk PRERRTIEE
DITEITTR - BERIER - —MN=FEPEE
RIFTAEEDITITR BEER - ARERE
gk - —NWNNFEHEEEEEEEAR
HITREGEXEERR ERZBEEIAZRE - —
ZRNFREFEAGEEETERREREAER
BEeZ8 MEHaX(RE)EARAFRNESRR
REFBPHBEBLARBESR  PEZXEERBE
FEEE  SREMEAZESERE - —ETX
FARERRRBILES -

Mr. Jia Cheng-bing, born in July 1942, a senior engineer with a
bachelor’s degree, is an independent director of the Company, special
advisor to China Machinery Industry Federation, and president of China
Foundry Association. He was graduated from Hefei University of
Technology in Foundry in 1965, and started his career in July of the
same year. He served as chief and deputy chief at Ministry of
Machinery Electronics Industry and Ministry of Machine Building
Industry, director of Personnel and Labor Division, head of office and
Party Commissioner at Ministry of Machine Building Industry. From
March 2001, he served as chairman of the Supervisory Committee for
various large State Council organizations (China National Materials
Industry Group, China State Shipbuilding Corporation, The State
Development and Investment Corp.). In February 2006, he was
appointed as deputy managing directors and special advisor to China
Machinery Industry Federation and president of China Foundry
Association. He has been an independent director of the Company
since September 2006.

Ms. Li He-jun, born in June 1944, a senior economist with a bachelor’s
degree, is an independent director of the Company, vice chairperson of
the Board of Southwest Aluminum (Group) Co. Ltd, executive director
of China Association of Women Entrepreneurs and committee member
of the Financial Advisory Committee. Ms. Li was graduated from
Central Institute of Finance and Economics (currently known as Central
University of Finance and Economics) in Finance and Accounting in
1966, and started her career in August of the same year. She has
served as chief and deputy chief of the Planning Commission of Henan
Province, Vice President and Deputy Party Secretary of China
Construction Bank Henan Branch. In 1993, she became President and
Party Secretary of China Construction Bank Henan Branch and director
of Henan Provincial Investment Association. In 1999, she became a
directorate member of both the Executive Committee and the Audit
Committee for China Cinda Asset Management Corporation. Since
2004, she has been appointed as a committee member of the Expert
Advisory Committee of China Cinda Asset Management Corporation,
vice chairperson of the Board of Southwest Aluminum (Group) Co. Ltd,
vice chairperson of the Board of Shaanxi Hancheng Coal Company,
executive director of China Association of Women Entrepreneurs and
committee member of Finance Advisory Committee. She has been an
independent director of the Company since September 2006.
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Mr. Yu Bo, born in October 1960, is a professor with a doctor degree,
tutor for doctoral candidates, independent director of the Company,
dean of School of Management at Harbin Institute of Technology
(SMHIT). Mr. Yu was graduated from industrial electric automation,
Harbin Institute of Technology in 1981, and began his career from
1982. He was a tutor, lecturer, associate professor, professor of
SMHIT. He became director of Management Department of SMHIT in
2000, director of MBA School of SMHIT in 2002, and assistant to dean
of SMHIT, director of MBA School in 2003, dean of SMHIT in 2008. Mr.
Yu is also a deputy director of Energy System Engineering Committee
of China Energy Research Society, a member of National MBA
Education Committee, a member of Military Technology Administration
of China Ordnance Society, a councilor of Chinese Society of
Technology Economics, a member of Space Technology Committee of
Beijing Society of Astronautics, a councilor of Aerospace Research
Society, a councilor of Heilongjiang Provincial Budgetary Council, an
industrial expert of Heilongjiang Science and Technology Consultation
Committee. He has been appointed as independent director of the
Company since December 2009.

Mr. Liu Deng-qing, born in November 1970, is a doctor in
management studies of Tsinghua University, independent director of
the Company, a CPV, CREA, and CMRA (Certified Mining Rights
Appraiser) of China. He is one of the first Top Ten Youth Appraisers; a
partner, vice president and chief appraiser of China Enterprise Appraisal
Company. He is a member of the Tenth China Youth Federation; a
councilor of China Appraisal Society; fellow member of China Appraisal
society; a member of State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission under the State Council (“SASAC"), and
Project Appraisal Expert Group of the Ministry of Finance; a member of
the tenth and eleventh Issuance Verification Committee of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission; a member of Appraisal Standard
Committee of China Appraisal Society; a member of Enterprise
Valuation Committee, and Intangible Asset Appraisal Committee, and
Continuation Education Committee of CPV; a member of Appraisal
Committee of CPA Beijing, and Publicity Committee; a member of
Editorial Committee of CPA Beijing. He has been appointed as
independent director of the Company since December 2009.
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SUPERVISORS

Supervisors representing shareholders

Mr. Wang Zhi-sen, born in 1950, a senior engineer with bachelor’s
degree, is secretary of Discipline Committee and chairman of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company, and a member of the
Standing Committee of Communist Party and secretary of Discipline
Committee of HE. Mr. Wang studied electric power engineering at
Tsinghua University and was graduated in December 1975. He started
his career in the same year and was appointed as deputy director of
Enterprise Cadre Administration Office of Department of Cadre and
deputy director of the general office of Personnel and Labor
Department under the Ministry of Machine-Building Industry. He was
appointed as director of Information Department of China Electrical
Engineering News in 1989, head and secretary of Party Committee of
Instrument and Meter Technology Institute under Ministry of
Machinery and Electronics Industry in 1992, deputy director of general
office and director of the director office of Ministry of Internal Trade
and secretary of Party Committee in January 1995, secretary of Party
Committee and vice general manager of China National Agricultural
Machinery Corporation in July 1995, head of office of State
Commission for Economic Restructuring and head of the secretary
administration division of the Economic Restructuring Office of the
State Council in 1996, secretary of Party Committee and secretary of
Discipline Committee of Huaxing Products Corporation in 1998,
director, secretary of Party Committee and secretary of Discipline
Committee of China Huaxing Group in 1999, secretary of Party
Committee and deputy general manager of China Huaxing Group in
2001. In June 2007, he was appointed as a standing committee
member and secretary of Discipline Committee of Harbin Power Plant
Equipment Group Corporation (currently known as Harbin Electric
Corporation), and a standing committee member and secretary of
Discipline Committee of the Company. He has been the chairman of
the Supervisory Committee of the Company since March 2008.
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Mr. Chen Guang, born in August 1964, a senior engineer with a post-
graduate degree, is a supervisor representing shareholders of the
Company and director of the Corporate Management and Development
Department of the Boiler Company of the Group. Mr. Chen was
graduated from Xi‘an Jiaotong University in 1986 and joined HE in the
same year. He was appointed as a designer of the Design Department
of the Boiler Company of the Group, secretary of factory office, deputy
manager of the spare parts company, deputy secretary and chairman of
Labor Union of No. 2 Pipe Workshop, secretary and head of Drum
Workshop, head, director of Security Department and secretary of No.
1 Pipe Workshop. He has been appointed as the director of the
Corporate Management and Development Department of the Boiler
Company since August 2009. He has been a supervisor representing
shareholders of the Company since December 2009.

Supervisors representing staff and workers

Ms. Lu Chun-lian, born in March 1959, a senior engineer with
bachelor’s degree, is a supervisor representing staff and workers of the
Company and deputy chief engineer of the Electric Machinery
Company and deputy director of the Electric Machinery Institute of the
Group. Ms. Lu studied Insulation Material in Harbin Institute of
Electrical Engineering and was graduated in 1982. She joined HE in the
same year and was appointed as an engineer and deputy director of
Insulation Material Research Office under Electrical Machinery
Research Institute and head of coil factory in the Electric Machinery
Company. She has been the head of coil workshop in the Electric
Machinery Company since 2002, supervisor representing staff and
workers of the Company since September 2003, deputy chief engineer
of the Electric Machinery Company since March 2008, and deputy
director of the Electric Machinery Institute under the Electric Machinery
Company since April 2009.

Mr. Gao Xu-guang, born in June 1971, a senior engineer with
bachelor’s degree, is a supervisor representing staff and workers of the
Company, director of general manager’s office and director of the
secretariat of the Board. Mr. Gao studied Electrochemistry in Harbin
Institute of Technology and was graduated with a bachelor’s degree.
He started his career in July 1994. He was appointed as deputy director
of the general manager’s office, secretary of the Board and director of
Corporate Development Center of Harbin Turbine Company Limited
and head of Organization Department of the Party Committee of Harbin
Turbine Company Limited. He has been a supervisor representing staff
and workers of the Company since 2003.
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Independent Supervisor

Mr. Xu Er-ming, born in December 1949, a professor and supervisor
of Ph.D. candidates with a doctorate degree, is an independent
supervisor of the Company and Deputy Dean of the Graduate School of
the Renmin University of China. Mr. Xu was graduated from the
Department of Industrial Economics of Renmin University of China in
1978 and stayed at the university after his graduation, where he
worked as a tutor, lecturer, associate professor and professor. He was
appointed as the director of office for Canada-China Management
Education Program of the Renmin University of China in 1991, and later
the deputy director of the Department of Industrial Economics, the
deputy director of the Center for Business Administration Education
and the deputy director of Institute of Foreign Economic Management
of the Renmin University of China at the same time. He was appointed
as the Deputy Dean of Business Administration School of the Renmin
University of China in 1996 and the Dean in 1997. He has been
appointed as the Deputy Dean of the Graduate School of the Renmin
University of China since June 2006. He is now Deputy Secretary-
General of the Tenth Session of the Academic Committee, and a
member of the Third Session of the University Affairs Committee of
the Renmin University of China, a member of the Sixth Session of the
Business Administration Academic Appraisal Group of the Academic
Degree Committee of the State Council, Vice Chairman of the Chinese
Enterprise Management Research Association, and Chairman of Beijing
Contemporary Enterprise Research Association, independent non-
executive director of China Telecom Corporation Limited. He is entitled
to the State Council's special government allowances. He has also
been appointed as Associate Convener of the Fifth Session of the
Business Administration Academic Appraisal Group of the Academic
Degree Committee of the State Council, a member of the Advisory
Committee of National MBA Education, and a director of the Advisory
Committee for University Business Administration Education led by
Ministry of Education. Professor Xu is an adjunct professor at over 10
universities in China including Zhejiang University, and has been
teaching at New York State University at Buffalo, the University of
Scranton, the University of Technology, Sydney, Australia, the Kyushu
University, Japan and Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has been
an independent supervisor of the Company since December, 2009.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang Hai-quan, born in September 1961, is a senior engineer
with an MBA degree. He now serves as the deputy general manager of
the Company. Mr. Zhang was graduated from Harbin Institute of
Electrical Engineering in 1984 and joined HE in the same year. He has
been an engineer of the enginery repairing workshop, the secretary
and an assistant to the director of the Communist Party Committee
Office of the former Boiler Works of the Group. In 1994, Mr. Zhang
participated in the reorganization of HE to be a shareholding enterprise
and the issuance and listing of the Company's shares. Since November
1994, he has been appointed as the deputy director of the general
manager office, the deputy director of the planning department and
director of the enterprise management department, and the director of
the auditing and law department of the Boiler Company of the Group.
In 1998, he was transferred to be a member of the HE's and the
Company's Standing Communist Party Committee and director of the
organization department. In 1999, Mr. Zhang was appointed as the
secretary of the Communist Party Committee and vice chairman of
Archeng Relay Group Company and Archeng Relay Company Limited
under HE. He has been serving as the deputy general manager of the
Company since October 2000.

Mr. Liu Zhi-quan, born in July 1968, is a senior accountant and
certified public accountant in China with a doctor’s degree. He now
serves as the deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Liu was
graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology, majoring in industrial
accounting with a bachelor's degree. He subsequently obtained a
doctorate degree from the same university. He started his career in
September 1991. He has been an assistant to the director of finance
department of the Boiler Company of the Group, the deputy director
and the director, and the deputy chief accountant and head of finance
department of the Group. He was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the Harbin Boiler Company Limited in April 2001. Mr. Liu
has been serving as deputy general manager of the Company since
September 2006 and assumed the post as the company secretary of

the Company since January 2012.
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Mr. Han Jian-wei, born in June 1955, is a senior engineer at
researcher level with a bachelor's degree. He now serves as the
deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Han started his career in
October 1973. He was graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology
in 1982 with a bachelor’'s degree. He has been a designer of the design
division, an installation worker and the deputy director of the customer
service division and the head and director of the production division of
Harbin Boiler Company Limited of the Group. He has also served as the
deputy chief economist, the deputy general manager, the chairman and
the general manager of Harbin Boiler Company Limited. He has been
serving as the deputy general manager of the Company since
December 2007.

Mr. Qu Zhe, born in July 1962, is a senior engineer with a post-
graduate degree. He now serves as the deputy general manager of the
Company. Mr. Qu was graduated from Harbin Shipbuilding Engineering
Institute with a master’'s degree in August 1988 and joined HE in the
same year. He has been an assistant engineer, business representative
in Pakistan and engineer of Harbin Power Station Equipment Import
And Export Company, and served as the deputy general manager of
the company since February 1994. Since November 1994, he was
appointed as the deputy manager of operation and development
department of Harbin Power Engineering Company Limited, deputy
general manager and deputy manager of operation and development
department of cycle power plant project in UCH, Pakistan, deputy chief
engineer, assistant to general manager of the company. He served as
the executive deputy general manager of Harbin Power Engineering
Company Limited in November 1999, general manager of the company
in April 2003, and chairman and Party Secretary in September 2007
respectively. Mr. Qu has been serving as deputy general manager of
the Company since June 2010.

LL0Z Hoday |jenuuy paliwi Auedwo?) 011108|3 ulgieH H



w
=

S

(ERAEZVR -

B LloC

EEEREE

Report of the Directors

EFEEMARIEERAEE 0N EFEREMEE
20114 12 A 31 B I FELRTHMIE®RE -

FTEEK
AARREFTENB AR EENRESERERE
HAE  HERTBUH TRRRBES  SFBHNH
TERRMFET0 ©

AEEMBEBHURBE AEM HFL
79.03% 2 SSEIEFFERE FE o

HE20MF12ANALEFE  AFEEEmE
N %% R94832568E L HBEXEDN
2097% - AEBHE OEEBEIFDIMN - 3
M= -

En) NG

AAREB10REZNME AR - REBEERKAE
RECAREEZNEKMHEHME  TREEH
MAESEFE  RAEREREGREEAREIE
REBUHRBENEERFE  WRAETRERE
REFEAREI2NFS UMEANEERHE
MREERERIREERETARIENEEL
FRBABLREURBRERY  WEKE (R
ER)BAURBERAFATERFTREANE &%
B MR ERBENEENER : BREER
PHEBERAFIERFETATEIEREHE -
ZEIRERNEENMKE  RMEKERAEE
WHEFERARNEIEREEWHMPINEENE
B RERERERRIEHARPOLERARE
ENFEETREWE RN RBES N
RESBROHERARNIZNEES  MEXER
REERBEXFEREECARIENETRTUHAH
& BoE - Bt EERBER

The Directors are pleased to submit 2011 annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company and its principal subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the
manufacture and sales of various kinds of power equipment and power
station engineering services, details of which are set out in Note 10 to

the financial statements.

All the activities of the Group are based in the PRC, where 79.03% of

the Group's turnover is derived from.

The export sales of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
amounted to USD948.3256 million, representing 20.97% of the
Group's total turnover for the year. The Group's export markets mainly
include Asian and African countries.

SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has ten principal subsidiaries. Harbin Electrical Machinery
Company Limited is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales of
water turbine generator units and steam turbine generator units. Harbin
Boiler Company Limited is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales
of boilers for power stations. Harbin Turbine Company Limited is
mainly in the field of manufacture and sales of steam turbine for power
stations. Harbin Electric International Company Limited is mainly in the
field of the turnkey construction of power station projects and
complete set of power station equipment. Harbin Electric Corporation
(QHD) Heavy Equipment Company Limited is mainly in the field of
manufacture and assembly of equipment such as large scale thermal
power, nuclear power and gas turbine. Harbin Electric Power
Equipment Company Limited is mainly in the field of manufacture and
sales of medium-to-heavy-duty AC/DC motors and nuclear power main
pump motors. HE Harbin Power Plant Valve Company Limited is mainly
in the field of manufacture and sales of valves for power stations.
Harbin Power Equipment National Engineering Research Center Co.,
Ltd is mainly in the field of research and development of power
equipment engineerisation technology. Harbin Power Technology &
Trade Inc. is mainly in the field of trading. HE Modern Manufacturing
Service Industry Company Limited is mainly in the field of service
businesses like power station maintenance, reconstruction, and supply
of equipment.



BEEHREE @

Report of the Dlrectors (continued)

B 8 2 | ()

K201 F12A318 » AR AIEEMB R AIFEE
B AN F IR SRR M 5k 44 o

ES

REFEEHZE2011F12 831 Btz FEEEH N
RNERF LA MNIGEEIEERP ©

Hﬁ ILél\

BESEZIRE201TFEREAFR014TT(E
HEFER) AR (2010 FEE AFA0.147T) °

HARAR R AR S G AB S 2 A5 - [EXRTH12 2012 4F
3A17 BRI ARFBEARRITAMEARE 55
M EEMIBETE - AT ARBITAEE1.2259
7T HARARR SR PTERR 2.0.1716 TTEH o

A

ANABIER201245 8238 E201245A25H (8
FEEREMA) GERERRBPER ' 2011 R
BN B8 REE N 2012F 5 A23 HE R EREAR
ARIRER A ZIRE - ZREAFR2012F7 A
138 ZANKE - RERAERKEI2011 FER
HRE - EEZ 2B XHERABREEAR
201265 H22 A N F4R 309 R R EAR R AR
BEBZBPBLEEAEFBLARAR -« it
REBEBFERERNERISIHE MALI17E
1712-1716 = °

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, details of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 44 to the financial statements in the

annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 58 of the annual
report.

DIVIDEND

A dividend of RMBO0.14 per share (appropriate tax included) for 2011
(2010: RMBO0.14 per share) was proposed by the Directors.

Dividends payable to shareholders of H share will be paid in Hong Kong
dollar at the average of the exchange rates quoted by the People’s
Bank of China for the five days preceding 17 March 2012, which is
RMB1 for HK$1.2259. The dividend for every H share will be
HK$0.1716.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER

The Register of members of the Company will be closed from 23 May
2012 to 25 May 2012 (both dates inclusive). Final dividend for 2011 will
be distributed by 13 July, 2012 to shareholders whose names appear
in the Register of members of the Company on 23 May 2012. In order
to qualify for the final dividend for 2011, all completed transfers
accompanied with the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company's Registrar, namely Hong Kong Registrars Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 22 May 2012.
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DIVIDEND TAX

Pursuant to the “PRC Individual Income Tax Law" ({7 %= A B 2L F0 B {E
AFT5#E5%)), the “PRC Implementation Regulations of the Individual
Income Tax Law” (H ZE A & 2L 70 BB A P75 5% B R 51)), the
“Notice of the State Administration of Taxation in relation to the
Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment Entitled by Non-
residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative)” ([Guo Shui Fa 2009] No.124)
(ERTBEBERNENEZECGEEREXFKHBEFBERIE (FITHH
AN ([BE77 3% 20091124 5% ) (“Tax Treaties Notice”) and other relevant
laws and regulations promulgated by the State Administration of
Taxation, following the repeal of the “Notice of the Issues Concerning
Tax on the Profits Earned by Foreign Invested Enterprises, Foreign
Enterprises and Individual Foreigners from the Transfer of Shares
(Equity Interests) and on Dividend Income” (Guo Shui Fa [1993] No.45)
(EERIINEIRE B - SN EAINEE A UG AR SR (B2 ) 3 5E as AN
A% 2R 15 0 U 78 #9380 ) (B B 8% (1993145 5% ), the Company will
withhold and pay the individual income tax in respect of the dividend
(bonus) received by the individual H Shareholders from the Company.
The individual H Shareholders of the Company may be entitled to
certain tax preferential treatments pursuant to the tax treaties between
the PRC and the countries in which the individual H Shareholders are
domiciled and the tax arrangements between Mainland China and
Hong Kong (Macau). The Company will determine the capacity of the
individual H Shareholders based on the registered address as recorded
in the register of holders of H shares of the Company on book closure
date, i.e. 23 May 2012. The detailed arrangement will be as follows:

For individual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau residents,
and those whose country of domicile has entered into a tax treaty with
the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 10%, the Company will
withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of
the individual H Shareholders;

For individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than
10%, the Company will withhold and pay individual income tax at the
rate of 10% on behalf of the individual H Shareholders. The individual H
Shareholders may apply for refund of excess amount of individual
income tax withheld by providing relevant information for approval by
taxation authority;
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DIVIDEND TAX (continued)

For individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of over
10% but less than 20%, the Company will withhold and pay individual
income tax at the actual rate stipulated by the relevant tax treaty on
behalf of the individual H Shareholders;

For individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20% or
has not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC, the Company will
withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 20% on behalf of
the individual H Shareholders.

The Company will have no liability in respect of any claims arising from
any delay in, or inaccurate determination, of the status of the
Shareholders of the Company or any dispute over the mechanism of
withholding.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of Directors and Supervisors are set out in the section headed
"“Director, Supervisors and Senior Management” in the annual report.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'’S INTERESTS IN SHARE
CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of
the Company and/or of any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to
the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interest and short position which any such Director,
Supervisor or senior management is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which was required to be entered in the
Register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
which was required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listing Companies as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each director and supervisor has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years effective from 11 December
2009. Other than this, there are no existing or proposed service
contracts between every Director, Supervisor and any member
company of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors or Supervisors has any material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in the contracts of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries is a party during the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in Note 8
to the financial statements in the annual report.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID PERSONNEL

The five highest paid personnel include the Directors of the Company
and senior management of its subsidiaries.

STAFF RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement and benefit scheme are set out in Note
31 to the financial statements in the annual report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set out in
Note 12 to the financial statements in the annual report.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2011, the Company's reserves available for
distribution are RMB221.43 million. Movements in the reserves of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity to the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial highlights of the Group for the last five years are set out in
the section headed “Financial Highlights” in the annual report.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set out in
Note 30 to the financial statements in the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association or PRC Law, which would require the Company
to issue new shares to the existing shareholders according to their
respective proportions of shareholding.

MAJOR LITIGATION

The Group had no major litigation during the year.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Details of the material contracts entered into by the Group during the
year are set out in the sections respectively headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Disclosure of Significant Events” in the
annual report.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

1.

The aggregate amount of purchases during the period attributable
to the Group's five largest suppliers represented 9.44% of the
Group's total purchases. Among which the largest supplier is £
5 AR A 7], representing 2.25%.

27.83% of the total turnover of the Group during the period was
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers. Amongst
which ‘China Guodian Corporation (BB & £ B /A 7)) was the
largest customers, accounting for 7.87% of the total turnover.

None of the Directors, Supervisors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has
any interest in the above-mentioned suppliers or customers.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE H SHARES
ISSUE

The use of proceeds raised by the Company during the period is

detailed in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”

in the annual report.

ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE TIME
DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2011, the Company did not have any entrusted

deposits in commercial banks or non-banking financial institutions and

had no due deposits that had not been withdrawn.
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TAX POLICIES

According to the provisions of Administrative Measures with regard to
the Recognition of High and New Technology Enterprises (€& 3 i
¥ R T B E ¥ K)) jointly issued by the Ministry of Science and
Technology, the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration for
Taxation of the PRC on 14 April 2008 and the Administrative Guidance
with Regard to the Recognition of High and New Technology
Enterprises (= #7258 E B L1EE5])) jointly issued by the
Ministry of Science and Technology, the Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation on 8 July 2008, the Company and five
of its subsidiaries, namely Harbin Electrical Machinery Company
Limited, Harbin Boiler Company Limited, Harbin Turbine Company
Limited, "5 /& % R &) /1 5 5 B R 2 A and HE Harbin Power Plant
Valve Company Limited were re-recognised as High and New
Technology Enterprises, which entitles the Company to a 15%
preferential income tax rate and this is significant to its long-term
development.

In accordance with regulations of the State Administration of Taxation,
the rate for tax rebate applicable to the Group's new export products
contracts is 13% effective from 15 October 2003.

Pursuant to the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on Value-added Tax
(CFPZE AR ZAFIB I E R E 1715451)) promulgated by the Ministry of
Finance and the State Administration of Taxation on 18 December
2008, with effect from 1 January 2009, the Company and its principal
subsidiaries will be included in the general framework of the value-
added tax system reform and will start implementing the new
Implementing Rules of the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on
Value-added Tax ((HPZEA R AMBIZEFR T/ TIEBIE HEABA]D), which
allows the Company to deduct the value-added tax incurred for the
purchase of equipment. Other incentive policies promulgated by
various divisions of the state to implement the Opinions of Central
Committee of the Communist Party of China and the State Council on
the Revitalization Strategies for Historical Industrial Bases of the
Northeast Regions (R AR - BN EfERIbREE T EE
iR B K B9 & T = R )) (Zhong Fa [2003] No.11) and support for such

revitalization will remain effective.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For details of the related party transactions, please see Note 39 to the

financial statements in the annual report.

CONFIRMATION ON RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Independent Directors of the Company have reviewed the related
party transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules) referred to in Note
39 to the financial statements and confirmed that:

1. Such transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary and usual course of its business;

2. Such transactions have been entered into either () on normal
commercial terms (which term shalll be applied by reference to
transactions of a similar nature and to be made by similar entities
within PRC) or (Il) (where there is no available comparison) on
terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of
the Company are concerned;

3 Such transactions have been entered into either (I) in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing such
transactions or (Il) (where there is no such agreement) on terms
no less favorable than those available to third parties.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has already received annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director on his/her independence
confirming that his/her independence was in compliance with all
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and he/
she is an independent person.

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2011, the share capital of the Company comprised
of 1,376,806,000 shares, of which 701,235,000 shares were held by
the promoter (representing 50.93% of the entire share capital) and
675,571,000 shares were held by overseas holders of H shares
(representing 49.07% of the entire share capital).
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NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2011, the top ten registered shareholders who hold

the largest quantity of shares were as follows:

BE ERBE2t

RERERE Number of Percentage of e
Name of Shareholders Shares Shares Held Remarks
1. BREEREBAR] 701,235,000 50.93% BB E AR
Harbin Electric Corporation State-owned shares

2. HKSCC Nominees Limited 661,852,597 48.07% H %
H shares

3. TANG KEUNG LAM 6,000,000 0.44% H %
H shares

4. TANG'S INVESTMENTS LIMITED 5,000,000 0.36% H %
H shares

5. YIP CHOK CUIU 360,000 0.02% H %
H shares

6. LAM MAN LAI 250,000 0.02% H %
H shares

7. LU NIM KWOK ALBERT 250,000 0.02% H %
H shares

8. CHEUNG YUM TIN 200,000 0.02% H %
H shares

9. NG KAM WAN 110,000 0.01% H %
H shares

10. HO CHI KUN 100,000 0.01% H %

H shares
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HERRBRED T (BB 2011 F12 ANALYSIS FOR SHAREHOLDING OF HOLDERS
A31BRRAM) OF H SHARES (AS RECORDED IN REGISTER OF
MEMBERS AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2011)

HE BT

AE R HIRE 2t

Number of Number of Percentage to

£E Range Shareholders Shares Held Issued H Shares

1-1000 1-1000 5 403 0.00%

1,001-5,000 1,001-5,000 55 148,000 0.02%

5,001-10,000 5,001-10,000 35 282,000 0.04%

10,001-100,000 10,001-100,000 85 1,118,000 0.17%

100,001-A 100,001 and above 8 674,022,597 99.77%

&5 Total 138 675,571,000 100%
x| MODEL CODE

RAEZEH BEMFESEHNABCET
CEMHRAD s RER RESTRI) ZHRE -

RRBE201N FEREREE B TE BB
(EMRA) S+ (R EERERTR °

BEREES

EZEZECEBERNAEEEZ2011F12A31H
IFEZREZGHHRE  THSESEIAE
B 2 B 75 R SR A2 7 S AP EE I S o

The Company, having made specific enquiry, confirms that all members
of the Board complied with the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules throughout the period.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied throughout the year of 2011 with all code
provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011, and discussed with
the Board the financial reporting procedures as well as the internal
control system of the Group.
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AUDITORS

The current PRC auditor of the Company is Crowe Horwath China
CPAs, and the Hong Kong auditor is Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited.

By order of the Board
Gong Jing-kun
Chairman

Harbin, the PRC, 17 March 2012
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To all shareholders:

For the year ended 31 December, 2011 (the year), all members of the
Supervisory Committee (“the Supervisory Committee”) of Harbin
Electric Company Limited (“the Company”) duly performed their
Supervisory Committee functions in the best interests of the Company
and minority shareholders as a whole in accordance with the relevant
regulations of the PRC Company Law, the Rules Governing the listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Supervisory Committee
has carried out an all-round supervision on areas including assets
allocation, operation management, financial conditions and senior
management’s performance of the Company. In addition, the
Supervisory Committee actively participated in significant events of the
Company, such as the Company's production and operation etc. and
gave out many constructive opinions and suggestions, which pushed
forward the Company's work in a smooth manner.

For the Company's work during the year, the Supervisory Committee
presents the following independent opinions:

1. During the year, notwithstanding the depression of the domestic
power equipment market and fierce competition in the
international market, the Company strictly complied with the
nation’s laws and regulations, operated in accordance with the
procedures regulating listing companies, and duly executed
various resolutions passed at the shareholders’ meetings.
Adhering to the emphasis of “One main line, one center, three
breakthroughs” laid down in the beginning of the year, the
Company cooperated and strived together and hence achieved
better results in every aspect, running business strong and
excellent and laying a solid foundation for the smooth and faster
development.

2. The Supervisory Committee is aware that the directors,
managers and other senior management of the Company have
duly and actively carried out their duties and protected the best
interests of the shareholders. They have seriously carried out the
resolutions and decisions passed at the general meetings and
meetings of the Board. In addition, no violation against the
nation’s laws and rules and the Articles of Association of the
Company or acts against the interests of the Company, the
shareholders and the employees were reported.
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3. The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the Company's
financial system and conditions and concludes that the
Company's financial system has an integrated structure and a
sound system, and the financial works have been operated
orderly according to the internal control system and risk
management. Relevant information such as the annual financial
report and the dividend payment scheme proposed by the Board
of Directors has objectively and comprehensively reflected the
financial position and operating results of the Company. The
dividend payment scheme has taken into account both the
interests of the shareholders and the Company's long-term
development.

4, The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the Report of the
Directors and concludes that the report gives an objective and
true picture of the works performed by the Company during the
year.

The Supervisory Committee sincerely appreciates the trust and support
from every colleagues and the shareholders of the Company. While
continue to explore new supervisory approaches and methods, the
Supervisory Committee will further consolidate resources for
supervision so as to enhance our management, helping and ensuring
the realization of the Company's production and operation targets in
2012.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Wang Zhi-sen
Chairman

Harbin, the PRC, 17 March, 2012
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The Company has been actively perfected the Company's corporate
governing structure and standardized the Company’s operation through
strictly complying with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
relevant provisions of China Securities Regulatory Commission.

During the year 2011, the Company fully complied with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Appendix XIV of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

ORGANIZATION CHART
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SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS'’
GENERAL MEETING

The Company safeguards shareholders’ interests, treats all
shareholders equally, and initiates active participation of shareholders
in corporate governance and management. As the stakeholders of the
Company, shareholders enjoy the rights provided by laws and
regulations and undertake commensurate obligations. The shareholders
enjoy rights to information and rights to decision-making for the
Company's important matters. The general meeting of Shareholders is
the organ of authority of the Company, and it exercises its functions
and power according to laws.

Harbin Electric Corporation, a state-owned company registered in the
People’s Republic of China, is the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

In 2011, the Company held one Annual General Meeting and one
Extraordinary General Meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The major duties of the Board of Directors are to exercise the
discretion in management decision according to the authorization by
the general meeting with respect to the development strategies,
management structure, investment and financing, planning and
financial control, which are set out in details in the Articles of
Association.

1. Composition

The Board of Directors is the sixth Board of Directors of the
Company since its establishment, which is composed of ten
Directors, five of whom are independent Directors. The Company
held an Extraordinary General Meeting on 11 December 2009,
during which members of the sixth Board of Directors of the
Company were elected. The newly elected Directors serve a
term of three years from 11 December 2009.
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Positions of the Chairperson of the Board of Directors and the
General Manager are held by different individuals with distinct
responsibility. The Chairperson of the Board of Directors presides
over meetings of the Board of Directors and reviews on the
implementation of matters resolved by the Board of Directors.
The General Manager is responsible for management and
coordination of the operation of the Company, implementation of
the resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and making
decisions on a daily basis.

Biographies of the members of the Board of Directors are
included in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” in this annual report.

Independent Directors

This session of the Company’'s Board of Directors has five
Independent Directors. All the Independent Directors are familiar
with the rights and responsibilities of the directors and
independent directors of a listed company. During the reporting
period, all the Independent Directors attended the meetings of
the Board of Directors with prudent and responsible attitude.
They fully utilized their experiences and expertise, made
enormous contribution towards the improvement and perfection
of the corporate governance mechanism and the important
decision making process. They also provided balance and
objective advices with regard to important decisions and
connected transactions of the Company, further standardized the
decision making process of the Board of Directors and made this
process more scientific, thereby protecting the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each
Independent Directors about his/her independence.
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Meetings of the Board of Directors

During the year, five Board of Directors’ meetings were held
to discuss the overall strategies, investment plans, operation
and financial performance of the Company. The Independent
Directors of the Company have no dissenting opinions regarding
any of the Company’s resolutions. Attendances of the meetings

are as follows:

2011 FEEEHEEESHRT Attendances of the meetings of the Board of Directors
during the year of 2011
E2mES
=8 B HERE

Number of Number of =
EEnR Attendance Attendance in Attendance
Name of Director Required Person Rate
BMmBiE Mr. Gong Jing-kun 5 5 100%
BERAE Mr. Zou Lei 5 4 80%
B SE Mr. Duan Hong-yi 5 5 100%
REBLEE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang 5 5 100%
PR E Mr. Shang Zhong-fu 5 4 80%
HERELE Mr. Sun Chang-ji 5 5 100%
BERREE Mr. Jia Cheng-bing 5 5 100%
FRB LT Ms. Li He-jun 5 5 100%
TR s Mr. Yu Bo 5 4 80%
RIEBRE Mr. Liu Deng-ging 5 5 100%

FEEFHREBRARANE REEFAR
EZQUABTHEAE EEREMIFE
BEMHEBERN R&NEFA - ARERELEE
BREEZBE REEFSNRERFEMN
ERBITARBEROER ZREARE
BT ARREENEEEEMEEE
BRBETEEREFELEXERBERHER
% ALLEAENSIEERBARRIE -

The relevant information and current development of the
statutory, regulatory and other continuous responsibilities of the
Company’s Board of Directors can be obtained by all Directors
through the Company Secretary in a timely manner, so as to
ensure all Directors understand his/her duties, and the
procedures of the Board of Directors are consistently followed
and applicable laws and regulations are properly complied with.
The Directors and the Board of Directors’ special committees of
the Company have the right to engage independent professional
organizations for their service according to the requirement of
their duties; the reasonable costs incurred in those occasions are
born by the Company.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies set out in Appendix X of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited as a model code for Directors of the Company. Specific
enquiries have been made to all Directors, who have confirmed their
compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies during the reporting period.

SPECIAL COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD

The Board of the Company has established four special committees,
namely the audit committee, the remuneration committee, the
nomination committee and the strategy development committee,

whose members are all Directors.

The members of the Audit Committee of the sixth session of the Board
of Directors include Li He-jun, Liu Deng-ging and Duan Hong-yi. Two
third of the members of the audit committee are independent Directors
and Independent Director Li He-jun is the chairperson of the
committee, in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. During
the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and had reviewed

the Group’s annual and half-yearly reports and financial statements.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Company's Supervisory Committee consists of five supervisors, of

which two supervisors are representing staff and workers.

1. The Supervisory Committee Meetings in the period

The Supervisory Committee held two meetings in the period, the
main contents of which were as follows:

The Supervisory Committee held a meeting on 18 March 2011 to
pass the Company’'s Report of the Supervisory Committee,
Audited Financial Statements and the summary of Annual Report
for the year 2010.

The Supervisory Committee held a meeting on 19 August 2011
to pass the resolutions on the Company’s Interim Unaudited
Financial Statements and Interim Reports for the first half of
2011.
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Independent Opinions of the Supervisory Committee to the
Related Matters of the Company in the Year 2011

The Company’s Operating Validity

According to related laws and regulations, the Supervisory
Committee has supervised and examined the convening
procedures of the General Meeting and the Board of Directors
Meeting 2011, resolution matters, the Board of Directors’
execution of the General Meeting resolutions, the enforcement
of the Company’s management system and the efficiency of the
Company’s operation and management, and the Supervisory
Committee considered that the Company has operated strictly
according to the related provisions of the Company Law, the
Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the Company and
other relevant regulations; that the Company operates with
scientific and reasonable decision making procedure; and that the
Company further perfected its internal management and
established favorable internal control system in 2011.

Reviewing the Financial Conditions of the Company

The Supervisory Committee seriously reviewed the Company’s
Financial Balancing Report 2011, Profit Distribution Scheme
prepared by the Board and the Audited Financial Statements
2011 audited and submitted by Crowe Horwath CPAs Co., Ltd.
The Supervisory Committee considered that the Company's
audited Financial Reports 2011 was true and reliable, which
objectively presented the Company’s financial situations and
operation results. The Supervisory Committee approved the
Company's audited Financial Reports submitted by both local and

overseas accountants.

The Implementation of the Resolutions Passed
at General Meetings

The members of the Supervisory Committee attended the Board
Meetings and the General Meetings. The Supervisory Committee
supervised the implementation of the resolutions passed at
General Meetings and considered that the Board of Directors
could seriously carry out the General Meeting decisions.

]
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38 The Implementation of Supervisory Duties by the
Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee supervised the Directors and senior
management of the Company in accordance with the related
laws and the Articles of Association, and considered that the
Directors and senior management of the Company carried out
their duties lawfully, without any violation against the related
laws and regulations and the Articles of Association or the
interests of the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining
the internal control system of the Company, and for establishing the
Audit Committee. The Company has established the audit department
internally, which monitors and supervises the disclosure of financial
information by the Company, as well as operation and internal control
activities regularly or where necessary, so as to ensure the
transparency of information disclosure, operation efficiency and
effectiveness in corporate control mechanisms. According to the
requirement of the basic specification of corporation internal control
issued by the Ministry of Finance, the China Securities Regulatory
Commission, the China National Audit Office, the China Banking
Regulatory Commission and China Insurance Regulatory Commission,
the Company has an internal control assessment project in place and
has employed PricewaterhouseCoopers to provide consulting service
about this project. The Company completed and implemented the
Internal Control Guideline.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements included in the annual report of the Company
for the year 2011 were prepared according to PRC Accounting
Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and were
audited by Crowe Horwath China CPAs Co., Ltd, the PRC auditor, and
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, the Hong Kong auditor.

Information Disclosure and Supervision

The Company continuously improves information disclosure
management and enhances the investor relations management. The
Company discloses information on an open, fair, true, accurate,
complete and timely ground and strictly follows the related disclosure
requirements of relative laws and regulations, the Articles of
Association of the Company and Listing Rules, and improves the
Company's transparency. In order to improve the management of
investor relations, the Company issues its Interim Reports and Annual
Reports in a timely manner, provides services to visiting investors in
good faith and participates in investor forums, and illustrates to the
investors the Company’s latest development and prospects through
telephone conference and performance presentations. The secretariat
of the Board of the Company is responsible for the information
disclosure and investor relations. The Company will perform its duties,
continuously enhance its governance structure and improve its
management standard by strictly following the requirements of the
related laws and regulations of securities regulatory organizations at
home and abroad.
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Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Member Crowe Horwath International

BN B8 335 FE 3418
34/F The Lee Gardens,

33 Hysan Avenue,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

HARBIN ELECTRIC COMPANY LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS HARBIN POWER EQUIPMENT COMPANY
LIMITED)

(A joint stock company established in the People’s Republic of China
with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Harbin
Electric Company Limited (formerly known as “Harbin Power
Equipment Company Limited”) (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group") set out on pages 58 to 205, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2011, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’'s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2011, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 17 March 2012

Lau Kwok Hung
Practising Certificate No.: P04169
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Consolidated Income Statement
HE—2——Ff-A=f—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
=S AR¥T T AREEF T
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
(E2751)
(restated)
A Revenue 4 28,487,782 29,172,224
PR Cost of sales (22,777,148)  (24,982,419)
ESl Gross profit 5,710,634 4,189,805
H AU A BFUA Other revenue and net income 5 490,785 960,853
BEER Distribution expenses (558,036) (508,789)
EIBE A Administrative expenses (3,040,175) (2,754,880)
Hh R Other operating expenses (969,230) (411,337)
M H Finance costs 6(a) (72,552) (139,544)
JE{d Bt o &) g )RS 18 Share of profits less losses of associates 17 78,534 25,793
B A5 A s A Profit before taxation 6 1,639,960 1,361,901
s Income tax 7(a) (256,686) (268,950)
AN S g A Profit for the year 1,383,274 1,092,951
EEER : Attributable to:
RATRGFEEA Equity shareholders of the Company 1,228,661 1,001,108
eI e = Non-controlling interests 154,613 91,843
1,383,274 1,092,951
FRER Earnings per share
—EARREE — Basic and diluted AR RMB ARERMB
9 89.2 7 cents 72.7 7 cents

MISERE AR S MR — B - BFERRF
N TARRBRMFHEEAZREFINNHE

33(b) °

to the profit for the year are set out in note 33(b).

The annexed notes form part of these financial statements. Details of
dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For e year onded 31 Dotember 2011

2011 2010
ARET R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(E7%)
(restated)
ANE R A Profit for the year 1,383,274 1,092,951
AEEHMESER BHETE Other comprehensive loss for the year,
net of income tax
RensEH Cash flow hedges (32,671) —
HAb#ra Wz ah o R e B TS EE Income tax relating to component of
other comprehensive income 4,901 —
(27,770) a
AEEHFEEZHEKRRHAE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,355,504 1,092,951
BAE2R : Attributable to:
ZA/NI VS SGESEEDN Equity shareholders of the Company 1,200,891 1,001,108
e Non-controlling interests 154,613 91,843

1,355,504 1,092,951




e B RR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=—ZF——F+_H=+—H

At 31 December 2011

2011 2010
B =E AR®ET T AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(E751)
(restated)
FRBEE Non-current assets
KRB Investment properties 1 4,810 4,991
L E NG Property, plant and equipment 12 5,799,944 4,890,113
B LA ER Prepaid lease payments 13 433,000 419,466
R EE Intangible assets 14 261,732 90,321
EEFIRE EE Deferred tax assets 15 277,366 205,071
iR lNC] v ey Interests in associates 17 546,899 328,640
HIERBCrEE Other non-current financial assets 18 332,722 53,637
7,656,473 5,992,239
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 20 11,616,296 12,824,895
FEMIAR K Trade receivables 21 12,918,135 11,270,063
W RIE Bills receivable 21 1,052,526 982,083
HEMERGK - e KB FRIE Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments 21 4,484,066 4,541,796
A LA SR Prepaid lease payments 13 11,922 13,242
EEA RIEUER Amounts due from customers for
contract work 22 1,849,593 894,923
FE UL R Y B & mI5RIE Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 23 59,929 112,920
PTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 19 92,641 104,276
R 5 EH Trading securities 24 2,001,530 1,188,000
2R HIERITE K Restricted bank deposits 2,506 5,000
B RITIF R Pledged bank deposits 25 131,155 276,493
RITIFRK Bank deposits 26 247,404 1,090,860
HeKREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 8,271,875 11,459,319
42,739,578 44,763,870
REEE Current liabilities
PTESBMTA Derivative financial instruments 19 3,730 —
BEE RIERR Amounts due to customers for
contract work 22 1,413,194 1,274,290
FERTRRRK Trade payables 27 14,646,188 11,867,247
HMERMK - BB R R EE Other payables, accruals and provisions 27 3,934,593 2,852,629
Bz e Deposits received 28 7,483,656 11,891,531
FEASH R R BT B A Rl 308 Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 23 36,266 24,418
RIERR A RIFRIE Advance from holding company 29 2,785 20,478
AR —FRNEEZIER Borrowings — due within one year 30 581,623 627,005
ERFe Tax payables 32 920,618 816,233
29,022,653 29,373,831
REBEEEE Net current assets 13,716,925 15,390,039
HRTEEEENAEE Total assets less current liabilities 21,373,398 21,382,278
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

R=Z2——%+-A=1-A
At 31 December 2011

2011 2010
ihE=s AR¥T AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(&%)
(restated)
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
PTESmITA Derivative financial instruments 19 28,941 —
B iz Deposits received 28 6,337,141 7,592,559
RN AN RIFRIE Advance from holding company 29 1,169,838 1,042,918
AN—FREBZER Borrowings — due after one year 30 1,314,244 1,582,959
8,850,164 10,218,436
EEFE NET ASSETS 12,523,234 11,163,842
R 1 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 33
[N Share capital 1,376,806 1,376,806
(B Reserves 9,224,814 8,324,642
RARRGD A AL B Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 10,601,620 9,701,448
AR Non-controlling interests 1,921,614 1,462,394
AR TOTAL EQUITY 12,523,234 11,163,842
BEeN T —F= - BRERRRETIE - Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17
March 2012.
REE BHE
Wu Wei-zhang Shang Zhong-fu
EFE EF
Director Director

M sERE Ak It S B TS SRR B9 — 2B © The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.
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R-B——F+-A=+—~
At 31 December 2011

Statement of Financial Position

2011 2010
Fi&E AR¥T T ARETTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FREEE Non-current assets
LEN N Property, plant and equipment 12 1,141,147 1,097,817
B LA ER Prepaid lease payments 13 36,715 37,569
RETIBE B Deferred tax assets 15 10,696 10,696
KB AR ZRE Investments in subsidiaries 16 2,831,012 2,657,269
KB RN R 2 S Interests in associates 17 180,161 161,559
HibhIERmE &&= Other non-current financial assets 18 60,346 21,246
4,260,077 3,986,156
mENEE Current assets
& Inventories 20 780,753 902,070
JEURBR X Trade receivables 21 457,300 340,183
ES Bills receivable 21 163,687 6,350
HEMEBGK « e RFEFKRIE Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments 21 184,757 93,654
B LA ER Prepaid lease payments 13 854 854
R NGIE e Amounts due from subsidiaries 16 1,863,796 1,661,205
RS MEFEH Trading securities 24 2,001,530 1,188,000
A4 B IR Tax recoverable 32 2,618 —
Be KIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 26 196,886 967,925
5,652,181 5,160,241
nEBE Current liabilities
FERTBRTR Trade payables 27 176,860 123,521
H B - BB R REE Other payables, accruals and provisions 27 233,013 173,923
Blize Deposits received 28 1,053,967 1,758,845
U DIEPNGIE ] Amounts due to subsidiaries 16 2,596,945 1,564,418
BRBiE Tax payables 32 - 15,820
4,060,785 3,636,527
RBEERE Net current assets 1,591,396 1,623,714
HRREBEEENRAEE Total assets less current liabilities 5,851,473 5,509,870




B FE AR S 3R ()

Statement of Financial Position (continued)
1 Decambor 2011

2011 2010
B =E ARBT ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
FEREEE Non-current liabilities
BUiES Deposits received 28 702,644 —
RIENE A RIFRIE Advance from holding company 29 392,960 392,960
AR —FRERZER Borrowings — due after one year 30 33,784 33,784
1,129,388 426,744
BEEZRE NET ASSETS 4,722,085 5,083,126
B #E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 3
N Share capital 1,376,806 1,376,806
(G Reserves 3,345,279 3,706,320
EREE TOTAL EQUITY 4,722,085 5,083,126
BReRN T —F= A+t AHLERIRETE - Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17
March 2012.
REE mHE
Wu Wei-zhang Shang Zhong-fu
EF EF
Director Director

M sE R Bk It S A TS SRR B9 — BB © The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

HE-T——4%+-A=
For the year ended 31 December 2011

T—HRLEFE

KAARAEEAEE 2 ER
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
iR EREH
EREE  ORe FERER
Bx  BKAEE Sttty Statutoy EtEE ESRE  REEA Non-  #fE%
Share  Share  capitl  suplis  Other  Hedging  Retained & controllng ~ Total
capital  premium  reserve  reseve  reserves  reserve  profits Total interests equity
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRL ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wo5-BE-F-R268 Balance at 1 January 2010 1376806 1980295 709850 569,714 6,539 — 39%822 8639026 1578236 10217262
rERETIRGE YR EE () Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year (restated) - - = - - — 1001108 1001108 91843 1092951
HERETHERAME (I3 350))  Avising flom business combination under
common control note 3, 35(a) = - - - 8108 - — B0 886 175
ARFEERRERE Dividends distributed to non-ontroling shareholders - - - - - - - — M3 M
FilEm Bk Transfer between reserves - - - um - - m - - -
HEMBAR () Disposalof subsidiaries (note 36) - - = = - - - - B B
WERKBARMENER (M) Acquisiton of additonalinterest n the
subsidaries note 3a/c)) = - - - 67882 - - 67882 (281562)  (213,680)
R (33310 Dividends (note 33() - = - - - - (B8 B - (B
RZE-BETZR=T-H2ER(ED)  Balance at 31 December 2010 (restated) 1976806 198029 709850  H%6,936 161476 — 4876085 9701448 1462304 11163842
Ho8--5-7-A26H(E5)  Bolancoat 1 January 201 restated 16806 105 9D KM 646 — 4O 0048 14000 111630
KERRH Profit for the year - - - - - — 128861 128060 154613 1383204
EfGaER: Other comprehensive loss:
BeneEETAENE Changes in far value of effectve
HALBEED . 8 portion of cash flow hedges — gross - - - - - B - B - [
Be e EHTARNES Changes in fair value of effective
WALEREY R portion of cash low hedges — tax - - - - — A — A - 4o
KEEEpABRAR Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - om - mm - om
AEERATENGES Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - — 170 1228660 1200891 154613 1,365,504
ERRATNERANYE Avising from business combination under
common control - - - — (99399 = — (9399 9939 -
HEMBAF(E30) Disposal of subsicres note 36) - - & - - - - e @y e
A R ) Additonal inerests in the subsidiaries [note 35[0) - - - - 1% - — (1% 1% 2000
REshhRmaNES Additional nterests from non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - — 085 21085
RE(HEE3310)) Dividends (note 33lo) - - - - - — (197 (192759 - 19278
RF--EfCh=T-RzEH Balance at 31 December 2011 1376806 1980295 703229 596,936 60,131 (27.770) 5911993 10601620 1921614 12523234

FIERA L E M B RER A —&F 5 -

The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (continued)

HE-Z——F+-A=+—HIFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

R ARAAE (A ) AT - BB
Mz AERIEFIAT

(1) &R
(2) REVZEBSRATEE R
) IRFEETEAZIKE -

RBHERBNERBERRER - NA R REHK
BRI AR10% R EN(RIBFEEF
HAEE)  BALLZERBRAEEIRA o

RAEERNER IR PEAREEE °

AEBBATES ANA RN IEE ABLERD
—E5 - BEHBEEI QR FMERZ 50% B -
ANERRR - REBEPEQEE - AEBBRATE
SR ANRRBTES  BrREEREFLE -
FBAEBRN T ABRER c EARRBZEER
BABSHERAELRR  ZERABAEAZ S
BRSO REMEALR25%

EEEARBERAACREEREENR ([MES
BRRDAAEEERE TELEEBFEEN
REE BEARRRUFHEETTRERE
ANBREEERE RN EZEAMR -

D

ER LB R ) EEAFE 2 DL HIARS
HEBRHNEARFREMBLQROEE BN R
ERFEETE - WRRBBRRAGHLE -

In accordance with the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC")
Company Law, the profit after taxation is applied in the following order:

(1) making up of losses;

(2)  allocation to statutory surplus reserve; and

(3)  payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the relevant Articles of
Association, the Company and its subsidiaries are required to
appropriate amounts equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards to each
statutory surplus reserve.

The application of the share premium account is governed by PRC
Company Law.

Statutory surplus reserve is part of equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company and when its balance reaches an amount
equal to 50% of the Company's registered capital, further appropriation
needs not be made. According to the PRC Company Law, statutory
surplus reserve may be used to make up past losses, to increase
production and business operations or to increase capital by means of
conversion. However, when funds from statutory surplus reserve are
converted to capital, the funds remaining in such reserve shall amount
to not less than 25% of the registered capital.

The statutory capital reserve represents the surplus arising from the
difference between the fair value of the net assets of the principal
business undertakings transferred from Harbin Electric Corporation
("HE") to the Group and the nominal value of the shares issued to HE
by the Company when the Company was formed.

The amount of appropriation in respect of item (3) above for any year
shall be recommended by the directors in accordance with the
operational conditions and development requirements of the Company
and its subsidiaries and shall be submitted to the shareholders in
general meeting for approval.
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Consolidated Statement of Changﬂﬁgs In Equity (continued)

HE-T——F+-A=f—AL
For the year ended 31 December 2011

ENRERRANREREMNENRTARAE
EREETFENERI D - FHRREMNE
2(b) LR S REMRANS A RRERSENR
& °

Ho At 58 A B A SR FE A b 25 U P B 8 B RR M
sAMNRERFBEFEEAREREMERZE
oo AURBAREHERMELEARHE
REHAHEF I ELBRERL -

EHABEEEIIRBAERBDES ZH - &
RAREMBRARIETEEKERE

IRAR BB — NN RS\ BB E R 5 A
X DB TRREZ SEARIBEREGE
AIFiEt E 2 @R BEEE ARG LR E
ZRE MEURKEAE RZT—F+=
A=+—8 ' A5ETARARRMDEFEAZFEE
SHARBESRARGNEAMEE ZRB R
AR #221,427,000t(Z T —FF: AR
582,468,0007T) ° 40 LAl « &EF A TE Bk
RNESRE TIER TN RE FRE -

RABRGDEE AELGEEMNBREEIARA
AT IRER M BB A R 168,288,000 7T (= —
TE WM ARK 272,223,000 7 ) (M5 33(a)) ©

Hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net
change in the fair value of hedging instruments used in cash flow
hedges pending subsequent recognition of the hedged cash flow in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in
note 2(ab).

Other reserves represent the difference between the consideration
paid to acquire additional interests in subsidiaries from non-controlling
interest and the relevant carrying value of the net assets acquired. In
addition, the capital reserve and effect on merger accounting arising
from acquisition of a common control entity was also included therein.

No dividends shall be paid by the Company and its subsidiaries before
they have made up their losses and made allocations to the statutory

surplus reserve.

Pursuant to a document issued by the Ministry of Finance in August
1995 in respect of profit appropriations, the amount available for
distribution to shareholders is the lesser of the amount determined in
accordance with the PRC accounting standards and the amount
determined in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. At 31 December 2011, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was RMB221,427,000 (2010: RMB582,468,000) representing
the retained profits of the Company prepared under accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. As also mentioned above,
the balance of statutory surplus reserve can also be distributed to
shareholders in certain situations.

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company includes a loss of RMB168,288,000 (2010: profit of
RMB272,223,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 33(a)).
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-Z——F+-A=+—RHILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
FisE ARET T AREEF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(E%))
(restated)
REEBCRERE Cash flows from operating activities

B 3% Bl e A Profit before taxation 1,639,960 1,361,901

B Adjustments for:
%EE‘E{% Allowance for doubtful debts 6(c) 618,868 574,012
EASIER =R Allowance for inventories 6(c) 115,526 134,867

Tﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁgmﬁﬁfﬁ Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 6(c) 11,922 13,242

=T 8 B Amortisation of intangible assets 6(c) 19,110 12,993

RZMFEHFREMA Dividend income from trading securities 5 (50,000) =

SF iR B AR B A Dividend income from unlisted

equity securities 5 (7,358) (1,120)

Y~ E MERETE Depreciation for property,

. . plant and equipment 6(c) 527,497 465,459
EMETE Depreciation for investment properties 6(c) 181 181
B2 Finance costs 6(a) 72,552 139,544
HEME - BE REERE Gain on disposal of property, plant

X and equipment 5 (3,850) (6,122)

HERE M E RS Gain on disposal of investment properties 5 - (550)

i & P 2 ] e Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 5 (389) (150,349)

HEFHEHEERE W= Gain on disposal of available-for-sale

investments 5 (1,174) —

TEERGREZITES R Fair value gains on derivative financial

TARREENRE instruments not qualifying as hedges 5 (78,704) (104,276)
B A ERERIEER Impairment loss recognised in respect

of intangible assets 6(c) - 3,945

FFHE MR ERAEREERER Impairment loss recognised in respect

of available-for-sale investments 6(c) 1,000 =

F B UTA Interest income 5 (252,245) (277,728)

Y - RE MM Property, plant and equipment written off  6(c) - 5,970

RS MEFEH QN EEEE Fair value losses on trading securities 5 394,512 7,000

R AR (B B 18 2 4 Reversal of impairment loss on

doubtful debts 6(c) (42,695) =

Y - WE R EERE Reversal of impairment loss of property,

[E5 18 =] 43 plant and equipment 5 - (1,110)
F@“Tﬁﬁé"ﬁ%ﬁ Alm AR ET1E Share of profits less losses of associates (78,534) (25,793)

2,886,179 2,162,066
BESSERE Movements in working capital
FERL Decrease in inventories 1,082,927 1,099,545
FEURBEFX (38 n), R (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (2,232,390) 464,730
FEUZE R (3850) (Increase) in bills receivable (74,492) (380,263)
HAa UK « #&e MB35k L  Decrease in other receivables, deposits
and prepayments 7,574 330,594
EEA R UK (38 n), R (Increase)/decrease in amounts due
from customers for contract work (954,670) 52,403
B B 5 N\ B FRIE R Decrease in amounts due from associates - 1,646
FE U5 [ 2 P 8 2 R 5RIR Decrease/(increase) in amounts due
A (3En) from fellow subsidiaries 52,991 (36,012)
BiEA R R FIE Increase in amounts due to customers
for contract work 138,904 764,326
JEATBRZIE AN Increase in trade payables 2,781,934 1,810,480
HEMERNK - EirER R Increase/(decrease) in other payables,

B, i) accruals and provisions 1,115,998 (156,865)
Bt e () (Decrease) in deposits received (5,662,429) (3,944,649)
FE R KT B 2 R 5K Increase/(decrease) in amounts

g, Cri ) due to fellow subsidiaries 11,848 (27,339)
RS (1) (Increase) in trading securities (1,208,042) (1,195,000)
FE IS ER R E A FET (Decrease)/increase in value added tax

BB OB,/ and other taxes payable (124,023) 126,611
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

BE—F——F+-A=

T—HRLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
FisE AR¥T ARBTF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(E71)
(restated)
meEk (frR) BEE2BE Cash (use in)/generated from operations (2,177,691) 1,062,273
B SR B Fr 1S3 PRC income taxes paid (95,971) (231,824)
BEEK (TR EEz Net cash (used in)/generated from
HE S operating activities (2,273,662) 830,449
REXBZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
Hj%ﬁ;‘ﬂﬁ“&“ Gk - Net cash inflow from disposal of interests
5¥iﬁhﬁmu)\ in associates — 1,065
HENBARZFRS Net cash (outflow)/inflow from disposal
(R, A of subsidiaries 36 (16,913) 54,456
SRITFERUR A Decrease in bank deposits 843,456 2,462,895
AMEWA Interest received 246,160 277,728
HEAHE IR ERER Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments 2,274 =
HEME - BB RS R Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 71,763 12,755
SR B MEMER Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties - 7,774
BUR ZEFHFRE Dividend received from trading securities 50,000 —
BN S Dividend received from associates 11,638 8,513
B Uk S M Dividend received from available-for-sale
investments 7,358 1,120
B IRRITF R Decrease in pledged bank deposits 145,338 271,855
B REE R A Purchases of available-for-sale investments — (8,867)
BERAEIBRE Purchases of held-to-maturity investments (230,000) —
BEMF  WE&&E Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,521,910) (1,015,354)
FEAT T A S FE 0 Additions to prepaid lease payments (30,339) (39,270)
BEEFEE Purchases of intangible assets (192,406) (8,378)
TEERGEE2TESMT A Realised fair value gains on derivative
BHRAABERA financial instruments not qualifying
as hedges 90,339 =
SR BIRITFZORD Decrease in restricted bank deposits 2,494 2,006
ﬁﬂ%ﬁééi&‘] TE Capital injected to associates (151,363) (135,000)
WHENBARRS KRS Net cash inflow of cash and
ZEMZFRERA cash equivalents in respect of the
acquisition of subsidiaries 35 - 22,449
BREEK (FTA), Bz Net cash (used in)/generated from
HEFEE investing activities (672,111) 1,915,747
BMEXBRERE Cash flows from financing activities
FIZIRITER New bank loans raised 50,000 774,763
% E A E R Other loans raised 212,716 293,672
U BE BT BB A B) 2 BEME R Purchases of additional interests in
subsidiaries - (213,680)
RN BIFRIE Advance from holding company 109,227 228,898
ERIBITER Repayment of bank loans (476,699) (2,517,699)
EAALE Interest paid (77,873) (152,825)
EBEMER Repayment of other loans (97,114) (207,202)
IR R E Contributions from non-controlling interests 230,825 —
BERARARDIFEARE Dividends paid to equity shareholders
of the Company (192,753) (93,623)
B EERERRRE Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - (11,317)
BEXK (FTA) 2BE&3HE Net cash (used in) financing activities (241,671) (1,899,013)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
B S b L U

2011 2010
B 5T AR®T R AREEF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(E2%1)
(restated)
HeRBESZEYCRD) Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
HINFEEE cash equivalents (3,187,444) 847,183
EBREERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year 11,459,319 10,612,136
ERBERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year 26 8,271,875 11,459,319
EXRBEERESEBY 2O Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year
B & MIRTTFERR Cash and bank deposits 5,646,474 7,940,655
SRITTERK Bank deposits 2,625,401 3,518,664
8,271,875 11,459,319

FIERA L E M B RER A —&F 5 -

The annexed notes form part of these financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a joint stock company in the
People's Republic of China (the “PRC") and its H shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its parent
and ultimate parent company is Harbin Electric Corporation
("HE"), a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC. HE has
not produced financial statements available for public use. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information
section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand unless otherwise
indicated. RMB is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries are
mainly engaged in manufacturing and sales of various kinds of
power equipments and provision of power station engineering
services. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and
associates are set out in notes 44 and 17, respectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.
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2. EESHBE®)

(a)

(b)

IR ()
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RARANE S5 AR ERERK
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BRI FER] 5| 2R 15 R B
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HR2BBER - DE}IINHIEES °
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interests in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— financial instruments classified as trading securities
(see note 2(g)); and

—  derivative financial instruments (see note 2(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2. EESHBE®)

(b)

(c)

BB MRMAERE ()
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(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 41.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:

° a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business
combination and the potential tax effects of
temporary differences and carryforwards of an
acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as
a result of the acquisition are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12, “/ncome

"

Tax";
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2. EESHBE®)

(c)

EBE6(E)
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(c)

Business combinations (continued)

o assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 19, “Employee Benefits",

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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2. EESHBE®)

(c)

EBE6(E)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’'s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the
basis specified in another HKFRS.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the
measurement period (see above), or additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.

The policy described above is applied to all business
combinations that take place on or after 1 January 2010.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

Business combinations (continued)
Merger Accounting for common control combinations

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in
respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the
net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement includes the results of
each of the combining entities or businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the end of the previous reporting
period or when they first came under common control,
whichever is shorter.




B 75 3 3= MY & ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—2——F+-A=+—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into

account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases
(except for subsidiaries under common control which are
accounted for using the principles of merger accounting).
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of investments in
associates (see note 2(e)).

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(m)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

Associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post-acquisition change
in the Group's share of the investee's net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see notes
2(m)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement, whereas
the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investee's other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group's long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate.

Goodwill

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 2(m)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company's policies for investments in
debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair
value can be more reliably estimated using valuation
techniques whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(9)

(h)

Investments in debt and equity securities (continued)

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as
current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include
any dividends or interest earned on these investments as
these are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out in note 2(w)(v) and 2(w)(vi).

Dated debt securities that the group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-
maturity securities are stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(m)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
statement of financial position at cost less impairment loss
(see note 2(m)). Dividend income from these investments
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policy
set out in note 2(w)(v).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged
(see note 2(ab)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(l)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(m)).
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method. The accounting policy for
rental income from leasing of investment properties is set
out in note 2(w)(iii).

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.




B 75 3 3= MY & ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—2——F+-A=+—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. EESHBE®)

(i)

M BERRE

WE - BE RRER B TRKANR R
AT ERREBREAKREMWE
2(m)) :

BEME - BEREEER ZKREAR
YRR - EESTRA  FER
RiBIE B AR IRIEIE B FTIEH RS 2
BRAZ M (MR MEE
Bl 2 B AT B A R A sk A (R
FE2(y) ©

BEKLENE  BERREEBM
EEZBHENZIAR ZHEREHF
BEHFEE Mz EZ@8EE TN
HREXHEE BNEEA T AR -

ME  BELEREERBTERTIE
Ko ENREMGFSKEER(LE)
% NERAMIHEKRAE

BF 3.23%-6.47%
= I Mk 6.47%—13.86%
RE - KEBERZME 10.78%-19.40%
E 16.17%-19.40%

W9z - BERRERE 2B IHHEE
TRZABFES - ZHEB 2R A
BEEEERFZREETOR X HE
EHHERNE -BEZAUERAFH
RFSEE () B BFETIRY

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(m)):

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which
they are located, and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2(y)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

3.23%-6.47%
6.47%—-13.86%
10.78%-19.40%
16.17%-19.40%

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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(continued)

2. EESHBE®)
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(i)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress comprises direct costs of
construction during the period of construction and
installation, which are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Capitalisation of these costs ceases
and the construction in progress is transferred to the
relevant class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare the
assets for their intended use are completed. No
depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is completed and substantially ready for its
intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(i)  Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets, comprising patents, with finite
useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(m)). Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less

accumulated impairment losses.

Patents with finite useful lives are amortised on a
straight-line basis over 5 to 20 years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(ii)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for

use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

—  how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial
and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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2. FESTHHE® 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) EBFREE(BEBRBRIM)E) (k) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
(i) HHEARRSZH (E) (i)  Research and development expenditure
(continued)
NESELEZEBEREE 2 & VHE The amount initially recognised for internally-
ReBHEEVEEE NPT generated intangible assets is the sum of the
Lt RERIE BRI ELS 2 H expenditure incurred from the date when the
4EEE o M ERNEEL 2 E intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
BENTHER  JRZEZHE listed above. Where no internally-generated
HEEA BRI R RS N T LARERR © intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.
xR 2% AHEEZ Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
ML EEEIRE S FUREE 2 & intangible assets are reported at cost less
FEEMHERZ ZEE AR KR accumulated amortisation and accumulated
B R 2 REEEY B impairment losses (see note 2(m)), on the same
(RHFE2(m)) ° basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
(iii) REBESGHWBEZEFEE (iii) Intangible assets acquired in a business

REBEHEKRBLEBTEE
HEEOMER  WRERK
BEMZAARBENSER
AR BESAR AR

RV HERIE - NEB A HH
Wis 2 B EERE D FKE
BB EMR 2 EELRA
R T N RETREE RS
AR (RFMEE2(m)) -

combination

Intangible assets that are acquired in a business
combination and are recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(m)), on the same
basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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2. FESTHHE® 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) EFREEEERBRIM) (E) (k) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(iv) RIUBREFEE (iv) Derecognition of intangible assets
EBEEENLEEEEFEA An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
SHEZEEETSERRIR when no future economic benefits are expected from
LT 2R B 4R ERERR o AR I FE use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
REFLEEEA 2 W NEE derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
BEEMSRFEEEERT the difference between the net disposal proceeds
BREZZEZRBE - WK IR and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
REERNERN T ARER - in profit or loss when the asset is derecognition.

n HEEE () Leased assets

fid AN 5 BUAR E 1 160 7€ B HA A 45 TE B
EEREH R AR — 2 —EHK
H2RH  BRE-BRIHAERR
HLZBRELGBN R BIE—AEE -
FZIRETDER R BE AT E
o Mm% AR TG RREE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of

transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines

that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific

asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a

payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is

made based on an evaluation of the substance of the

ERFR o arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.
(i) ZFEFHELZEZTE (i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

HRAKENBERBCE
E - WEMmEEIBRIEDIR
pROREBEAEE  BE
HMEES R AURERESR
B R EAS AR BRE
DEB;OREEEAEE
ABIEAEERE -

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

)

HEEE(B)

(ii)

BEHEMX

HAREDURZHEESE
EZERE EREZHR
BREEERMRE 2t
MBS AFED BER - M
BREEEGLTBMHRRE
HEBREMRES 2 WEKRA A
BRoh - 2 HEBENER
NERRBEFNREE A
RED - EHEEEELEZ
SEHHIENBSE AR

NG ERERA i 2 WK
ARERE MR R AT R TR
FEAER ] WREREE
HERREE - B /RE
MEZ2MFE(RMEE20)) BRI

)

Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over
the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property (see note 2(i)).
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2. FEESHBE® 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(m) BERME (m) Impairment of assets
(i) EEREZEFRERAME (i)  Impairment of investments in debt and equity

&9 7/=1 securities and other receivables

R ANk SR AN T (BB S R Investments in debt and equity securities (other than

i%—fﬁiﬁ EBEF BB NRER investments in subsidiaries; see note 2(m)(ii)) and

BERE(RWBRARIZIRE other current and non-current receivables that are
|§§é§|\ © BOME EE2(m)i) KA R E stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
fmE IR B N 0 R available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end

WMEBRETRE  WETE of each reporting period to determine whether there

LBERBHRERE - RERN is objective evidence of impairment. Objective

BEEZBREASEEESNU evidence of impairment includes observable data that

T—HExZHEEBEEHNES comes to the attention of the Group about one or

K - more of the following loss events:

— FEEAEERVBEREE —  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— ER&#% wHxRzE — a breach of contract, such as a default or
BREEF| Bk A% ¢ delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— B ARRERESNETT — it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
HBsEA bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— BE-mHB - LEISA — significant changes in the technological,
&iﬁiﬁﬁikm@bﬁﬁ%} market, economic or legal environment that
BIEABITRIFE have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— BAIEREZARE —  significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
ﬁ AEsk KRB TH®R =R of an investment in an equity instrument below

REKA - its cost.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  Forinvestments in associates recognised using
the equity method (see note 2(e)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 2(m)
(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(m)(ii).

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables (continued)

—  For trade and other current receivables and

other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is
made collectively where financial assets carried
at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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2. FESTHHE® 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) BEEREE) (m) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) EEREZEFRERAME (i)  Impairment of investments in debt and equity
W E (E) securities and other receivables (continued)
REEEEIEENEERE Impairment losses are written off against the
s - B E AR AT corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
S 17 M7 3 3 - 5 A FE R BR 3K losses recognised in respect of trade receivables and
FEWERE 7 EMAREEE bills receivable, whose recovery is considered
BIFISN - FERER T - REER doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
HREE 1B FE ST ABEER o i losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an
7N & B 372 A sE Uk O] FE Uk BR TR AY allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
M T E A - BIRE AR A Uk recovery is remote, the amount considered
O] < 58 = 1 FE WK BR 3 K JE Uk 22 irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables
B EEME - maERERFR and bills receivable directly and any amounts held in
BERBZESNEN SRS the allowance account relating to that debt are
HWHEEl o B ZAIRT ABEBERZ reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
RIBEEZBULE - BIFE RE A B previously charged to the allowance account are
HemED - BERAOE e reversed against the allowance account. Other
B N2 BB EM T A& KT changes in the allowance account and subsequent
BIRIE - HEEm PR o recoveries of amounts previously written off directly

are recognised in profit or loss.

(i) EmEERE (ii) Impairment of other assets

A R E R EREMA
BESMPAR - UREATE
ERTHEERENE - kR
R EEERET B
HALEEHD

— U BERRE:

—  EHLWEER

— mRAE:

—  RHBRAANHRE &

— RE®ME-

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  prepaid lease payments;

— intangible assets;

— investments in subsidiaries; and

— investment properties.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use
and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives,
the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

(n)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(o)

(p)

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically negotiated
with a customer for the construction of an asset or a group
of assets, where the customer is able to specify the major
structural elements of the design. The accounting policy for
contract revenue is set out in note 2(w)(ii). When the
outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, contract costs are recognised as an expense by
reference to the state of completion of the contract at the
end of the reporting period. When it is probable that total
contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognised profit less recognised losses and
progress billings, and are presented in the statement of
financial position as the “Amounts due from customers for
contract work” (as an asset) or the “Amounts due to
customers for contract work” (as a liability), as applicable.
Progress billings not yet paid by the customers and
retention are included under “Trade receivables”. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are
presented as “Deposits received"”. Provision is made for
foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated by
management.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(m)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(v)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

(u)

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(u)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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(continued)

2. EESHBE®)

Income tax (continued)
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in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
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(v) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder"”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of
any deferred income.
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2. FESTHHE® 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(v) EREHMBER BERIAREE (v)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
(&) liabilities (continued)
(i) EBBRHEBEERE) (i)  Financial guarantees issued (continued)

(ii)
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(ii)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(v)(iii) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in other payables in respect of that guarantee
i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at the
date of acquisition are initially recognised at fair
value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation where appropriate, and the
amount that would be determined in accordance
with note 2(v)(iii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination that cannot be reliably fair
valued or were not present obligations at the date of
acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note
2(v)(iii).
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(v)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(iii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a

ARt BRI R contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
BAAAE  ELER R . o . o
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(w)

events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue

is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at
the customers’ premises which is taken to be the
point in time when the customer has accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.
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(continued)
(w) WA (&) (w) Revenue (continued)
(i) BRKA (ii) Contract revenue

EEESRMNERENA S When the outcome of a construction contract can be

ERLE estimated reliably:

— BEEERERMKAMN — revenue from a fixed price contract is
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XN B2 4 R T8 51 42 B AR percentage of contract costs incurred to date
KL BIETE - & to estimated total contract costs for the

contract; and

BiREARMGE R TRER S When the outcome of a construction contract cannot

EEt  WMARKRFIEENER be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to

7S 6 1) Uk [B] B AR o the extent of contract costs incurred that it is

probable will be recoverable.
(iii) AREHEHLTIKA (iii) Rental income from operating leases

LT E R e S WA R Rental income receivable under operating leases is

EFHMRENHRANE S recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over

TREETER B &S the periods covered by the lease term, except where

FERERRERESEEEMRS an alternative basis is more representative of the

HF B BB o 8 ETHE pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the

BT R H S B fE e R leased asset. Lease incentives granted are

R R AW SR A recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the

FMMERKEE D - SkARHESEE aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent

AR 2R IR AR AL - rentals are recognised as income in the accounting

period in which they are earned.
(iv) HRHBRA (iv) Service income

ARAG UL ATA AR TS TR (RS FERR,

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.
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2. EESHBE®)

(w) WA (%)
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HE-_Z——F1+-A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w) Revenue (continued)

(v) RE (v) Dividends
— FLEMREZBRERKA —  Dividend income from unlisted investments is
7 B B U BR BRI 2 HE A recognised when the shareholder’s right to
TESI BERERR © receive payment is established.
— LTREZEEKVAR —  Dividend income from listed investments is
ZIREZRER E&ME recognised when the share price of the
o investment goes ex-dividend.
(vi) FIEKA (vi) Interest income
FIEUW A TH R EE B IR B R A Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
HOERER © effective interest method.
(vii) BFHE) (vii) Government grants

BRI EMEEASE S
W2 3 TR 7 8 B B 1T =% i BA Y
2 AR - BT B B 7
ARSLER A H) A FE R o PRI S 47
AREBEELEFX 2 HBINZ
ERXEEHBEE RZsmnNE
mAPERSWA - AR EHA
SEEEKRAZBBRAINZE
ERMRE BTG - RN
WP ERX 2T AIRZEE
BT A HIR N B s EFRRERR o

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.
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2. EESHBE®)

(x)

(y)

SEBRE

FAMINER F1Z R 5 A K IE =R
B LMNERHEZ B EERARER
HREMRZERRE - [EXBER
B R o

PASNBIZE SR R ANGTE 2 R BB E
REBEERRZAZEXRBH - LS
BAHERNARABEIIRZIFERE

ERAE  ARZAR(EEEERH
ZEREITIE
RS

NEZRERE BERIELRBEE
(REELVAKBRRERBHEEHFENIE
BERBKLE) B EREA
VEAMORAEBEEZ R DR - Hity
fERRAIREEE BRI R -

BREBREERAN D MERK
ARZEBEERXES:  BRIAEL
REEERARTERENIHEVA
MEETEETHMMABENE - ®
EEEREERARERERHEN
WIREVB AR D 2t TAEP LEBKERK
B ERRAEGEEHELER
1k -

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x)

(y)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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2. EESHBE®)

(2) PBEEEA
(@) FAKHIIBRKEKEWTE
AT - Bl R BAREER
2l

(i) PEHIRAREAER

(i) AHAEEHES
875

(i) BAREXAEEEA
AZEBERAR -

(b) HEBMTAATERME B3R
RAREE R -

() ZEBEAEEARR-—
SEZRE(AZER
A HB AR &R RN
BRARRILERREE) -

(i) REBAZ ERZH
BATHAERH (KX
SERBZBBALRK
BEBH Mzs &
ENMAZEEZKE)

(i) WMEERBR-F=7

vy XEBAE=7ER%
EEBH ME—EB
AIRZE=ZTTERBZH
BAL-

i

(v)

\;
/

m XY
/I
° Bk ot &R

(Bt >R

ik
=

(vl ZEEXZ(@EF@MAL
2=l g FE R o

(vii)  (a)() 3B BT &L A £ A] ¥ 7%
ERTEBSATZEN
KAZERBITEE
AB

T—HRLEFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(z) Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the group;

has significant influence over the group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the group or the group’s parent.

An entity is related to the group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
group or an entity related to the group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).
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2. EESHBE®)

(2)

(aa)

B (%)

ERALZARK G EBIRZA LR
BRIEMEER FRMA P ERENT
HEBZFEMKE -

2 EW|E

S8 BRI HRRTFREHES
BEEOBE - REERTAEE
BETRERA RN ARE S HE
B RAGERETERD RS
SHE RT3 -

BRI EREELE D HA T AR E A
HUBREZH - BHEZZLLED
HMARMEUNKEERS  BEEMK
RBEE - EETHFEE - EFPER
K E - D HERIIRE RS ARA
MDA R B EREH M E F T E AR
B RIERIER © fir % (85I R ERAILE
B EFTE A LREDIRE - BIATEE

BOtETE -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(2)

(aa)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’'s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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2. EESHBE®)

(ab) EHEE

BEREH

AEBEEETTETAERSRERESR
EMMNEMTA -

REHRBERGER  BBS#ENTA
HEEHBRAMRE  ERERRE
E B RN EETRIREHR HH) K
—OFREERER - ULSN - REHIFIGE
RIRFEELE  AEBKEHRTAE
HHRENRRAEERERENAA
EBEIRSRNES EREEESIN
BB RDERAE SR o

HABETEERM T AREERERR
HERREEXRERIRBEHH A
MIBRR S 2 R EMEFIAD A Z
RRRZHINERBEE - #HITES
BTASBHHEEAABEMELE
MRSNERS I EEMEEKET
RERYEERREET ST R -
R R 2 A FF B RR 02 R BB 20 7
SHER PR

iR IBTRA R H N ERE R EBHRER
—HFEHMEENIGFERAE - A
BaEEREN DR  BIAZIE
EREEREBNVERAREAMR
MH{E

R RIBIRR R 5N EHRE R EHHHER
—HEREEXTRAE  HERE
BRABEESMARZABERATE
o M) 3K 18 Y [R] — B 3 % B HA R ()
WEERF BWMA L) BESEEH

DRREE MR o

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ab) Hedging accounting

Cash flow hedges

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments for cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity
documents the relationship between the hedging
instruments and the hedged item, along with its risk
management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instruments is highly
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows
of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a
hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset
or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future transaction, the
effective portion of any gains or losses on remeasurement
of the derivative financial instrument to fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve.
The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to be included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in
the recognition of a financial asset or a financial liability, the
associated gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss in the same period or periods during which the
asset acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss
(such as when interest income or expense is recognised).
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2. FESTHHE® 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(ab) EHE (&) (ab) Hedging accounting (continued)

RERER (E)

ZRREREHTE - BRATI M IR
REAPTREESN - BRI
EHBAR S RAZE RN ERZ
F—BRsZRPREERENHEE
AR EE

EXBEEHRTAERKTULEE - &
LESRATRRE » KB BSREHIE E OV E AR
HAEREEHREENNBEARS NS
% ERMRTERDBERRZA -

E“%%Eﬁi WARYE AR

R o MBEAEERR S T EETT -
R ARER BRI REEN SR
Eyiny il Sti=i

Cash flow hedges (continued)

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the hedged forecast
transaction affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it is
recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the
cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from

equity to profit or loss immediately.




Y 75 3 3= MY & ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—2——F+-A=f+—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

FE R 3R] R RS R] & B B B 4R
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BB REER
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BAGTEAE 245 2y
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RE€)-REBE1AHET ZAE
&5 (BRMBRERE MR T BRI S 7
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B2 FEFREMBHRERA - AEE R
FEABMEBER D HRERER
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E °

WA R A RS RSB BT
HERINE S e e e
R/ SGAHBREARRBEANELE
Ay -

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL
COMBINATION

New and revised HKFRSs

The Group has adopted the following new and revised Standards,
Amendments and Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs")
that are first effective for the current accounting period.

Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) Related Party Disclosures

Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues
Amendments to HK(IFRIC) Prepayments of a Minimum

-Int 14 Funding Requirement
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments

62 The Group had early applied the partial exemption from the
disclosure requirements for government-related entities for its
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2010.

The application of these new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material effect on the amounts reported in these
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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PE R AT RARIERT & B MR
HEA(EBNHKREER])
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HEEZEFSHHERZEHET

R=ZF—FAA AEEURAKHRESE
(2R BRARI(TRASHK]) FEA
R ¥ 250,000,000 7T ([VE & 1) 89 75 = Y g

FHEE 4 55.64% IXHE - EFAEHE A —RE
FEEMEZIHAR - EEEBAREN
*”7}@3%’*@ Bt o EERT  AEEH &
RERAMBEEEARIER =T —TFR
BER 7%78% B PR AS ©

AEBETHRBRES S RARENE
BNEBAH AESREBEGIOAE
MR B 5HE 5] 5 55 [ HEEHIE 618 F
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=t HLEFERBAHEEAK R
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ERIEMBRAANBE—_Z—FTF+=
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bl AR RAE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL
COMBINATION (continued)

Merger accounting for common control combination

In May 2011, the Group acquired 55.64% of the equity interest
of FMEEEHE (28F) BR2AR] (“Kunming Generator”) by way
of capital contribution of RMB250,000,000 (the “Capital
Contribution”) to Kunming Generator. Kunming Generator is a
company incorporated in the PRC and principally engaged in the
business of manufacturing of small-scale hydro power
equipment. Before the Capital Contribution, the Group’s ultimate
parent company, HE, had previously obtained a controlling equity
interest of 78% in Kunming Generator in 2010.

The Group's acquisition is considered as business combination
involving entities under common control and has been accounted
for using merger accounting method, based on the Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations” issued by the HKICPA for the year ended 31
December 2011. Under the principles of merger accounting, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared as if
Kunming Generator and its subsidiaries have been subsidiaries of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010. As a result, the
comparative consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2010 and
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2010 have therefore been restated, in order to include the results
of the combining entities since the date of which first come
under common control.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL
COMBINATION (continued)

Merger accounting for common control combination
(continued)

The effects of the combination of Kunming Generator on the
Group's consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2010 by line items is as follows:

AEBHSH
—Z—FfF  Combination HeEAE —E-ZF
+=A=+—H of Kunming Elimination +=A=+—H
31.12.2010 Generator adjustments 31.12.2010
AREF T ARBFT AREFT AREF T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(REZIME) (&%)
(previously (restated)
reported)
1gN Revenue 28,815,543 370,770 (14,089) 29,172,224
B Cost of sales (24,665,786) (331,322) 14,689 (24,982,419)
EA Gross profit 4,149,757 39,448 600 4,189,805
HUA FFRA Other revenue and net income 948,150 14,046 (1,343) 960,853
SBEEH Distribution expenses (483,997) (24,792) — (508,789)
EHEEMA Administrative expenses (2,686,530) (68,350) = (2,754,880)
HibERS Other operating expenses (410,931) (406) — (411,337)
BB Finance costs (132,321) (7,966) 743 (139,544)
FE(G & A R R A Share of profits less losses
E R of associates 25,793 — — 25,793
BTt R A Profit before taxation 1,409,921 (48,020) — 1,361,901
FiE Income tax (272,027) 3,077 — (268,950)
REFHMNRLFELE  Profit and total comprehensive
ey ek income for the year 1,137,894 (44,943) — 1,092,951
B2 : Attributable to:
Vi/NETSHESZ=DN Equity shareholders
of the Company 1,024,498 (23,390) — 1,001,108
e g Non-controlling interests 113,396 (21,553) — 91,843
1,137,894 (44,943) = 1,092,951
BREF Earnings per share
AR¥RMB  (ARM¥RMB AR®RVMB

— EALEE

— Basic and diluted

74.4 5 cents 1.7 % cents) — 72.7 7 cents
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL
COMBINATION (continued)

Merger accounting for common control combination
(continued)

The effects of the combination of Kunming Generator on the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as at 31

W December 2010 by line items is as follows:
AHEBRSH
—Z—ZfF  Combination HHTAE —E-ZF
+=-A=+—H of Kunming Elimination +=A=+—H
31.12.2010 Generator adjustments 31.12.2010
ARBF T ARBFT ARBFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(RBE3IE) (2%1))
(previously (restated)
reported)
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
REME Investment properties 4,991 — — 4,991
ME - R KRG Property, plant and equipment 4,815,171 74,942 — 4,890,113
AL HEER Prepaid lease payments 367,348 52,118 — 419,466
EREE Intangible assets 90,321 — — 90,321
REFRIEEE Deferred tax assets 193,878 11,193 — 205,071
NN P 5 Interests in associates 328,490 150 — 328,640
HinIEmeemEE Other non-current financial
assets 35,941 17,696 — 53,637
5,836,140 156,099 — 5,992,239
HEEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 12,562,801 262,094 — 12,824,895
MR X Trade receivables 11,122,830 152,220 (4,987) 11,270,063
=R Bills receivable 980,496 1,587 — 982,083
Hielx - e Rk Other receivables, deposits
AR and prepayments 4,506,705 69,319 (34,228) 4,541,796
TEft TR ER Prepaid lease payments 12,058 1,184 — 13,242
EEARIEYNK Amounts due from customers
for contract work 894,923 — — 894,923
i EEA NG Amounts due from fellow
FRIE subsidiaries 112,920 — — 112,920
TESmIEA Derivative financial
instruments 104,276 — — 104,276
RGBS Trading securities 1,188,000 — — 1,188,000
XRHIRITER Restricted bank deposits — 5,000 = 5,000
BIEARITER Pledged bank deposits 249,294 27,199 — 276,493
RITER Bank deposits 1,090,000 860 — 1,090,860
BERELZEY Cash and cash equivalents 11,425,774 33,545 — 11,459,319
44,250,077 553,008 (39,215) 44,763,870
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FE B #E] R B4 E] & B B 3R 3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HFEA(HFEBHBREER ) HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
RAFEZEFEHERZEHS STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
Rr (&) ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL
COMBINATION (continued)
HEZ4IEHFERzEHE(E) Merger accounting for common control combination
(continued)
AOIEHSH
—Z—ZF  Combination HHAE —E-ZF
+=-A=+—H of Kunming Elimination +=A=+—H
31.12.2010 Generator  adjustments 31.12.2010
ARETIT ARETIT T ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(RAE5IE) (871
(previously (restated)
reported)
REEME CURRENT LIABILITIES
BEiEa RENR Amounts due to customers
for contract work (1,274,290) — — (1,274,290)
JERTBRRX Trade payables (11,746,026) (126,208) 4,987 (11,867,247)
HMEMNR Bt Other payables, accruals and
2 MRS provisions (2,799,289) (53,340) — (2,852,629)
Bl e Deposits received (11,681,047) (214,712) 4,228 (11,891,531)
FANMEES =G Amounts due to fellow
FIH subsidiaries (24,418) — — (24.418)
RIZRRN AR Advance from holding
company (20,478) — — (20,478)
BR—FRNEEZ Borrowings — due within
& one year (507,005) (150,000 30,000 (627,005)
R & Tax payables (815,084) (1,149) — (816,233)
(28,867,637) (545,409) 39,215 (29,373,831)
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 15,382,440 7,599 — 15,390,039
HBRRBEERN TOTAL ASSETS LESS
BmEE CURRENT LIABILITIES 21,218,580 163,698 — 21,382,278
FnEaE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
BliizEe Deposits received (7,592,559 — — (7,692,559)
REER R RIFIE Advance from holding
company (1,042,918) = — (1,042,918)
BN —FRER Borrowings — due after
Z1ER one year (1,549,909) (33,050) — (1,582,959)
(10,185,386) (33,050) = (10,218,436)
BEFRE NET ASSETS 11,033,194 130,648 — 11,163,842
RAR i CAPITAL AND RESERVES
AR 7R Share capital 1,376,806 38,840 (38,840) 1,376,806
i1 Reserves 8,260,977 88,821 (25,156) 8,324,642
RRRBRHFEA Total equity attributable to
R R equity shareholders of
the Company 9,637,783 127,661 (63,996) 9,701,448
FEIE R b Non-controlling interests 1,395,411 2,987 63,996 1,462,394
R TOTAL EQUITY 11,033,194 130,648 — 11,163,842
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FE R FTE] RASIER] BB BB IR 3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
SRR ([ FEMBREAER |) HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
RAEZEFEHER 2GS STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND MERGER
EIRC) ACCOUNTING FOR COMMON CONTROL
COMBINATION (continued)
HEAZEFEHERZEHE (B) Merger accounting for common control combination
(continued)
EHEHEBREANERR _E—ZFE+ = The effects of the combination of Kunming Generator on the
A=+—BZEzZZERAnT : Group's equity as at 31 December 2010 is as follows:
EHEHEH
—Z—ZF  Combination HEEAE —E2-FF
+=BA=+—H of Kunming Elimination +=A=+—H
31.12.2010 Generator adjustments 31.12.2010
ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT ARETTT
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(REFIE) (E51)
(previously (restated)
reported)
&R Share capital 1,376,806 38,840 (38,840) 1,376,806
by Share premium 1,980,295 — — 1,980,295
ETE B A Statutory capital reserve 709,850 72,381 (72,381) 709,850
FEERBAES Statutory surplus reserve 596,936 20,259 (20,259) 596,936
Hivt#E Other reserves 74,421 — 87,055 161,476
R & F Retained profits 4,899,475 (3,819) (19,571) 4,876,085
FER S Non-controlling interests 1,395,411 2,987 63,996 1,462,394

11,033,194 130,648 = 11,163,842
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HE—2——F+-A=f+—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

KA 4.

WA (A EBEERE) BARBRERRK
EmETEFPRAEREHRE ZEWKLE
WEBENBRREARRER 2FE A%

REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the
amounts received and receivable for goods sold and services
rendered by the Group to customers during the year, net of taxes

BFRZWADHTLT : and sales returns, and an analysis of the Group’s revenue for the
year as follows:

2011 2010

ARBT ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

(E7)

(restated)

HEEm Sales of goods 22,539,408 21,473,509

EES RUA Revenue from construction contracts 5,948,374 7,691,199

REHRBWA Revenue from services rendered — 7,516

BE—ZEZ——F+=-A=+—HILEE -
MEXFHEAEEFETHRSBANEE
FTEAEBWANI10% (ZBE—FF : &) o

28,487,782 29,172,224

For the year ended 31 December 2011, there was no customer
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group's
revenue (2010: Nil).




5t 755 R 2% B R )

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

HE-Z——F+-A=+—RHILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

HAWARFRA 5. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME
2011 2010
AR¥T T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&%)
(restated)
HAgl A Other revenue
BB EIENESEHEWRA Interest income from held-to-maturity bonds 6,085 —
H A F B UA Other interest income 246,160 277,728
FURAREBEFAERZCREE Total interest income on financial assets not
2 HEF B U A at fair value through profit or loss 252,245 277,728
AEWA Compensation income 3,181 60,617
R MFEEFZREWMA Dividend income from trading securities 50,000 —
E LR EF 2R BIA Dividend income from unlisted equity securities 7,358 1,120
R B BT A B PRC government subsidy 380,675 335,603
e WA Rental income 7,145 2,289
HidA Other income 92,131 26,628
792,735 703,985
HeibF A (&18) Other net income/(loss)
LEYE - BB MKEREFRE Net gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 3,850 6,122
HERE TS Net gain on disposal of investment properties - 550
EERL S IH & m A Net profit from sale of scrap materials
and others 839 1,461
BB A ml Uk e (P 3% 36) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) 389 150,349
HER B HEWES Gain on disposal of trading securities 7,606 —
HE FHEMERE W Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments 1,174 —
TEEHREHEZ fTEEMIAZ Fair value gains on derivative financial
A EERE instruments not qualifying as hedges 78,704 104,276
Y% - BRE R E R EEE R Reversal of impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment — 1,110
RS EBEHFAREBEEE Fair value losses on trading securities (394,512) (7,000)
(301,950) 256,868

490,785 960,853
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6. BR®BLAIER 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BRAE AR FIAEIIBR (FEA) AT B IE - Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
2011 2010
ARBT ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&%)
(restated)
(a) BBEXZH (a) Finance costs
RITREMBERFEZH ¢ Interest on bank and other borrowings:
— ARAFALIER — wholly repayable within five years 60,183 134,135
— ARAFEEEER — not wholly repayable within five
years 17,690 18,690
FEA AR EEFAERZ Total interest expenses on financial
CRIBEZAN ST liabilities not at fair value through
profit or loss 77,873 152,825
B RERIREREARL Less: interest expense capitalised into
ZA B construction in progress (5,321) (13,281)
72,552 139,544
NEFEE R H fE ATy — R & IR Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general
BES WABRNMEFEERE40% (ZF—F borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a capitalisation rate
F478%)EBELEREEN - of 6.40% (2010: 4.78%) per annum to expenditure on qualifying

assets.
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6. PBRTANEF @)

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

2011 2010
ARET ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&%)
(restated)
(b) BIRA* (b) Staff costs*
BETIRA(BREZNEZHE) Staff costs including directors’ and
(PffF5E8) supervisors’ emoluments (note 8) 1,569,233 1,364,342
RIRAE I ET B HE5R Post-employment benefit scheme
contributions 301,251 262,587
B THAKA Total staff costs 1,870,484 1,626,929
(c) HfEE (c) Other items
REREE Allowance for doubtful debts 618,868 574,012
FEREERE Allowance for inventories 115,526 134,867
E A Amortisation of intangible assets* 19,110 12,993
TEfT T ih 70 & R g Amortisation of prepaid lease payments* 11,922 13,242
EirE Auditors’ remuneration 2,850 2,520
FaEKA Cost of inventories® 22,777,148 24,997,108
WEMETE Depreciation for investment properties* 181 181
M - BERZETE Depreciation for property, plant and
equipment? 527,497 465,459
BT ES Net foreign exchange loss 113,123 95,834
B EE 2 B ERRERE Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets - 3,945
FREHE IR E 2 BB ERE Impairment loss recognised in respect of
available-for-sale investments 1,000 —
SRR (B B 18 B Reversal of impairment loss on doubtful
debts (42,695) =
VI - BB MR e Property, plant and equipment written off - 5,970
MEFAZEER Research and development expenses 339,617 658,630

FEXRASERBE TRA - T8 ki
HFAZ A £ AR 1,636,299,000 7T (=
T T F(EEN): ARE
1,404,128,0007T) * & FINFIA _EX
BIEZSHER 2 sk 6(b) BB
R SIAREE -

# Cost of inventories includes RMB1,636,299,000 (2010
(restated): RMB1,404,128,000) relating to staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation expenses, which amount is also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above or in note 6(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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SEeWERZERHE INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT
(a) HmEWBRZBIERE: (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:
2011 2010
AR¥T T AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&%)
(restated)
B EABE 1R Current tax
RS PRC enterprise income tax
— NFFERE — provision for the year 370,078 362,131
— AR E (%) 5HR — (over)-provision in respect of prior years (45,607) (28,934)
324,471 333,197
IEFEBL IR Deferred tax
A 2= B A A ] (FiRE15) Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (note 15) (67,785) (64,247)
256,686 268,950

R-ZBBAF+—A=+—R ARAK
RER/RTEMEE - RER_TZLF
ZATABEMZHBECEMSEE - &
AABEZE——FTATEARBRZ=FAN
ZX15% HEBEEFE o

REEBRFELHBE AR ZZ15% 2 FHEH
R ZERTISFLLASN + iz pA P B B H i B 8
RRAREERF G FIRHE25% (=T
— T4 : 26% ) BR B EFTER o

On 21 November 2008, the Company was named as one of the
High and New Technology Enterprise (= #T#fli>%). According
to the PRC Law on Enterprise Income Tax promulgated on 16
March 2007, the Company is entitled to a concessionary rate of
enterprise income tax at 15% over 3 years, beginning on 17
October 2011.

Except for certain subsidiaries which are subject to an enterprise
income tax rate of 15%, other subsidiaries located in the PRC are
subject to the PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 25% (2010:
25%) on its assessable profits.
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7. FRERBERZAEHE @ 7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)
(b) RERAFERFTEZHEIHEEE (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
MZEERIMT - profit at applicable tax rates:
2011 2010
ARBT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&31)
(restated)
BRBE AT A Profit before taxation 1,639,960 1,361,901
RE AR R E 2 FE Tax at applicable tax rate 195,119 179,254
FEAG Bk R B e AR s 18 Tax effect of share of profits less losses
HBRIEH 2 of associates (11,780) (3,665)
Y EE A O 0 Tax effect of non-taxable income (136,449) (81,014)
TAFIF S B R A R 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 250,328 163,031
{5 FA LA BT S R FE R R TH B 18 Utilisation of tax losses not previously
VB recognised (39,322) (25,175)
RIERHIBEEBHHIEHNRE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 44,397 65,453
AR E % 5HiR Over-provision in respect of prior years (45,607) (28,934)
BEREMRIES N Actual tax expense 256,686 268,950
(c) BEBERBGER-_ZEZNE+—AH (¢) According to Circular Guoshuihan [2008] No. 897 “Notice
7N B 24 2 BF K [2008] 55 897 55 8 on the issue about withholding Enterprise Income Tax on
REEERMCERAEIHBRIEERD the dividends paid by Chinese resident enterprises to
AR IR BRI AR ER overseas non-resident enterprises H-share holders” issued
ERABENBR)Y FEEELEM by State Administration of Taxation on 6 November 2008,
EHONHRIEERCYERE R —TE where a Chinese resident enterprise pays dividends for the
NFEHUABRFEREE  EIZ10% year of 2008 or any year thereafter to its H-share holders
R BRI ERER o I - which are overseas non-resident enterprises, it shall
ARARN —ZEZNFHARFER withhold the enterprise income tax on the basis of 10% of
B BR10% HH =R & the dividends. In accordance with this circular, the
EMER Company would withhold the enterprise income tax with

tax rate of 10% when it pays dividends for the year of 2008
or any year thereafter to its overseas non-resident
enterprise H-shares holders.




B 5 3R R B & ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—2——F+-A=f+—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

8. EEREEHM 8. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION
BB EBHERXGERARFZS TR Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
By (T EmAR BN REE D RUEHISE 161 1§ pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
WEZAFEESRESTHMAT ¢ Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as
follows:
BHKER
! TR
HiEFE Contributions
Salaries to retirement
e and other benefits B
Fees benefits schemes Total
AR%T AR%T AREF T ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
- 2011
HITES Executive directors
REEXE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang - 642 18 660
[Elakipitas Mr. Shang Zhong-fu - 578 18 596
- 1,220 36 1,256
FHTES Non-executive directors
ERELE Mr. Gong Jing-kun - - - _
PaLE Mr. Zou Lei - _ _ _
BoftZ S E Mr. Duan Hong-yi - - - _
BYFHTES Independent non-executive directors
BREELE Mr. Sun Changsji - - - _
ERERT Ms. Li He-jun - - - _
B birte Mr. Yu Bo - - - _
BAEAE Mr. Jia Cheng-bing - - - _
ZEERE Mr. Liu Deng-ging - - - _
Ex Supervisors
BRot 4 Mr. Chen Guang - 209 18 227
TEREE Mr. Wang Zhi-sen - — — _
BB AL Mr. Gao Xu-guang - 210 18 228
EFELT Ms. Lu Chun-lian - 280 18 298
RMA%E Mr. Xu-Er-ming - - - _
— 699 54 753

- 1,919 90 2,009
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8. EEREEHM 8. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERAT'ON (continued)

RIRRER

T&® SRl

Hi4gF|E  Contributions

Salaries  to retirement
[l and other benefits Feak
Fees benefits schemes Total
ARETTT ARETIT ARETTT ARETTT
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000

—E-Ef 2010
BITES Executive directors
REEXE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang — 561 16 577
BRI A Mr. Shang Zhong-fu — 467 16 483
— 1,028 32 1,060
FHTES Non-executive directors
ERELE Mr. Gong Jing-kun = — _ _
PaLE Mr. Zou Lei — — _ _
BostEAEs Mr. Duan Hong-yi — — _ _
BYFHTES Independent non-executive directors
BREELE Mr. Sun Changsji — — _ _
EREZT Ms. Li He-jun — — _ _
TAkE Mr. Yu Bo — — — _
BAEAE Mr. Jia Cheng-bing — — _ _
ZEERE Mr. Liu Deng-ging — — _ _
Ex Supervisors
Ry SR Mr. Chen Guang — 172 16 188
FEREE Mr. Wang Zhi-sen — — — _
=BXEE Mr. Gao Xu-guang — 148 16 164
EEELT Ms. Lu Chun-lian — 258 16 274
RZBA%E Mr. Xu-Er-ming — — _ _
— 578 48 626

= 1,606 80 1,686
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EEREEHFM

AEE BEEFTHEEHEXRNERE
EAFHMW AEELBAARAESTRE
EXNEHH  ERREMARMBAEE
Z BERY SR SRR S

bERRHMALS  HP 1B (=F—F
F2R)MBARARNESE  RENFH
WMERE - HBRAR (2T —FF :38)A
THOF MBS

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
REMUNERATION (continued)

During the year, no director or supervisor has waived or agreed
to waive any emolument and no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors or supervisors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

Of the 5 individuals with the highest emoluments, 1 (2010: 2) is
also director of the Company whose emoluments are disclosed
above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
remaining 4 (2010: 3) individuals are as follows:

2011 2010

AR¥T R AREBFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TEEEMERNE Salaries and other benefits 2,463 1,401
RIREFET B R Contributions to post-employment benefit

schemes 72 48

2,535 1,449

EeFMH4E(ZE—FF :38) ALH
HINEEDRNT

The emoluments of the 4 (2010: 3) individuals with the highest

emoluments are within the following bands:

2011 2010

750 T =4 1,000,000 7T HK$Nil-HK$1,000,000 4 3
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BRERN
(a) EXSREF

EXGREFN TIZAFEARA R LR
BHBEBABGEGINOARE
1,228,661,0007L( = & — T F( &
7)) AR#1,001,108,0007T) & E
TATE B R OME FE Y K
1,376,806,000f%( = & — & F:
1,376,806,000 %) 5T & -

(b) #BEEREF

HE_T——F+-A=+—HK=
T—TF+ - A=+—HINRESF
B BEERTETE SN T AR
EEERATBERNGRAFER -

7 BB

RNEEIREM MR FIBI D EIREER -
BEASEFZELERRERAARARAES
EHMEHEBERD B R FEBERRTH—H
ZAMBHRENZHRARN - NEEEA TR
B R ¥ & D EIEL 2% - AR E WL EAGE
A& & D & 5T ABKIA T ER AR E 5
&b e

e KNEIHR — BUENEIH
g

. IKEEWRE — REKEEH

&
- TERF  — RREETE
AR
.« WRRERE < — REENWR
#R MRERME
©  XERERE — WETERE

it e K Bt

10.

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of approximately RMB1,228,661,000 (2010
(restated): RMB1,001,108,000) and on the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,376,806,000 (2010:
1,376,806,000) in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, and
diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by business lines (products and services). In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the directors of the Company, the Group’s chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following five reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

° Main thermal power — manufacturing of main
equipment thermal power equipment.

o Main hydro power — manufacturing of main hydro
equipment power equipment.

° Engineering services — provision of engineering

services for power stations.

° Ancillary equipment — manufacturing of ancillary
equipment for power
stations.

° AC/DC motors and — manufacturing of AC/DC

others motor and others.
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10. DI/ E &)

(a)

DREE  BEERER

E‘JE.:H%"*B?%EE&”*BF'EJ DBECEIRM
C AEEESERU T EEREERT
ENRZFEE BERARE

i

ity
EU

DEEERIEMEER - ﬂﬂ?ﬁ%&
MEBVEE - MHEREE AR 2
IERBDERMEE RHIEEH
AT A EERBEEERIME
XBEEZE=RIN c HHBEEREE

R EETEERIEE TBNEE L
FERTBR X ~ FERTFRIA R E A E TR
EErBARES  BliRe  BES
FEMFKARESBEEEE 28
O MR RLIEBR SN o

2@ BZWARFBALTIZE
ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂZ%%&ﬁi&%%ﬂé
EEE 2T B -

BEDMENRIRABRELLE &

/(FEETE T RABAEBEE R
(B8] HAEE 25, (B
1B KRB IEEEBAEL DB Z
HE - RS R REMRER
MEWA  E=ZREHEME - FAH
B8 MBS ARE R b
TTERAAR - RAXHTEDEERS
EDE o DERHEZ EBTIZEH
HETINBALTZBUFTEERLE
TERY

WE D ERZ B AT BUR B R 2 AT AR
SEZ S BRERMER -

10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's
directors monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of interests in associates,
other non-current financial assets, trading securities,
derivative financial instruments, deferred tax assets and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include trade
payables, other payables, accruals and provisions, deposits
received and amounts due to customers for contract work
attributable to the manufacturing and sales activities of the
individual segments and borrowings managed directly by
the segments, with the exception of income tax payable.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “adjusted
operating profit/(loss)”. To arrive at “adjusted operating
profit/(loss)”, the Group's profit/(loss) are further adjusted
for items not specifically attributed to individual segments,
such as share of profits less losses of associates, interest
income, directors’ and auditors’ remuneration, expected
loss, finance costs and other head office or corporate
administration costs. Taxation charge is not allocated to
reporting segments. Inter-segment sales are priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for similar

orders.

The accounting policies of the reporting segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
2.




B 5 3R R B A ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—2——F+-A=+—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

10. 7 BB E (@) 10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(a) #EWEM BEREE(E) (a)

REBE—ZT——F+_A=+—HK
—E-TF+_A=1T—HILWMAE
FREAXAKEESREREAEEA
HED I ERHAMEREIRD I KT

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group's directors for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 December 2011 and

HEERBEWOT - 2010 is set out below.
—E— 2011
BYIR
KEXH KEXH R EUERA
R #f%  Engineering BERE REREH
Main thermal Main hydro services for Ancillary KEM
power power power equipmentfor AC/DC motors @t
equipment equipment stations power stations and others Total
AR®TR ARBTR ARET R ARETR AR®TR AR®T R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
REINPER ZHA Revenue from external
customers 17,295,041 3,162,786 5,104,920 719,100 2,205,935 28,487,782
HERBA Inter-segment revenue 3,247,639 - - - - 3,247,639
AREDBRA Reportable segment revenue 20,542,680 3,162,786 5,104,920 719,100 2,205,935 31,735,421
AR D EEF Reportable segment profit 3,998,910 958,992 278,315 286,505 343,872 5,866,594
W% BERRETE  Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 372,050 95,720 7,796 5,450 46,481 527,497
RENMETE Depreciation of investment
properties - - - - 181 181
B EERH Amortisation of intangible
assets 10,270 236 - 499 8,105 19,110
B+ E Tk Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments 7,854 2,778 48 183 1,059 11,922
RRERE Allowances for doubtful debts 444,860 77,254 45,153 16,754 34,847 618,868
FIEHA Interest income (113,616) (31,265) (97,455) (3,917) (5,992) (252,245)
FB Interest expenses 19,053 5,798 47,503 198 - 72,552
REREFBERRE Reversal of impairment loss
on doubtful debts (14,246) (9,709) (18,257) - (483) (42,695)
HREPHEE Reportable segment assets 28,467,215 4,772,229 3,394,865 712,866 3,694,413 41,041,588
REEIERHHEEE  Additions to non-current
0 segment assets
during the year 1,033,470 208,445 25,955 11,246 470,860 1,749,976
AHEIHEE Reportable segment
liabilities 24,528,940 3,520,911 3,973,575 752,172 2,165,011 34,940,609
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10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

DEPELE - BERERE(B) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
—E—TF 2010
S
NEEH KEEZH R BB
& & Engineering REZE RETERK
Main thermal Main hydro services for Ancillary REM
power power power equipment for  AC/DC motors et
equipment equipment stations  power stations and others Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(Z5) (&E31)) (Z7)
(restated) (restated) (restated)
REINFER ZHBA Revenue from external
customers 17,984,152 2,599,998 5,060,211 919,028 2,608,835 29,172,224
DB A Inter-segment revenue 3,655,382 — — — — 3,655,382
AREDBRA Reportable segment revenue 21,639,534 2,599,998 5,060,211 919,028 2,608,835 32,827,606
AR E D R Reportable segment profit 2,629,949 619,133 170,478 307,563 558,336 4,285,459

W BEEREHE

RENZFE
EVAESE

BN TR
RIEEER

L ON

MEX
THREIBEE

AERIERY DA
RSN

THEDHAE

Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment 314,336 73,258 11,904 8,933 57,028 465,459
Depreciation of investment

properties — — — — 181 181
Amortisation of intangible

assets 11,038 271 — 568 1,116 12,993
Amortisation of prepaid lease

payments 7,097 2,400 41 234 3,470 13,242
Allowances for doubtful debts 441,736 50,959 (1,079) 18,546 63,850 574,012
Interest income (118,072) (31,700 (110,386) (3,982) (13,588) (277,728)
Interest expenses 31,627 7,191 96,514 517 3,795 139,544
Reportable segment assets 26,426,075 3,426,207 3,853,640 969,260 3,937,948 38,613,130

Additions to non-current
segment assets
during the year 638,313 82,952 31,797 12,808 310,413 1,076,283

Reportable segment
liabilities 26,382,460 3,176,327 3,803,714 1,060,681 2,731,652 37,154,834
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10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) TAHESTKA  BEREEERERE (b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or
ZH R loss, assets and liabilities
2011 2010
AR¥T R AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&%)
(restated)
KA Revenue
BEEGE T ON Reportable segment revenue 31,735,421 32,827,606
H5H D FPREUA Elimination of inter-segment revenue (3,247,639) (3,655,382)
A EER Consolidated turnover 28,487,782 29,172,224
el Profit
A] 3R 45 5 50 4 K Reportable segment profit 5,866,594 4,285,459
S ) 20 R A Elimination of inter-segment profits (155,960) (95,654)
KERNEBINPEE 2 Al #hE Reportable segment profit derived from
7 2B ) Group's external customers 5,710,634 4,189,805
B Finance costs (72,552) (139,544)
A EHA Interest income 252,245 277,728
JFE(RE & N F)m AR E 18 Share of profits less losses of associates 78,534 25,793
RBUEBHFN AR EEBELX Fair value loss on trading securities (394,512) (7,000)
FEHRE1E Expected loss (814,924) (248,402)
REED BB RCEER Unallocated head office and
corporate expenses (3,119,465) (2,736,479)
RE BB AR A Consolidated profit before taxation 1,639,960 1,361,901
BE Assets
AlSRE D EEE Reportable segment assets 41,041,588 38,613,130
A /N P Interests in associates 546,899 328,640
EEFIBE E Deferred tax assets 277,366 205,071
B IEnE o EE Other non-current financial assets 332,722 53,637
PTHESRMT A Derivative financial instruments 92,641 104,276
R P MEE S5 Trading securities 2,001,530 1,188,000
REEDHBB R CXEEE Unallocated head office and corporate assets 6,103,305 10,263,355
GEMEE Consolidated total assets 50,396,051 50,756,109
=N Liabilities
AR ESEAE Reportable segment liabilities 34,940,609 37,154,834
ER SR Income tax payables 635,239 406,831
TEEmIT A Derivative financial instruments 32,671 —
RIZIZA B FIE Advance from holding company 1,172,623 1,063,396
REepEETREEAR Unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities 1,091,675 967,206
GEBEE Consolidated total liabilities 37,872,817 39,592,267
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10. DI/ E &)

(c)

it B & R

TR BEARERBIINEFEP W
ARKEB TIEEIFRBEEME
M2 BF - REETFAELRE
Pt RIS S B ik = PR
AEBZIIRDEEREME  BFE

R REWE AN LHHEE
R EBPEERNEZE QR 2
BTERERTAMRERREE
RERBERE B E 2 PR THE R
REBEMRZMENE BEVEE)
RBEEBEN (BT EE) - A
SERBE QR ERRIRZBER
Bl LB o

10. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(c)

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of the
Group's revenue from external customers and the Group’s
non-current assets specified below. The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered. The
Group's non-current assets, which include property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, prepaid lease
payments, intangible assets and interests in associates,
and exclude financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
The geographical location of the Group non-current assets
are based on the physical location of the asset under
consideration in case of tangible assets and the location of
the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of
intangible assets. In the case of interests in associates, it is
the location of operations of such associates.

REMBEF ZBWA

Revenues from external FRBEE
customers Non-current assets

2011 2010 2011 2010
AR¥TR ARBFIT AR¥T T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&751) (&51)
(restated) (restated)
PR A (FRAED) PRC (place of domicile) 22,512,472 23,872,730 7,046,385 5,733,531
AR RSN Overseas 5,975,310 5,299,494 — —
28,487,782 29,172,224 7,046,385 5,738,531
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11. BREWE 11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
INEE The Group
AREBT T
RMB'000
5% Cost
RZZE—ZF—HF—H At 1 January 2010 334,860
H e Disposals (8,337)
FHiRHENB AR MEUEER (M3£36) Derecognised through disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) (320,808)
RZE—ZTF+_-_H=+—H - At 31 December 2010, 1 January 2011 and
—T—F—-—H-HK 31 December 2011
—E——F+-A=+—H 5,715
At TERREEE Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
R-ZE—ZF—H—H At 1 January 2010 86,136
IR E A Charge for the year 181
H & B B¢ O] Written back on disposals (1,113)
& B B A AR B [ (B RE36) Wiritten back on disposals of subsidiaries (note 36) (84,480)
RZE—ZTF+_A=1—H At 31 December 2010 724
RZZE—F—HF—H At 1 January 2011 724
NEEHEAE Charge for the year 181
R-—E=——&+=-—HB=+—H At 31 December 2011 905
RREFE Carrying amount
R-B——%+Z-A=1+—H At 31 December 2011 4,810
RNZB—ZTFE+-_A=+—8H At 31 December 2010 4,991

(a) EBEZ=ERRREE
EEEEQAEERS °

HIREREME 2R (a)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the

investment properties approximate their fair value at the

end of the reporting period.
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(b)

(c)

(d)
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BREMEZREEDIMAT

11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(b)

The analysis of carrying amount of investment properties is

as follows:

2011 2010
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
RIEA AL EF R AE i Land situated in the PRC held under:

FRERFRAY Medium-term leases 4,810 4,991
RS HATA A Short-term leases — —
4,810 4,991

DEEHEHEE 2 REYE (c) Investment properties leased out under operating

AEENGEHERHRENE - &
UHE-RVLRP—ERF - L
TEHHRRERNEERE  ERNME
BRBAEHNEE  RBEMEER
EHRAMEE -

AEERBET A HEHELERENKK

leases

The Group leased out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 5 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are re-negotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group's future minimum lease payments under non-

BIEARAES AT - cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:
2011 2010
ARBT T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
1FEAA Within 1 year - 115
1F A ESFR After 1 year but within 5 years - 207
5 After 5 years - —
— 322

BREYEER (d) Pledge of investment properties

R-ZT—F+=-A=+—Q1 ' &5k
AEAREBET(ZE—ZE: AR
#54,227,00070) 2 & THREMED
EHERAEEIRITRE 2HF R
B KIEES0

At 31 December 2011, certain investment properties with
a total carrying amount of RMBNil (2010: RMB4,227,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group's bank
borrowings, details of which are set out in note 30.
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12. Y% - BMERKE 12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

INEE The Group
G- £E
BERE PEL]
R Furniture, EHTA BRI
REEES Plantand fixtures and Motor  Construction @zt
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
ARETT ARBFT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(EZ51)) (&31) (&31) (&31) (&31) (&31)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
B Cost
RZE-ZF—-f—H At 1 January 2010 1,799,423 3,984,944 342,989 282,053 1,091,951 7,501,360
BRREHBARMAE Additions through acquisition of
(GEXD) subsidiaries (note 35) 21,026 53,866 3,358 2,983 197 81,430
RE Additions 34,308 60,139 54,038 19,465 860,685 1,028,635
SRR S EE Transfer upon completion 109,176 385,694 20,119 31,956 (546,945) =
BRHENBARNMIE Derecognised through disposal
B (F3E36) of subsidiaries (note 36) (2,996) (1,599) (2,596) (3,117) = (10,308)
e Disposals (1,940) (51,277) (11,667) (13,083) = (77,967)
R-ZZE—Z5+_H At 31 December 2010 (restated)
=+—H(&%) 1,958,997 4,431,767 406,241 320,257 1,405,888 8,523,150
RZZ——F—F—H(EF|) At1January 2011 (restated) 1,958,997 4,431,767 406,241 320,257 1,405,888 8,623,150
AE Additions 3,693 115,131 52,296 23,686 1,332,425 1,527,231
SERK BB Transfer upon completion 513,740 684,226 30,467 19,545 (1,247,978) —
BBRHENBARMRE Derecognised through disposal
TR (7 36) of subsidiaries (note 36) (14,728) (17,106) (1,431) (3,544) — (36,809)
e Disposals (743) (87,300) (7,745) (25,890) = (121,678)
R=ZZ2——F+=A=t—H At31December 2011 2,460,959 5,126,718 479,828 334,054 1,490,335 9,891,894
A TERAERE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss
RZE—-ZF—-f—H At 1 January 2010 644,221 2,230,323 183,856 177,238 4,468 3,240,106
KEERE Charge for the year 68,887 318,174 42,676 35,722 - 465,459
REEERE Reversal of impairment loss — (1,108) 2) - — (1,110)
HENBARERD Write back on disposals
(HizE36) of subsidiaries (note 36) (619) (1,196) (2,281) (1,958) = (6,054)
HEREME Write back on disposals (1,404) (41,621) (11,304) (11,035) = (65,364)
RZB-ZE+-F=+—H  At31 December 2010
(231) (restated) 711,085 2,504,572 212,945 199,967 4,468 3,633,037
RZE——F—A—H(EJI) At1January 2011 (restated) 711,085 2,504,572 212,945 199,967 4,468 3,633,037
KEERE Charge for the year 86,926 345,467 57,978 37,126 — 527,497
SOk S Transfer upon completion — 745 — — (745) =
HERBARREE Write back on disposals
(Fr3E36) of subsidiaries (note 36) (3,449) (7,151) (1,261) (2,958) — (14,819)
HERED Write back on disposals (143) (23,523) (7,344) (22,755) = (53,765)
R=ZB——F+=-HA=1+—H At31December 2011 794,419 2,820,110 262,318 211,380 3,723 4,091,950
REFE Carrying amount
R=ZB——%+=-HA=1+—H At31December 2011 1,666,540 2,306,608 217,510 122,674 1,486,612 5,799,944
RZE-FF+-A=+—H At31December2010
(231) (restated) 1,247,912 1,927,195 193,296 120,290 1,401,420 4,890,113
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

ARNF The Company
B £E
BERE PEL ]
R Furniture, EHIA ERIE
REEES Plant and fixtures and Motor  Construction @i
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B Cost
RZE-ZF—-f—H At 1 January 2010 532,969 184,000 24,454 6,816 350,659 1,098,898
AE Additions 9,696 2,156 4,744 1,023 91,396 109,015
e Disposals (536) (6,922) = (498) = (7,956)
M=Z—FE+-A=1+—H  At31 December 2010 542,129 179,234 29,198 7,341 442,055 1,199,957
RZF——%—f—H At 1 January 2011 542,129 179,234 29,198 7,34 442,055 1,199,957
AE Additions 734 61,818 1,169 1,604 112,558 177,883
e Disposals (15,370) (63,407) (26) (1,191) = (79,994)
R Transfer 373,609 82,169 5,332 — (461,110) =
R-ZE——F+=-A=+—H At 31December 2011 901,102 259,814 35,673 1,754 93,503 1,297,846
BATEREESE Accumulated depreciation

and impairment loss

RZZE-T5-f—-H At 1 January 2010 47,120 3218 5,553 3,633 - 59,524
REERE Charge for the year 17,634 25,085 540 724 — 43,883
HERED Write back on disposals (692) (92) — (483) — (1,267)
R-ZE-—FF+-A=+—H At31December 2010 63,962 28,211 6,093 3,874 — 102,140
RZE——F—-f—-H At 1 January 2011 63,962 28,211 6,093 3874 — 102,140
REERE Charge for the year 29,844 23,742 4,975 1,284 — 59,845
HERREME Write back on disposals (3,530) (669) (25) (1,062) = (5,286)
RZZ——F+=-A=1+—H At31December 2011 90,276 51,284 11,043 4,096 - 156,699
RERE Carrying amount
R=Z——F+=-HA=+—H At31December 2011 810,826 208,530 24,630 3,658 93,503 1,141,147
MW=Z—FFE+-A=1+—H  At31December 2010 478,167 151,023 23,105 3,467 442,055 1,097,817
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12. Y% - BERZE @)

AEBRARANETFTHURTE -

R_ZE——F+-_A=+—0 K&EEK
H)FED RN A ARY 6,389,000 (=F
—ZF (&F5) : AR¥ 14,415,00070) R A
REBZT(ZZE—ZF(F3): ARE
41,336,000 7T) K95 TEFR#ERE H 5IA
EAREEER —MBTRENKR - F15
FRHIEES0 ©

N AEBEBmFEORARE
15,712,000 (= —ZF : ARBZT)
E TEFREBE D R — REERFAM
ENE - R=ZT—FF - AEEKRAFE
45 AR 326,000 (E) & TEF
ES R —RERFAMENR  EBERZ
T —— FEMBRINA - BAZRERFA
B REIEE N 7t 38

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The Group's and the Company’s buildings are situated in the
PRC.

As at 31 December 2011, certain buildings and machinery of the
Group with carrying amount of approximately RMB6,389,000
(2010 (restated): RMB14,415,000) and RMBNIl (2010 (restated):
RMB41,336,000), respectively, were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. Details of which are set
out in note 30.

In addition, certain machinery of the Group with carrying amounts
of approximately RMB15,712,000 (2010: RMBNIl) were detained
due to a pending litigation. In year 2010, certain buildings of the
Group with carrying amounts of approximately RMB326,000
(restated) were detained and was released in 2011 due to a
pending litigation. Details of the pending litigation are set out in
note 38.
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13. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

INEE The Group
AREETF T
RMB'000
(&%)
(restated)
s Cost
RZZ—FTF—-H—H At 1 January 2010 490,535
BRBEN BRI mAE (FFE35) Additions through acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) 54,486
NE Additions 39,270
R-ZE—ZFF+—-A=+—H(&F%) At 31 December 2010 (restated) 584,291
RZZ——F—H—RH (&3] At 1 January 2011 (restated) 584,291
NE Additions 30,339
HEFT B A 7l MmEUE#ER (M 36) Derecognised through disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) (7,493)
R=B——F+=H=+—H At 31 December 2011 607,137
E-GE: Accumulated amortisation
RZZE—ZTF—H—H At 1 January 2010 138,341
NEFHEE (FY)) Amortisation for the year (restated) 13,242
RN-ZE—ZTF+=-A=+—8 (&%) At 31 December 2010 (restated) 151,583
RZT——F—HA—H(E3)) At 1 January 2011 (restated) 151,583
AR E G Amortisation for the year 11,922
HEME A R mER (M:E36) Write back on disposals of subsidiaries (note 36) (1,290)
R=2B——F+=H=+—H At 31 December 2011 162,215
FREFE Carrying amount
R=ZB——F+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2011 444,922
R_ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H(F%) At 31 December 2010 (restated) 432,708
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13. LB EFT @)
AEE ()

AEEWEMN LHEER AP EEARRE
HERAE RS B LI R A o TR i AE
EFREREERFTESNAT

13. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

The Group (continued)

The Group's prepaid lease payments represent land use rights
held under medium-term lease in the PRC. They are analysed for
reporting purpose as follows:

2011 2010

ARET T AREF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

(&%)

(restated)

meE D Current portion 11,922 13,242
IERENE D Non-current portion 433,000 419,466
444,922 432,708

R_ZTE——F+-_A=+—0 KEEK
HEFEA A ARE 25,363,000 L(ZFE—F
(&%) : AR¥51,851,0007T) WIER £
WHRERERIEASEER —RBTME
R - SFIBERMIEES0 ©

gEoh - REBBERFENARARBS T (=
Z—ZTF(F5) : ARM1,452,0007T) 4
ETEM T AERE S R —RERFA
MEMNH - ZEENLTHBAERER=-Z
—— FEERNA - BEZRERFAD
FHIEFAHIFESS o

As at 31 December 2011, certain prepaid lease payments of the
Group with carrying amount of approximately RMB25,363,000
(2010 (restated): RMB51,851,000) were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group. Details of which
are set out in note 30.

In addition, certain prepaid lease payments of the Group with
carrying amount of approximately RMBNil (2010 (restated):
RMB1,452,000) were detained due to a pending litigation. These
prepaid lease payments were released in 2011. Details of the
pending litigation are set out in note 38.
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13. AN THBEEFT @

13. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

AA T The Company
AREEFIT
RMB'000
D% Cost
R-E—ZFF—H—H —ZT—TF At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010, 1 January 2011
+=-—B=+—H8 —ZT—%—HF—H and 31 December 2011
E=—E——#+=-A=+—A el
EGE: Accumulated amortisation
RZE—ZTF—HA—H At 1 January 2010 4,515
N F S Amortisation for the year 853
RZZE—ZTF+_-_A=+—8H At 31 December 2010 5,368
R-ZE—F—H—H At 1 January 2011 5,368
N g Amortisation for the year 854
R=ZB——F+=H=+—H At 31 December 2011 6,222
BREFE Carrying amount
R=-ZB——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2011 37,569
RZBE—ZF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2010 38,423

RNA R FEN L3 &R R BEIEARE
PHEIEAORE R LI E R - RS T
EFRBEREERFESNMAT ¢

The Company’s prepaid lease payments represent land use rights
held under medium-term lease in the PRC. They are analysed for
reporting purpose as follows:

2011 2010

AR¥ET T ARETIT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

REE D Current portion 854 854
FEmENEB D Non-current portion 36,715 37,569
37,569 38,423
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14. B EE 14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
INEE The Group
BRI
Patents
and rights
AREEF T
RMB'000
5% Cost
RZT—TF—H—H At 1 January 2010 224,981
NG Additions 8,378
RZTE—TF+=-_A=+—8H At 31 December 2010 233,359
RZZE——F—H—H At 1 January 2071 233,359
= Additions 192,406
HET B A 7 MmEUE#ER (M 36) Derecognised through disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) (23,900)
HN-—E——&+=-B=+—H At 31 December 2011 401,865
R B NRRERSE Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss
RZZE—ZTF—H—H At 1 January 2010 126,100
RE FHH Amortisation for the year 12,993
REEREEERR Impairment loss recognised for the year 3,945
R=ZE—ZF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2010 143,038
RZE——F—H—H At 1 January 2011 143,038
N S Amortisation for the year 19,110
HEME AR AR (F:E36) Write back on disposals of subsidiaries (note 36) (22,015)
R-—B——&+=-A=+-A At 31 December 2011 140,133
BREFE Carrying amount
HN-—E——&+=-B=+—H At 31 December 2011 261,732

R-E-—ZEE+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2010 90,321
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14. BREE ® 14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
AREFHEEREN G MR [EE The amortisation charge for the year is included in
EH]- “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income

statement.
—E-ETEERRBEEEREREE BT Impairment loss recognised during the year 2010 solely related
BRARAEENSENERRE Rt gtzE to a patent which was no longer used in the production and as a
TR AN B R B BB EH &SP B - result a full impairment loss was made against the cost of such
patent.
15. ELEBEBEE 15. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

RERA MBI R ER 2R IAE EM
BEZHEBRREFRZEEHIWT

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the year are as follows:

rEE The Group
FEURERSR -
Hit B
kEEZ
wE
Impairment
of trade
and other
receivables EHTA
and B Hedging Hith &t
inventories Provisions instruments Others Total
ARETT ARETRT AREFT AREFTE ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(E51) (&31)
(restated) (restated)
BEHEELR Deferred tax arising from:
R-E—FF—F—H At 1 January 2010 100,770 30,575 — 2,587 133,932
FRKERBRRMAE Additions through acquisition of
(Hi£35) subsidiaries (note 35) = 6,621 = 271 6,892
RiBEETA (5 7) Credited to profit or loss (note 7) 48,516 13,554 — 2177 64,247
RZZE—THF+-F=+—H At31December 2010
(&%) (restated) 149,286 50,750 — 5,035 205,071
RZZE——%—F[—H(EJ|) At1January 2011 (restated) 149,286 50,750 — 5,035 205,071
PEEEA/(0%) Credited/(charged) to profit or
(Fitz£7) loss (note 7) 27,422 40,370 — (7) 67,785
REM 2 ERERA Credited to other comprehensive
income — — 4,901 — 4,901
BRHEMBATMEVERER Derecognised through disposal of
(Fff3E36) subsidiaries (note 36) (391) — — — (391)
R=ZZB——HF+=-H=+—H At31December2011 176,317 91,120 4,901 5,028 271,366
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15. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continued)

AA T The Company
BiE &5t
Provisions Total
AR®ET T AREFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EEBEELER : Deferred tax arising from:
R-E—ZTF—HA—H At 1 January 2010 — —
RIBRATA Credited to profit or loss 10,696 10,696
RZZE—ZTF+-_A=+—AH0EK At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011
—T——%—H—H 10,696 10,696
RIBEETA Credited to profit or loss — —
R=2——+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2011 10,696 10,696

RZZB——F+-HA=+—8 " XAE
TAPARBBBREMAMHERFEE
EERELERBEE - RERZRBAH
BEBRINREREEESTAT

At 31 December 2011, deferred tax assets were not recognised
in relation to certain unused tax losses and other deductible
temporary differences. The unrecognised unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences are analysed as follows:

AEH AN

The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARBT AREETTT ARBT T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HIEEE Tax losses 726,334 1,209,170 — —

E b AT 07 R Other deductible temporary

=8 differences 691,767 369,926 80,465 80,465
1,418,101 1,579,096 80,465 80,465
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BE—B——F+-A=

T—HRLEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2011

EEFIBEEE#)
i R-B——F+-A=+—0 &%
MEAAT Y ANHEEEZEST)

AARE1,418,101,000 L (=T —=F
F: AR¥1,579,096,0007T) K AR
#80,465,000 T( = —FF : AR
# 80,465,000 7T ) I A HERR AR IE
RIBEE RAREEERRERE
R RN K AT R 17 £ 85 51 A5 B AT 40
T 22 B ) B R ERBUR T o

(i) FEREEBRRZAIRAFRGEEN
HEHRRERBREA > IR _-F
——FE T REFHREER -

RZF——F+_HA=1+—R0 " BAEHE
MEARRBERRZ REHBNEEZ

15.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continued)

(i) At 31 December 2011, the Group’s and the Company's
deductible temporary differences amounting to
RMB1,418,101,000 (2010: RMB1,579,096,000) and
RMB80,465,000 (2010: RMB80,465,000) respectively
have not been recognised as deferred tax assets as it was
determined by management that it is not probable that
future taxable profits will be available for these deductible
temporary differences to reverse in the foreseeable future.

(i) Tax losses in the PRC can be carried forward to set off
future assessable income for a maximum period of five
years which expires in the period from 2012 to 2016.

At 31 December 2011, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2010: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on

FERRIEmMmES  ARZERZEELE K the unremitted earnings of the Group's subsidiaries and
%@jﬁ,ﬁ\gﬁﬂ\zﬁﬁg{i ) Sﬁzjﬁ,ﬁjﬁﬁa@i associates as the Group has no liability to additional tax should
ARERELEHEAE(ZS—TF - &) - such amounts be remitted.
RHB AT ZRE 16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
FANE| The Company
2011 2010
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FREIE E R E (RAAS) Unlisted investments in the PRC, at cost 2,831,012 2,657,269
JrE BT B8 A R FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,863,796 1,661,205
FE BT B A B3R IE Amounts due to subsidiaries (2,596,945) (1,564,418)
WEFBEEEAE RS - BEKRERE The amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
e repayable on demand.

TEMBARZFAEAMFRRYBERE
Bzt 44 o

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the

financial statements.
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17. REBEE QAT 2 S 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
AEH b N/NE|
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARET ARBT T ARBT R AREETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(E31))
(restated)
R JE ETHIRE Unlisted investments in
(¥R A) the PRC, at cost 373,763 222,400 80,740 80,740
JEAE U B 12 3 Share of post-acquisition
(B BE Wi E) profits, net of dividends
received 173,136 106,240 99,421 80,819
546,899 328,640 180,161 161,559
TREEEEHMENRIZFFE B A The following list contains the particulars of principal associates,
EMARIRE all of which are unlisted corporate entities:
FEERGLE
Proportion of ownership interest
PGS AEEZ
RE&E D BR#ER ]
Place of HMEARFHE Group's HAQFEE HEBLAAEE
DAEH incorporation Particulars of effective Held by Heldby FELEETEH
Name of companies and operation registered capital interest  the Company subsidiaries  Principal activity
BRER-KEN-E R PRC USD6,000,000 41% 41% —  Provision of maintenance,
RS (RE2S)BRAR i 6,000,000 7T installation and on-site services to
owners of turbines, boilers and
electricity generators

AR - 2XRBERSE

BEEBEKEA GRS PRC RMB107,000,000 44.82% — 50%  Manufacture of electrical
EREARTA FE  AR¥107,000,0007T equipments
EEEIRE
BRERRREARIRE PRC RMB 15,000,000 27.28% — 30%  Provision of quality control
BREARA H AR 15,000,000 7 services for boilers manufacturing
RIREEEREESRBRS
WE B NREN R PRC RMB1,000,000 44.82% — 50%  Development of power
BARAT FE AR 1,000,0007T equipment technology
FRE NR BRI
R BB TS 0 G PRC RMB2,000,000 44.82% — 50%  Provision of petrol station services
BREARA HE AR 2,000,0007T I AR
BRINEZKERSE PRC RMB10,000,000 42.80% — 47.75%  Hydropower generation

BRETARA FE  AK®10,000,0007T KNEE
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17. REEE QT 2 () 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
ARSI R
Proportion of ownership interest
AR AEEZ
RigE BERER i
Place of HMERFEE Group's HAQFEE HEARAEA
ARER incorporation Particulars of effective Held by Heldby TEL&EH
Name of companies and operation registered capital interest  the Company subsidiaries  Principal activity
MEEERSNTIRERARA PRC RMB2,000,000 33.50% — 3350%  Provision of power engineering
H AR#2,000,0007 ENTRR
RRERRRTHLERRR PRC RMB2,000,000 30% — 30%  Provision of travelling services
FEl AE#2,000,0007T TR AR
RREEREEME PRC RMB300,000,000 41.12% 21% 24%  Depository and financial
BRETAA FE  AR®300,000,0007T advisory services
TR RS E AR
BRERAR(ER) ARAR PRC USD9,000,000 49% - 49%  Wind power business in the PRC
Ll 9,000,000% 7% EREREREER
&N R 2 IS ERBEENT ¢ Summarised financial information on associates:
A EME
The Group
2011 2010
ARET R AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(E51)
(restated)
BB E Total assets 2,951,936 2,054,292
HwaE Total liabilities (1,736,994) (1,307,179)
BEFE Net assets 1,214,942 747,113
(Rt E AR EEFE Share of net assets of associates 546,899 328,640
“@UT A Total revenue 2,463,023 675,635
N E s T Total profit for the year 220,695 66,563
REFZ (I E N T] Share of profits less losses of associates

Yo ) ek B 1R for the year 78,534 25,793
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18. HttFRBEMEE

HitERBEeRMEERR

18. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL

ASSETS

Other non-current financial assets comprise:

REH AT
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
AR¥T T ARET T AR®T R ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
(E51)
(restated)
BEZIHRE Held-to-maturity investments
BB ES Government bonds in the PRC 236,085 — — _
FHEMHRKRE Available-for-sale investments
JEETERES Unlisted equity securities at
— B ATRRE cost less impairment 96,637 53,637 60,346 21,246
332,722 53,637 60,346 21,246

FLmERREREREDBREMKIL
FEMRRBRITHI LN ERES  ET
B E R - BRIBFREEFRORANF
ERE REARAGEQAEBEMGHEEX
RN RARREERREAAEETRELERE

e

RHAEZIHNEE AT EBRNESAIE L
MR E ZFEFHNEEEEENT5.18%
£558% ZH KRR - ZE—ERH o FE
BT EREERB B T Aa3HIFE AR - XS
BEIEHRRER @RS A RIZIBRAE
BEREEKNATE - B ESARE °

The unlisted equity investments represented investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated
in the PRC. They are measured at cost less impairment at the
end of each reporting period because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so wide that the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

The held-to-maturity investments are unlisted investments in
government bonds in the PRC with fixed interest rate at a range
of 5.18% to 5.58% with maturity in 2014. Government of the
PRC has credit rating of Aa3 by Moody’'s. Held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost less impairment at
the end of each reporting period and are not past due or
impaired.
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19. FTEERMTE

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

rEE
The Group
2011 2010
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TELREE Derivative financial assets
RENEEHK) —REERS Foreign currency forward contracts
— held for trading 92,641 104,276
92,641 104,276
PTEcRmERE Derivative financial liabilities
BERSRERT AR Foreign currency forward contracts held as
HNEA & cash flow hedging instruments (32,671) —
B mENEL D Less: current portion (3,730) —
FEMENEB S Non-current portion (28,941) _

EHIMNEANEAABEIIK HRAE
BENRAREHEE R ZEHERX - FH
BEMAZREMERE

il

REREHR - AEBFIZMI8HE(=ZZF—
TF VE)INFEEHSHEZEZRE
ERHINES A BAEIEHEXRRR

RAFE  FEHEETETENAAE
B E Al AR 78,704,000 L (=T —
T AR¥104,276,0007T) © WE A

SRS
188 -

R|ERAR - AEBEI10EH(ZZ—TF ¢
E) BT EERERT ANRE S RIINE
BRI EBAREE BB A EITH AR R
& S P M AN R RS o A BE RS M SME
REENEFEREEREEERERH

{3 -

The foreign currency forward contracts are stated at fair value.
The fair value of forward contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period with the
resulting value discounted back to present value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had 18 (2010: 37)
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts to manage its
exchange rate exposures which did not meet the criteria for
hedge accounting.

During the year, changes in the fair value of non-hedging
currency derivatives amounting to gain of RMB78,704,000 (2010:
RMB104,276,000) were included in profit or loss.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had 10 (2010: Nil)
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts designated as
highly effective hedging instruments in order to manage the
Group's foreign currency exposure in relation to committed
foreign currency future sales. The terms of the foreign currency
forward contracts have been negotiated to match the terms of
the respective designated hedged items.
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9. FTEER I A

RAFE EREETETAEAAEES
HELNEEARK32,671,00070(=F—
TE E)EREMEEREPER IR
EHRET Rt - BIBEER AT E A
ENHERS  BHRBRSHRENT=
BAARBREHAREZRTZ@ANET
BRSO BEEEEZN AR EBEESEE
HE B 5 Bl A A R 3,730,000 7T K AR #E
28,941,000 7T °

R EFRITES mEI,E:E’JX%% HERF

19.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

During the year, changes in fair value of hedging currency
derivatives amounting to loss of RMB32,671,000 (2010: Nil) have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the hedging reserve. Loss on fair value changes
of RMB3,730,000 and RMB28,941,000 are expected to be
reclassified to profit or loss at various dates in the coming twelve
months and more than twelve months after the end of the
reporting period respectively.

The above transactions involving derivative financial instruments

WAL FBIET A A1 YR BRI THEST o are with Bank of China of A1 credit rating by Moody's.
FE 20. INVENTORIES
rEH AT
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARBT ARKETT ARBT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(E31)
(restated)
BARERE Power equipment
manufacturing
B Raw materials 3,565,660 3,035,535 610 710
R Work in progress 7,622,697 9,270,266 780,143 901,360
K Finished goods 427,939 519,094 - —
11,616,296 12,824,895 780,753 902,070

R=ZT——F+=—A=+—8 A&EEK
HAEHNAARBZITL(ZZ—ZF (&) :
AR 15,539,0007t) EEE AEASE
R —MRIRITRUE KR - SEBEA I
30°

As at 31 December 2011,
with carrying amounts of approximately RMBNil (2010 (restated):

certain inventories of the Group

RMB15,539,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group. Details of which are set out in
note 30.




5t 755 R 2% P R )

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
HE—2——F+-A=f+—ALHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

21. EWERF EWEE HitfE 21.

WK BERFANRE

TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE/
OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

REHE AT
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
AR¥T R AREET T AR¥T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
(&%)
(restated)
FEUBR X Trade receivables 15,727,096 13,502,851 497,561 382,596
B REREMS Less: allowance for doubtful
(Bf5E21(b)) debts (note 21(b)) (2,808,961) (2,232,788) (40,261) (42,413)
12,918,135 11,270,063 457,300 340,183
i AES Bills receivable 1,052,526 982,083 163,687 6,350
13,970,661 12,252,146 620,987 346,533
=l A Other receivables 580,642 430,478 8,331 6,009
®E RIFEMNKIE Deposits and prepayments 3,903,424 4,111,318 176,426 87,645
4,484,066 4,541,796 184,757 93,654
18,454,727 16,793,942 805,744 440,187

o

FEWE R EIZEBIA DR RN

i

BRTEPZEEMERTR  —RIVRAE
EPZHMRENAME /TAERERHE
FEAPRFEE 2 ERERR - AEEEHF
HEPZER - Ll EHTEHER —F
AU E iR R o

Retention money receivables are settled in accordance with the
terms of the respective contracts.

The credit terms given to the customers vary and are generally
based on the financial strengths of individual customers. In order
to effectively manage the credit risks associated with trade
receivables, credit evaluations of customers are performed
periodically. The balances mentioned above are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.
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21. EWERR EWERE HibpE 21. TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE/

K BERBEARE® OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)
RIE—ZTF KEEBAHHDARE In 2010, certain trade receivables of the Group of approximately
28,889,000 T (E%|) HyE T EUWER K E A RMB28,889,000 (restated) were pledged to secure general
EREEER —RBITRIENER 315 banking facilities granted to the Group. Details of which are set
FHARHTEES0 © out in note 30.
(a) BRERDHT (a) Ageing analysis
RIBEHR - BURERR L ERERE Trade receivables and bills receivable (net of allowance for
(MR REREE) 2 BRECOITAOT ¢ doubtful debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the

end of the reporting period:

rEHE NG|
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
AR®BT AREETTT AR¥TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(&751)
(restated)
1FEAA Within 1 year 7,824,717 5,668,971 478,117 197,518
1822F 1to 2 years 2,430,624 2,616,726 138,175 142,948
2E3%F 2 to 3 years 1,374,045 3,273,047 2,272 294
3FLAE Over 3 years 2,341,275 693,402 2,423 5,773

13,970,661 12,252,146 620,987 346,533
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WK - BERFANRIE @)

(b)

FE U AR R e FE W R SR E

& R R % PR M R AR R (B B 1R T 3%
RBERAR  ERARERRKE
Z R AT RE S AIRRON - R 1B
T - MR ER R R E AN E
WERA I IR R (2 BRTE2(m))) ©

FARKERBNES (2FEERNRE

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE/

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off
against trade receivables and bills receivable (see note 2(m)
(i).

The movement in allowance for doubtful debts during

sTEEEY) I : the year, including both specific and collective loss
components, is as follows:
rEE NN
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARBT ARBTT ARBT R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&%)
(restated)
R—H—H At 1 January 2,232,788 1,621,932 42,413 21,531
FiBUEEKT B /AT  Addition through acquisition
MAE of subsidiaries — 41,194 — —
B EIETER Impairment losses
recognised 618,868 574,012 — 20,882
(B ETIE O] Impairment losses reversed (42,695) — - —
TRTUEI FREEHI3H  Uncollectible amounts
written off — (4,350) (2,152) —

Rt+t=B=+—H At 31 December

2,808,961 2,232,788 40,261 42,413
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21. BWERE EWEE HifE
WK - e RFEFANRIE @)

(b)

(c)

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE/
OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

EWERA R ERZERE(E) (b) Impairment of trade receivables and bills receivable
(continued)
R—ZE——F+_A=+—H" At 31 December 2011, the Group's and the Company’s
AREBEAKRAAAHEARE trade receivables of RMB1,757,892,000 (2010 (restated):
1,757,892,000c( Z— E —ZF F( & RMB2,283,594,000) and RMB51,000 (2010: RMB251,000)
5 ) A E #2283,594,0007T ) & respectively were individually determined to be impaired.
AERHB51,000c(ZZE—ZF : AR The individually impaired receivables related to customers
# 251,000 7T ) B R W BR N E 12 H (F that were in financial difficulties and management
RS SRELE A I EIE o ERHEEE assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected
A IR R (B 2 e Uk BR X B T B A5 to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for
HoREEE MRESEERKT B doubtful debts of RMB78,400,000 (2010 (restated):
HAE B 20 FEM AR ] TULE - B RMB51,636,000) were recognised. The Company has not
F& A AR 78,400,000 (= recognised any specific allowances for doubtful debts
—ZF (&%) : AR%51,636,000 during the year (2010: RMBNIl).
T0) M RERTER R E R - RAFE
AN B A R AR T RAT AT B e B
(Z=2—ZF: ARBZT) -
R E BB SRR Y FE W R Tk 2 FE Ll (c) Age of trade and bills receivables that are past due but
ZERR not impaired
rEE PN
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
AR®TF T ARETTT ARBT T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(E31)
(restated)
RimHp B ARRE Neither past due
nor impaired 12,257,986 10,624,209 620,987 346,533
1F AR Within 1 year 1,037,280 1,139,712 - —
1235 Between 1 to 3 years 563,381 435,032 — —
3FLAE Over 3 years 112,014 53,193 - —
13,970,661 12,252,146 620,987 346,533
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21. BWERE EWEE HifE
WK - e RFEFANRIE @)

(c)

A% 0 380 HA B R R 1 9 R W BRI B
RERE (8

REH A RBENEURRES TR
FEM  ERRKBIEFPHERKE
Bk -

S EBEBERRE Z BRI EE T
BEHERE - FHENE BTG E R
AR A B AR ST - T B @A
EBRETEZEEERRR - K=
——&+ZA=+—0" £BEHBA
R #1,290,652,000 0 (= F —F4F :
AR 1,726,733,000 7T) 0 fE UL R X
EEWEERRRRESE - EEEM
EEEERWREEARE BERT
AR AT AR E o« REB KA
YNCIRI IR o e = ke B e
IR o

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES/BILLS RECEIVABLE/
OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(c)

Age of trade and bills receivables that are past due but
not impaired (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers and many of them with good
credit history.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of customers. Ongoing credit evaluation is
performed on the financial condition of trade receivables
and, where applicable, credit guarantee insurance cover is
purchased. As at 31 December 2011, trade
receivables of approximately RMB1,290,652,000 (2010:
RMB1,726,733,000) were covered by credit guarantee
insurance. The management believes that there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group and the
Company do not hold any collateral or guarantees over
these balances.
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22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS

FOR CONTRACT WORK
RBEHRNEESR : Contracts in progress at the end of reporting period:
AEE
The Group
2011 2010
AR¥T R AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
25 A RIKA Contract costs incurred 20,768,967 15,103,923
AR AR R s 1R Recognised profits less recognised losses 848,531 565,201
21,617,498 15,669,124
W LIREERIE Less: Progress billings (21,181,099) (16,048,491)
436,399 (379,367)
Heh: Represented by:
FFARBEEMNERE REFHIE Amounts due from contract customers
included in current assets 1,849,593 894,923
STARBEBNENEREERIA Amounts due to contract customers included
in current liabilities (1,413,194) (1,274,290)
436,399 (379,367)
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FEW,(13) R R B A BIFRIE 23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW

SUBSIDIARIES
AEE The Group
ZEDEAEEKWT - B BAKREX The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
BE - on demand.
TEHEESF 24. TRADING SECURITIES
AEERAQT
The Group and the Company
2011 2010
ARET AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ETERES  BRAREE Listed equity securities at fair value
— BEHEIN — outside Hong Kong 2,001,530 1,188,000
RSB S 2T IHER Market value of listed equity securities 2,001,530 1,188,000
R-ZTE——F+=—_A=+—8 R F32Q At 31 December 2011, the carrying amounts of interest in the
A REEBRANARBEEN10% ° following company exceed 10% of total assets of the Company.
BT
S AR 3L i B RBFEE KATHFEES
PNCIECE Place of Particulars of Interest held EE5EE
Name of company incorporation issued shares held by the Company Principal activity
ANEBRBEERNBRAAE R &R 2% BuhEE
Datang International Power PRC Registered capital Power plant
Generation Co., Limited operation
EEFHITER 25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
RZTE——F+ZA=+—8 x5 As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s bank deposits of
SRITEFRHARE 131,155,000 0 (= F — approximately RMB131,155,000 (2010 (restated):
TF (F5) : AR 276,493,00070) B RMB276,493,000) were pledged as collateral for the Group's
HIEAEERITERZERR - WiERHA bank borrowings and will be released upon the settlement of
BARITIERAE B ARBR KT - B R IBE relevant bank borrowings. Details of which are set out in note 30.
AMIEE30 °
AREE B HERRITESR 2 FIZERHIEE34(c)() The interest rates of the Group’s pledged bank deposits are

R EE o disclosed in note 34(c)(i).
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26. SRITER HBERBELZEY 26. BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS
rEE PN
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
AR® T AREETTT AR®T R AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
(&%)
(restated)
RITRIRE Cash at bank and in hand 5,646,474 7,940,655 196,886 967,925
3MEANEIEZ$R7T  Bank deposits, matured
R4 within 3 months 2,625,401 3,518,664 — —
RN R RERE Cash and cash equivalents
RERERZES in the statement of
LR EEY financial position and the
consolidated statement
of cash flows 8,271,875 11,459,319 196,886 967,925
31E A LA R|Hl 2 #5847 Bank deposits, matured
T over 3 months 247,404 1,090,860 - —
R-E——F+-_A=+—H &EAR As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s cash and bank balances
#7,862,386,000 L( —ZE—ZFF (&) : and bank deposits which are denominated in Renminbi
AR¥E12,461,307,000 70) AN REFR amounting to RMB7,862,386,000 (2010 (restated):
FREAERTT - 2 E AR LI INEAE RMB12,461,307,000). The conversion of these Renminbi
& R BB AT AR B INE B VA 1R R OE AR © denominated balances into foreign currencies is subject to the

rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

R-_ZT—F+-_A=+—8 ' B1IHEK " The weighted average effective interest rates on bank deposits
RekRSFEVHMEFLHERNER and cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2011 were

2.29% (ZZ—ZF : 1.44%) ° 2.29% (2010: 1.44%).
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TRADE PAYABLES/OTHER PAYABLES,

ERNERE ACCRUALS AND PROVISIONS
REHE AT
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
AR¥T R AREET T AR¥T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
(&%)
(restated)
FETERFR Trade payables 14,646,188 11,867,247 176,860 123,521
ENER Bills payable 1,900,795 1,505,108 46,010 —
16,546,983 13,372,355 222,870 123,521
B Provisions 1,463,359 783,397 151,770 151,770
H bR R & AT Other payables and accrued
& charges 570,439 564,124 35,233 22,153
18,580,781 14,719,876 409,873 297,444

RBERR  BENERIEENREZRE

Trade and bills payables with the following ageing analysis as of

AL - the end of reporting period is as follows:
REE AN
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
AR®T T ARBETT ARBT T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(E75)
(restated)
1FE AR Within 1 year 15,584,796 11,476,206 136,668 59,682
1824 1 to 2 years 278,938 1,204,406 37,028 43,477
2E34F 2 to 3 years 389,386 549,995 36,409 15,008
3ELALE Over 3 years 293,863 141,748 12,765 5,354
16,546,983 13,372,855 222,870 123,521
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27. ENERR HiEMAR - Est 27. TRADE PAYABLES/OTHER PAYABLES,

ERREBE® ACCRUALS AND PROVISIONS (continued)
REERERE I IEAR R R ER A B S4E The components of provisions recognised in the consolidated
KE D REZE ST : statement of financial position and the movements during the

year are as follows:

REE The Group
EEERK
EREERE aw
Product Onerous Hith st
warranty contracts Others Total
AR¥ET AR®ETR AR®ETR ARETR
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RZZ——F—H—H At1January 2011 214,846 505,064 63,487 783,397
I R Additional provisions 103,090 814,924 9,805 927,819
RERBEH SR Amounts utilised during the year (112,368) (78,632) (56,857) (247,857)
N-ZE——F+_H8 At 31 December 2011
==—=8 205,568 1,241,356 16,435 1,463,359
ART The Company
EERS
EREERE a&n
Product Onerous et
warranty contracts Total
AR®T R AR%T T AR%T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-ZZE—F—HF—H At 1 January 2011 71,305 80,465 151,770
% B4 Additional provisions - - —
REANBRNESE Amounts utilised during the year - — -
R-_E—F+=A At 31 December 2011

=+—H 71,305 80,465 151,770
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27. EANRRREAM R - FES

EAREE®
ERERRERE

AEERETERRETPRHE—EMF
HERRE - WAGHERHERBEIERED
Eme WEARERBRNIRHEERBE
MBI R B RSk E (A ET o At 2 ERKE
e WHISEERRIEHERT -

EERBENRME

AEERHEERERBRRERBIILE
BN AR —EMERITHGL - REZ
FEHN R=F-——FT=A=T-R"
BUIZEANNBERABLRAKES
M EN - AEBEREBEBRZFAE
BIEE AEETFTARE N REF KA Z
FEEKELEE -

28. EWiEE

27. TRADE PAYABLES/OTHER PAYABLES,

ACCRUALS AND PROVISIONS (continued)

Product warranty provision

The Group provides warranties ranging from one to two years to
its customers on certain products and undertakes to repair or
replace items that fail to perform satisfactorily. The amount of
the provision for warranties is estimated based on the sales
volume and past experience on the level of repairs and returns.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised
where appropriate.

Onerous contracts provision

The Group has entered into several contracts to be executed in
the coming one to two years in respect of the sale of power
equipment and nuclear power equipment. Under these contracts,
the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations have exceeded
the economic benefits expected to be received as at 31
December 2011. Provision has been made for such onerous
contracts based on the estimated minimum net cost of exiting
from the contracts.

28. DEPOSITS RECEIVED

rEE PN
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARETR ARBT T AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
(E75))
(restated)
mEE D Current portion 7,483,656 11,891,531 1,053,967 1,758,845
ERENEL Non-current portion 6,337,141 7,592,559 702,644 —

13,820,797 19,484,090 1,756,611 1,758,845
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28. EWEE &) 28. DEPOSITS RECEIVED (continued)
ERIRE BEED A ,\’]IEF'J@)EWHXZ The amount represents the progress payments received from
;Er“ I o BUIREH  REBRKRARD customers in respect of work in progress. Included in deposits
D RI% B A R¥6,337,141,000 T (=T — received for the Group and the Company of approximately

T4 AR #7,692,559,0007T) & A R RMB6,337,141,000 (2010: RMB7,592,559,000) and

702,644,000 L(ZZE—ZF : ARBZ L) RMB702,644,000 (2010: RMBNIl) respectively were the progress

ARRERRET —_BAAASH I ZEES payments received in respect of contract works to be

EITREWERZERERIE N ALGESH commenced twelve months from the end of the reporting period

BRARKR R ERARNIEREBAE - T and were classified in the consolidated statement of financial

HEer#fn Bl A—FRBIHNEEARIE position and statement of financial position respectively as non-

DB RS WEARDERE - 2R current. The remaining balance represents deposits received for

SENEESR IRk EBEKREAR contract works to be commenced within one year and were

B o classified as current liabilities. The deposits received will be used

to set-off the contract price upon the completion of contract
works.
29. RIERR D BIFIE 29. ADVANCE FROM HOLDING COMPANY
rEE N

The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Pt 5 AR¥TR ARETT AR%®TR AREBTE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
mEE Current portion (i) 2,785 20,478 - —

ERENE Non-current portion (ii) 1,169,838 1,042,918 392,960 392,960

1,172,623 1,063,396 392,960 392,960

BIaE - Notes:

(i) RIZICATIHRIBERATTE 1A (i) The balance of the advance from holding company is non-
AR®2785000L(—ZZE—TF : A interest bearing, amounting to RMB2,785,000 (2010:
EE#20,478,000 7T ) ° Itk 5k 18 /& M 3K RMB20,478,000). The amount is unsecured and repayable on
BEEFEERE - demand.

(ii) REB R A R RIBERBTETETE (ii) The balance of the advance from holding company of the
R B Z2EZ DRl AANEREK Group comprises of non-interest bearing and interest bearing
179,160,000 C(ZZE—FF : AR loans amounting to RMB179,160,000 (2010: RMB73,400,000)
73,400,000t ) & A K # 990,678,000 and RMB990,678,000 (2010: RMB969,518,000) respectively
T(ZZE—FTF : A K%969,518,000 with effective interest rate of 5.23% (2010: 4.78%) per annum.
L) e BRFRNEFEE523%(ZF—%F
F:478%) °
ARATRIZBRARZIBLEHBIETEY The balance of the advance from holding company of the
B A AR392960,000T (= Company comprises of interest bearing loans amounting to
— =4 A R #392960,0007T ) © & RMB392,960,000 (2010: RMB392,960,000) with effective
B R R A528%( - T — T F ¢ interest rate of 5.23% (2010: 4.78%) per annum.

4.78%) °
R AT ERNRERRENAENHE The amount will not be demanded for repayment in the next
SRR R WEMAAIEREBE - five years from the end of the reporting period and,

accordingly, the amounts have been classified as non-current
liabilities.
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(EEN 30. BORROWINGS
KEE P N/N|
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARETT AREET T ARBT AREBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
(&%)
(restated)
SRITEX Bank loans 1,399,000 1,828,699 - —
HibEX Other loans 496,867 381,265 33,784 33,784
1,895,867 2,209,964 33,784 33,784
PR Secured 1,399,000 1,828,699 — —
FEFELR Unsecured 496,867 381,265 33,784 33,784
1,895,867 2,209,964 33,784 33,784
DA Analysed into:
FEERMRIRITER :  Bank loans repayable:
—FER IR B R Within one year or on demand 450,000 438,699 - —
—F B EMEAN After one year but within
two years 369,000 440,000 — —
MERBKRAFR After two years but within
five years 580,000 950,000 — —
HFE After five years — — - —
1,399,000 1,828,699 - -
JEERMHEMESR :  Other loans payable:
—F AR ER Within one year or on demand 131,623 188,306 — —
—F B EMERN After one year but within two
years — — _ _
MEBRAFH After two years but within five
years - — - —
HF%E After five years 365,244 192,959 33,784 33,784
496,867 381,265 33,784 33,784
1,895,867 2,209,964 33,784 33,784
B —EAHIRESZ  Less: repayable within one year
BEZRDEE or on demand classified
under current liabilities (581,623) (627,005) - —

1,314,244 1,682,959 33,784 33,784
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30. fER @) 30. BORROWINGS (continued)

EREREEN N &5 &880 - The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

rEH AN
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
AR®F T ARBT T AR®F T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(&31)
(restated)
AR RMB 1,895,867 2,064,265 33,784 33,784
ETT usD - 145,699 - —
1,895,867 2,209,964 33,784 33,784

NRZE——F+ZA=1+—H ' K&EEFT All of the Group’s bank borrowings are carrying at rates ranging

BRITEIOEFRNF3.51% E6.89% from 3.51% to 6.89% per annum (2010: 3.51% to 6.22% per

ZE(ZE—ZFF : FAENFI51%E annum) as at 31 December 2011.

6.22%) °

MN-ZEBE——F+-_A=+—H ' KXEHIK At 31 December 2011, the Group pledged certain assets with the

WE T EEEAPTE—METHE 2R - following carrying amounts to secure the banking facilities

ZEEEZERENT granted to the Group:

(i) REMEEBARBZ L (ZT—FTF : (i) investment properties of RMBNil (2010: RMB4,227,000)
AR#4,227,0007T) (2BH15E11) (note 11).

(i) RITFEHREARE131,155,0007(= (i)  bank deposits of RMB131,155,000 (2010 (restated):
T —ZF(EFEY ) AR K RMB276,493,000) (note 25).
276,493,000 7T ) (2 17 25) -

(i)  TEMTHEEFT R AR 25,363,000 (i)  prepaid lease payments of RMB25,363,000 (2010
T(ZZE—ZFF(EH): ARK (restated): RMB51,851,000) (note 13).
51,851,000 7T ) (2 BIMIzE13) -

ivi BEEAAREZT(ZZ—ZE£(&F (iv)  inventories of RMBNIl (2010 (restated): RMB15,539,000)
7)) AR¥15,539,0007T) (2B (note 20).

#£20) °

v, ME BEEKXEARARE (v)  property, plant and equipment of RMB6,389,000 (2010

6,389,000 L (ZE—FF (&%) : A (restated): RMB55,751,000) (note 12).

R ¥ 55,751,000 7T ) (26K 12) ©
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B ()
(i) BUREFAARBZT(ZZ—ZTF
(&%) : AR%28,889,0007T)(2H

fisE21) o

R=—Z——F+-A=+—-RAR=-Z—%
F+-A=+t—R KEKERRALEY
AEBRRITIERIERR

RAKERGE

AREEERNRREMEESRBREEEER
EENRAEHRTRAREZESHMNER -
REBERREPEBTERTEMN22%
BNRAREEES BIREEATED
8% BT °

30. BORROWINGS (continued)

31.

(vi)j trade receivables of RMBNil (2010 (restated):
RMB28,889,000) (note 21).

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, none of the Group's bank
borrowings are guaranteed by HE.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group is required to make contributions to a defined
contribution retirement fund which is administered by the Harbin
Social Insurance Administration Bureau of the local government.
The Group is required to contribute 22% of the basic salary of its
existing PRC staff, while employees contribute 8% of their basic

salary.
X (ArigE) Hi & 32. TAX PAYABLES/(RECOVERABLE)
AEE ARAF
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
ARET AREFT AR®FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(&%)
(restated)
T =k Value added tax 170,634 263,898 (49,053) (72,988)
DEFREHR Enterprise income tax 635,239 406,831 24,913 60,281
BER Business tax 18,983 24,674 17,939 18,800
Efthi1E Other taxes 95,762 120,830 3,583 9,727
FExs,/(mYg[a])Fi4  Tax payables/(recoverable) 920,618 816,233 (2,618) 15,820
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33. BA& - #ERRE 33. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(a) HERBIEB (a) Movements in components of equity
rEF The Group
AEBGEERS D FEYI RFERLE The reconciliation between the opening and closing
HRZHEBREHN AP ERRECLE Z balances of each components of the Group’s consolidated
SEEREREEIR o AN A E R E0 equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
DEIRFRZEEFIFTEINNAT - in equity on page 64 of the financial statements. Details of

the changes in the Company's individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are
set out below:

P Y| The Company

EE EE
BEAfE BHARS
A R EE Statutory Statutory RE R

Share Share capital surplus Retained #st
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
ARETT ARETT ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000
WZZE—ZE£—f—H Balanceat 1 January 2010
LEH 1,376,806 1,980,295 709,849 406,486 431,090 4,904,526
AEEHNREZEAYES  Profit and total comprehensive
Fk] income for the year — — — — 272,223 272,223
EEREEE Transfer to reserves — — — 27,222 (27,222) —
(458 Dividends — — — — (93,623) (93,623)
W-F—ZTE+-F  Balance at 31 December 2010
=t—Rz#&H 1,376,806 1,980,295 709,849 433,708 582,468 5,083,126
WZF——%—H—H Balanceat 1 January 2011
=i 1,376,806 1,980,295 709,849 433,708 582,468 5,083,126
AEEEBRGAER  Loss and total comprehensive
k) loss for the year = = — = (168,288) (168,288)
RE Dividends — — — — (192,753) (192,753)

R=ZB——%+=5 Balance at 31 December 2011
=t—HZ&H 1,376,806 1,980,295 709,849 433,708 221,427 4,722,085
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(b)

RE

(i)

(ii)

AEFERNARBROFHEA (i)

HE-_Z——F1+-A=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

33. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)
(b) Dividends

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

%8 o Company attributable to the year.
2011 2010
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEIRE B REIRR 2 Final dividend proposed after the end of the
REREERARE reporting period of RMBO0.14 per ordinary
014 (ZE—FF: share (2010: RMBO.14 per ordinary share)
BREBRERARK0.147T) 192,753 192,753

BERRREZORYPBLER
BEHRE B HAERRAE -

FRRLERIRN 2 E— BB (ii)
ERNARR RN FAE AZK

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability
at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,

B o
N

approved and paid during the year.

2011 2010
ARET R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERHERIRN 2 E—BFE  Final dividend in respect of the previous
FEZARBAREAER financial year, approved and paid during
AR#0.147T the year, of RMBO0.14 per share (2010:
(ZE—ZF : 5% RMBO0.068 per share)
AER#0.0687T) 192,753 93,623
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() R

33. BRA& - RERRKRE @® 33. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)
(¢c) Share capital
2011 2010
BHEE 1D E B
Number AREFT Number AREEF T
of shares RMB’000 of shares RMB'000
2t - 2%77&  Registered, issued and
R fully paid:
BA A AREREE State owned equity interest
ARE1TT shares of RMB1 each 701,235,000 701,235 701,235,000 701,235
HA SRR EEA RS  H Shares of RMB1 each
17T 675,571,000 675,571 675,571,000 675,571
R—A—HBKE+=H At1 January and
== 31 December 1,376,806,000 1,376,806 1,376,806,000 1,376,806

BRI B EA RS BBR A
BIMTEE BB AR R BB PR
RSN - BAEEABRMH BRI
=7 E AR e

(d) EFXRER

AEEEAEERNERRR - RER
AEBABRERRNES - BER
RENEARLE  UXHEEXBKE
1 FEERANBRERE

AEBBREBLCEBANES  SEHE
BRGEEBWIELTAE - BEFIARE
BARERE  AEBEESRAERRKRE
IREZERRR S « MIRERRE B AN BT
g - BEZE——FF+A=1—
B —Z—TFE+-_A=+—HIt&
FE  AEEWEFHEBET - BER
AR o

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and
restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be PRC
investors or foreign investors, state owned equity interest
shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with
each other.

(d) Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management
is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.
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33. BA& - mEERKRE @ 33. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) BEXREE(E) (d) Capital management (continued)
AREEEREAREGELXRCEEBRK The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
PA#EE RN IR ETS 2 M) B i B & K net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The
BN e REBRKER BESERENE Group's policy is to maintain a stable gearing ratio. Net
KEELR - FEKREEEARE debt includes amounts due to customers for contract work,
3R FENERRR - EfbE IR - &St trade payables, other payables, accruals and provisions,
ERLREE  BYEES - ENRRK deposits received, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries,
BARFIE - RERAQRKIERE advance from holding company and borrowings, less bank
FoRERTER BERRELSEE deposits, cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
) o BERBIEAERNRARIRMDES represents all capital and reserves attributable to owners of
NE(EIR AN K 4 - SREFARAE AR the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of reporting
BELLENT ¢ periods were as follows:

2011 2010
AR¥T T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(E251)
(restated)

B ER Total debts
EiEAREMAR Amounts due to customers for contract work 1,413,194 1,274,290
FERFAR R Trade payables 14,646,188 11,867,247
HM MR - BB A R EE Other payables, accruals and provisions 3,934,593 2,852,629
BlIES Deposits received 13,820,797 19,484,090
FEAT [R) KM A RIFRIE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 36,266 24,418
RIERR A B RIR Advance from holding company 1,172,623 1,063,396
(R Borrowings 1,895,867 2,209,964

36,919,528 38,776,034

B IRITER C e MIREEEY)  Less: Bank deposits, cash and cash

equivalents

2R B ERITIFR Restricted bank deposits (2,506) (5,000)
2R ITIER Pledged bank deposits (131,155) (276,493)
RITIFR Bank deposits (247,404) (1,090,860)
BENRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents (8,271,875) (11,459,319)
,,,,, (8652940) _ (12,831,672)

SRETS Net debt 28,266,588 25,944,362
AR Total capital 10,601,620 9,701,448
B AR FES Capital and net debt 38,868,208 35,645,810

BEAREELE Gearing ratio 73% 73%
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34. €I A 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
ST EER : Categories of financial instruments:
REME RN F]
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
AR¥T R AREEF T AR¥T AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(==27))
(restated)
SHMEE Financial assets
BRAREE ARG Fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL)

—RHBERS — Held for trading 2,094,171 1,292,276 2,001,530 1,188,000
BHEERHPHIRE Held-to-maturity investments 236,085 — — —
B REWZIE (B Loans and receivables

ReRREFRBY) (including cash and cash

equivalents) 23,264,172 25,627,216 2,690,000 2,981,672
FHEMIRE Available-for-sale investments 96,637 53,637 60,346 21,246
SRIAE Financial liabilities
EFEEH2tEEZTH Derivative instruments in

PTETA designated hedge

accounting relationships 32,671 — - —
b 1N Amortised cost 20,222,178 17,234,257 3,281,792 2,136,836
BEEREERAAEE Financial risk management and fair values
AEEEEREEAEERBRPELEN Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risk arises
ZE - -RHEL  MNEXREERK R in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group is also
MEAREEMEEARERENRER exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments in
% o other entities.
ANEBE Y 2 B &S BB EEZ The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
ZRMBOF SRR EEBRE REFINT o management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.
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34. €M I AEw®w

(a)

FERR

FEERBEREFIERIAEZZEA
REEBITA KE (T BB B
MsEAZER  BERRKREZR
" :

— HEUBRRRAINZESE
BEREE: &

—  HESSARECRKARAEESE -

ﬁ§7%51ﬁé%%ﬁ%%ﬂxﬁ
FEERERMEEZFERR A%
EEEEDER—EZER #Ehmﬁ
B EEfEREMEERFHNK
th ABERETERDEIES -
BESN - AERER BERE HARDET
B B BERN R HEBRIEXHIEE
TSRV RIS 28 - LAREAR S AT U]
RBEEHRARERE - Bt - AR
AEERA  ARENEERABREX
R o

A2 RRTHEREGFRRERTFER
W2 RIT RIS - ARRESFR
B AEEZREeMRTERZEE
R -

REEAX ZEERBREERERF
BRI E - MIEX RSB
EZITESERTE  WEAEER
EREFHBRATER  —RESAK
SELBEEERBEEESF ZER

RIERR - NEEE —ERENE
ERBEPRIEN - HEKERBES
10% (ZF—FF : 14%) RER—
A= -

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligation, and arises principally from:

— the carrying amount of the respective financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position; and

— the amount of contingent liabilities as disclosed in
note 38.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow up actions are taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt and non-trade debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Cash at banks and bank deposits are placed with banks and
financial institutions with good credit ratings. The directors
of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk on the
cash at banks and bank deposits is low.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of reporting period, the Group has a
certain concentration of credit risk as 10% (2010: 14 %) of
the total trade receivables was due from a single customer.
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34. ERmIAEw®w

(a)

(b)

FERR(E)

ERG REAFAEZERMOBER
T RANEERR SR EMBAR
XA ERMEELFREE(BENTE
SRTR) WHIBRAEMBERE - ©
WEHR  ARAEEZSHBER
ZBRREERBIH 38 5 EE -

ERASENRAEREEIHNRER
UERAEARERERRZE—FE
EWBER D RIS HIFE18 )21 -

B U BB X RIFIE - AR RIER
ERIERH AR E S5 - IAEED 3
AR E ) £ FEVEH R SRR o

ARARREERRE DR EKRKER
RIIE c AARIBEREERYERR
BREESENKREE N MAAR
AINESERA - EREARIEER A

B -

RBESER

AEBZBRREHERERDES
FE  URRBFAMERREL - #R
HEBARRERHEMERAHEE
BANFERSMEET ESRBIEAGE
RHUARCECHEE  NENEHRK
RHZRBDESTE -

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into
account of any collateral held is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset, including derivative financial
instruments, in the consolidated statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the financial
guarantees given by the Group at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in note 38.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from held-to-maturity
investments and trade receivables are set out in note 18
and 21 respectively.

In respect of amounts due from subsidiaries, the Company
reviews the recoverable amounts of individual debts to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Company’s concentration of credit risk is on advances
to subsidiaries. The management of the Company has
closely monitored and reviewed the recoverability of the
amounts and the directors of the Company consider such
risk is manageable.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.
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34. €M I AEw®w

(b)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

REESRER (&) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
TR RAER R ANATROTE R IE The following tables show the remaining contractual
TTEHEEERBERREARZET maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group's and
SHEHER - HiREASHAIERLRE the Company's derivative and non-derivative financial
enE(BEEREGHOMNEL (A liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
EEREIRSERRZFIRAE ZF 2 cash flows (including interest payments computed using
NI RAEB KRR [ A fe g EK contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
BRZ T HHEL : the end of reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
and the Company can be required to pay:
rEEF The Group
—E——£F 2011
BITARERESR
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
L MEAL
—£R BMELR TEHNR
REE HEER More than More than BENE
Carrying #@5t  Within 1year 1yearbutless 2 years but less More than
amount Total  or on demand than 2 years than 5 years 5 years
ARBTR ARETR ARETR AR®TR AR®TR AR¥TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TESREE Derivative financial liabilities
FEEASREES Foreign currency forward
TANRIINEAD contracts held as cash flow
hedging instruments
—RA — inflow (2,524,930) (570,060) (1,954,870) - -
— i — outflow 2,558,793 573,882 1,984,911 - -
32,671 33,863 3,822 30,041 - -
ETESRARE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
FERERTR Trade payables 14,646,188 14,646,188 14,646,188 - - -
HibfEft s R EstBA  Other payables and accrued
charges 2,471,234 2,471,234 2,471,234 - - -
ERRZMBARZE  Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries 36,266 36,266 36,266 - - -
RERAFFIE Advance from holding company 1,172,623 1,483,495 54,597 51,812 155,436 1,221,650
EE Borrowings 1,895,867 1,978,679 610,038 400,631 602,766 365,244
20,222,178 20,615,862 17,818,323 452,443 758,202 1,586,894
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34. @M T Hwm) 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)
(b) REBELEE(E) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
rEF The Group
—EFF 2010
BATAAERRE SN
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—ENE WENE
—FR LA BFLR
REE HEEK More than More than AFERE
Carrying st Within 1year  1yearbutless 2 years but less More than
amount Total or on demand than 2 years than 5 years 5 years
ARETR AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(&51) (&51) (&51) (251) (&31) (&51)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
FTESRERE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
FEf BRAR Trade payables 11,867,247 11,867,247 11,867,247 — = =
Hit 7 R Est &R Other payables and
accrued charges 2,069,232 2,069,232 2,069,232 — — —
ERRAZHBARZE  Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries 24,418 24418 24418 — — —
RIRRARIFHE Advance from holding
company 1,063,396 1,341,454 66,821 46,343 139,029 1,089,261
B Borrowings 2,209,964 2,350,010 697,820 514,769 944,462 192,959
17,234,257 17,652,361 14,725,538 561,112 1,083,491 1,282,220

B 2 BITEHER Financial guarantee issued:
SEERSE (M3E38)  Maximum amount
guaranteed (note 38) = 5,000 5,000 — — —
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34. €T HE®) 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)
(b) REBELEE(E) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
=T The Company
—E——fF 2011
BATARERESR
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
L MELL
—FR MEAR EEUR
REE HEER More than More than EENE
Carrying #@5t  Within 1year 1yearbutless 2 years but less More than
amount Total  oron demand than 2 years than 5 years 5 years
ARBTR ARBTR ARSI ARETFR AR®TR ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FTESRMAE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
JETER TR Trade payables 176,860 176,860 176,860 - - -
HiEMFREER  Other payables and accrued
charges 81,243 81,243 81,243 - - -
BB RIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 2,596,945 2,596,945 2,596,945 - - -
RERAFFIE Advance from holding company 392,960 516,272 20,552 20,552 61,656 413512
B Borrowings 33,784 33,784 - - - 33,784
3,281,792 3,405,104 2,875,600 20,552 61,656 447,296

BRI 2 SRR - Financial guarantee issued:
BoER4E (f3F38)  Maximum amount guaranteed
(note 38) - 1,260,000 1,260,000 - -
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34. €T A 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)
(b) RBEERE(E) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
KAF The Company
—T-ZF 2010

[BHEEN Bkt
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

—FLE RIFLA L
—&£R REAN AEHUA
REE HEEK More than More than AFRE
Carrying st Within 1year  1yearbutless 2 years but less More than
amount Total or on demand than 2 years than 5 years 5 years
ARBFL ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FTESRAE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
ERERR Trade payables 123,521 123,521 123,521 — — —
HibERFKEHER  Other payables and
accrued charges 22,153 22,153 22,153 — — —
LIRS Amounts due to subsidiaries 1,564,418 1,664,418 1,664,418 — — —
RERARIFIE Advance from holding company 392,960 505,658 18,783 18,783 56,349 411,743
B3 Borrowings 33,784 33,784 — — — 33,784
2,136,836 2,249,534 1,728,875 18,783 56,349 445,527
BRI 2 SRR - Financial guarantee issued:
EoER4E (f3F38)  Maximum amount guaranteed
(note 38) — 1,675,699 1,675,699 — — —
() RIEER (c) Interest rate risk
(i)  FrET% 2 FE = b (i)  Exposure to interest rate risk
ANERRARTZFERRE The Group and the Company’s interest rate risk
ZRBEFR BehkBRTEF arises primarily from borrowings, cash at banks and
K BEeRBITERRZZT bank deposits. The annual interest rates for cash at
— F+-_A=+—HHFF banks and bank deposits ranging from 0.5% to 3.1%
RN TF05%E31% 2 M= as at 31 December 2011 (2010: 0.36% to 2.25%).
T—FF : 036%%E225%) ° The interest rates of the Group and the Company’s
AEBRART ZERFER borrowings are disclosed in note 30.

BizE30 R ER -
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34. EMIEw 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(c) RIEEE(E) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) FrE¥ZFEERRE(E) (i)  Exposure to interest rate risk (continued)
BESEMNENRITHER LG Bank deposits and borrowings issued at variable
RLAEERARAAZRE rates expose the Group and the Company to cash
mEMNXRR  mMFEEEEH flow interest rate risk, and held-to-maturity
iR E « RIER D FIFIEKE investments, advance from holding company and
EMEERNSAERRAR borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group
AEAXARBEMNERRE - & and the Company to fair value interest rate risk. The
SERARRNEETEMNE Group and the Company does not carry out any
HEBAE IR E R KA - hedging activities to manage its interest rate

exposure.

(i) BBEDH (i)  Sensitivity analysis
KEE The Group
fitl B R 38 5 0.6% i FT A H If interest rates had been 0.5% higher/lower and all
MESERFTE  AEEFA other variables were held constant, the Group's profit

g m A AR B s A g
hn/ A # A R #5 36,157,000
T(ZZT—ZF(F):
m, w2 A R 54,368,000
JT) e

L BRERE AR - RER
BERRNXDLRS Al
BARE 2 RBRREN RRE
BAEK IR E o LR RE
HRAKEAREEIRITEN
BTAMAZRSRENER
B E - AN ERR BN R
REBRAETE  NEZE
MEEBHFEMNEHZ
TR AW HRE—T
—TERR EEET

BEEEBRA  BERESTILR
EARAEMNERER  BFL
Z BRI AR RREEFENZ
[ o

after tax and retained profits for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately RMB36,157,000
(2010 (restated): increase/decrease RMB54,368,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit after tax
and retained profits that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the
end of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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34. ERmIAEw®w

(d)

EHE R

ARBIAI BRI BRINE - FRES
RARE ZINERXZURBEBHEA
REFETTARRIT) KEMERER
BINEZ S RMEETT - INERF K
M ERBARBITAMER - ZE
FREXIEH TRE—ETER 2 &
KFH -

SNENK(BRERNERTE) A
BFRERINE (HBURRAEEIA
SN E 2 BF) S BRI L&
TEBARBITLZHHETT

AEBZETRITRESER - BUER
AR ENRFRIAINERHE - RNEEH
XBHOBRBINEERLN - MLFE
BRI —MUAARELSMNYEBHE -
EEEEIERINERR - WEME
HISNE A Q% E T mk

o

(i) FrE# &% ERE

TRAJNBERRAEE
REAEREEZNEERIA
SRR ECERAEELR
BAS 2 ERER -

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All
foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must take
place through the People’s Bank of China (“"PBOC") or
other financial institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign
exchange. The exchange rate adopted for foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the PBOC
that would be subject to a managed float against an
unspecified basket of currencies.

Foreign currency payments, including the remittance of
earnings outside the PRC, are subject to the availability of
foreign currency (which depends on the foreign currency
denominated earnings of the Group) or must be arranged
through the PBOC with government approval.

Certain cash at bank balances, trade receivables and trade
payables of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies. A portion of the Group’s business is overseas
construction contracts, and these contracts are generally
settled in currencies other than RMB. The management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and hedges certain
exposure using foreign currency forward contracts.

(i)  Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
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34. EMIEw 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)
(d) E¥Ek(E) (d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) FrEYzE%RERE(E) (i)  Exposure to currency risk (continued)
2011 2010
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&%)
(restated)
TEE The Group
SNEETEZ SREE ¢ Financial assets denominated in foreign
currencies:
JEUBR TR Trade receivables 1,747,147 2,254,057
RITHEENRIRS Bank balances and cash 790,554 365,365
2,537,701 2,619,422
SREELATYISMNESHE ©  The financial assets were denominated
in the following foreign currencies:
BT EUR 853 6,888
ETT usD 2,462,872 2,597,959
BT HKD 339 5,621
HERE IDR 13,152 —
RS E5 Sudanese pound 47,524 —
Hi Others 12,961 8,954
2,537,701 2,619,422
HNEETEZ S RBE - Financial liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies:
FERTERIX Trade payables 11,520 3,506
B Borrowings - 145,699
11,520 149,205
SRBE B TSISNEEE :©  The financial liabilities were denominated
in the following foreign currency:
EVi UsD 11,520 149,205
EARRERRK  AREIENUE At the end of the reporting period, the Company's
e B AN B R exposure to currency risk arising from recognised
ok B & T A R R assets or liabilities denominated in currency other
TEK o than the functional currency of the Company was not

significant.
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34. €T H®) 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)
(d) E¥ERRGGE) (d)
(ii) BBEDH (ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

TRINRAEE 2 BRI F
RASEHE D AR
BEMEREBZEXREFH (KR
SEAREEDHEIEARR)
MELZANSZE (D HRRE
bR EETE) -

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit after tax and the Group's
other components of equity that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all other
risk variables remained constant.

2011 2010

HBRBLRIRF HIRT 2R T

RARE %= F R AR B g A

ERER 2B HEMES 7

() Effect on Moz E Effect on

Increase/ profit after Effect on profit after

(decrease) in taxation and other taxation and

foreign retained components retained

exchange rate profits of equity profits

AR%F T AR%T T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

(&%)

(restated)

BT EUR 5% 36 — 293
(5%) (36) - (293)
eV usD 5% (3,729) (105,167) (115,078)
(5%) 3,729 105,167 115,078

B IT HKD 5% 14 - 239
(5%) (14) — (239)

ENeE IDR 5% 559 - —
(5%) (559) - —

BRI Sudanese 5% 2,020 - —
pound (5%) (2,020) — —

FREIMHRRZEXEEE
ARE[AEENH SRR
BYHBIINERRNESET
B ZAMNDRE_T—TF
MRz EEETT ©

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2010.
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34. €M I AEw®w

(d)

(e)

aEs (&)

(ii) SBEDH(E)
ERERR  BREASTALR
ERRAEESRR  BFER
Z R R RREESFEARZ
=B

B {8 L B

AEBERDERR S MEE SR 2w
EmERREZSER

AEBZ EMRER EBESFRSM
HELED  BEIHERZUERZ
RTETRIBE A BS 1R B {EE 5 B4R 2K
REMITREFBLE 2RI - AR
AEBZRBESHFEMIEDL

W=F——%+-A=+—F B&
IR TR EA (T8 5% (=
T2 5%)  MAARBEER

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (Continued)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as trading securities.

The Group's listed investments are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell trading securities
are based on daily monitoring of the performance of
individual securities compared to that of the Index and
other industry indicators, as well as the Group's liquidity
needs.

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that an increase/
(decrease) of 5% (2010: 5%) in the relevant stock market
index with all other variables held constant, would have

FEAEE - BIAREE 2 BRB A& ) 3 increased/decreased the Group's profit before tax as
T, R follows:
2011 2010
HERHBEF SRR A
&{%Em"iﬂ &1% =] /ﬁ:Mi"J
a7 2
Effect on Effect on
profit after profit after
tax and tax and
retained retained
profits profits
ARBT R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEERERMREE  Change in the relevant
ZEE - equity price risk
variable:
RSB H Trading securities
EF Increase 5% 85,065 5% 50,490
NS Decrease (5%) (85,065) (5%) (50,490)
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34. EMIEw 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(e)

(f)

IR fE b ()

BURE DT AT BRR S AN R BIRR T AT
MG ER B ZE - BERERT
BB EINBERERFOES
YEERARENFTEAKRERFEES
BERREHERSEERRERR
ETHMITA  TEXAKERSREZ
AR BEMRELERRRTIERK
HERREE ZFERBELRENE
B MAAEEMEEHRTTE - %
B TRE —E—FERERZE%E
HET e

BEERR  BHRESTALRERR
NERERE  RFLZERIT KRR
MREBEFENZER

DREE
(i) BAREEAKRZEHTA

TREJINBERRETEY
BRELNE7R [SRMITEA :
KEIMAEZ=ArrEE
BRAEAnBEZERIA
REE - SEMTAZAAE
BERHRBHZAAEENE
MEBBEEZKEERBAR
BOE REBRREWT

&) ERE
B HIS AR E B
TAZHRECKAR)
EZAREE

155 7R 73 B8 T 45 3t AR
EeMIAZHRE
XMEEEE AR
BEHERIEER
BEARMSBIEE
T EERMEE
ZnhEE

(&ER) - ERE
MEZHABEN
FRE AR5 H
TRHEAT 2 fh B B
AEZAREE

E=:

(e)

(f)

Equity price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group's profit before tax that would arise assuming
that the changes in the stock market index had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair values
of the Group's equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the relevant
stock market index or the relevant risk variables, and that
all other variables remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2010.

In management’'s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent equity price risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Fair value
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
end of reporting period across the three levels of the
fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure” with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorized in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:
Level 1: (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices
in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or

indirectly based on observable market data

Level 3: (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable

market data
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34. €T A 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)
 2AREEE) (f)  Fair value (continued)
(i) BAREBEAKRZZETA (i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value
(#&) (continued)
EM The Group

R-2-——#+=A=+-8
At 31 December 2011

E— ER E=R st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ARET T AR®T R AR®T AR®T R
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BE Assets
TTESRTE Derivative financial
instruments
— RHEASNE — forward exchange
B8 contracts — 92,641 - 92,641
R 5 MHE S Trading securities 2,001,530 — — 2,001,530
2,001,530 92,641 - 2,094,171
a8 Liabilities
PTESRIA Derivative financial
instruments
— RHIHMNE — forward exchange

=ry contracts - 32,671 - 32,671
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34. €T A 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)
 2AREEE) (f)  Fair value (continued)
(i) BAREBEAKRZZETA (i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value
(#&) (continued)
AEE(E) The Group (continued)

R-F—FF+_A=1—H
At 31 December 2010

F—H FE& F=M HR5T
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AREET T AR®ET T AREET T AREET T
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE Assets
PTEEmMT A Derivative financial
instruments
— RHASMNE — forward exchange
B contracts — 104,276 — 104,276
R MEH Trading securities 1,188,000 — — 1,188,000
1,188,000 104,276 — 1,292,276
RAE] The Company
R-—ZE——H+=-HA=+—H
At 31 December 2011
£ E-R E=H st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR¥T T AREFT T AREFT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BE Assets

R 5 Trading securities 2,001,530 - — 2,001,530
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34. ERmIAEw®w

(f)

(g)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

AREEE) (f)  Fair value (continued)
(i) BAREEARZLHITA (i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value
(%) (continued)
ARAT (&) The Company (continued)
R-F—FF+_A=1—H
At 31 December 2010
E—# FK E=MK HaET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AREET T AR®ET T AREET T ARETTT
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BE Assets
55 Trading securities 1,188,000 — — 1,188,000
BHE_Z——FR-_ZT—TF During the years ended 31 December 2011 and
+—A=t+—HLFER " F 2010, there were no significant transfers between
—REE RN T A 2 EI & instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.
EARE o
(i) WHFURAEBEARNESEHT (ii)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at
BZAREE other than fair value
7N £5 (] DA BK 72N o B SRR AR A BR The carrying amounts of the Group's and the
ZeMITAZEEREHE " Company'’s financial instruments carried at cost or
—— &+ -_A=+—HBKk=-F amortised cost are not materially different from their
—ZEF+-_A=+—HZAAR fair values as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.
BETEEREZR -
AREEME (g) Estimation of fair values
TR EESRITAE 2 ARE The following summarises the major methods and
BENEZERERRE - assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial
instruments.
(i) &E#F (i)  Securities

ARBEIREER Z W5 H
Bt E - M BHBREMNRS
PR o

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period without any deduction for
transaction costs.
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34. EMIEw 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (continued)

(9) 2AREEM(E) (g) Estimation of fair values (continued)

(i) PT£ETA (ii)  Derivatives
RHEINESEH AR BEDEA The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts
MEERE 2= EAER 5 is determined using forward exchange rates at the
HEBWREHEMET ° end of the reporting period with the resulting value

discounted back to present value.

(i) FTEEFRMEXR (iii) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
AABEERERARESREZR The fair value is estimated as the present value of
B AEUESmIARESZIR future cash flows, discounted at current market
BTSN EREREE - interest rates for similar financial instruments.

(iv) BIBER (iv) Financial guarantees

ERHZHBERNQIAEE
T2 Z B URBIZ A FRA
EITRHHREZ ERWE
EoHEFUAITRSERERZ
BRABR  AELELRNIE
HIERAOIE I T DR A P HCER
TR ) o 2R fief I AR AR B AR 1B
SUT R BT RER 2 i &t 1) 2R
ZEHNRZFETEHE -
FAR A ERHMEL A 5214
HZBERARR -

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated
by reference to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated
rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantee not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made.
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35. WEBHB LR, MEBAEZEE
SR

(a)

R-ZE—FHA  AEBENRE
%%&éAﬁﬁmmmmmnmﬁ
= Ug BE B B4 55.64 % I HE - AR
BEHREIAGIEEEEARZR =
T —ZFEIS EHEHE78% By £ H
%&oﬁ%l%%Am TR B AU
Eﬁtbﬁﬂ %J\EE L/{’F]TEAT%“BMQ
F£3) e E% %# = — T¢x$
SENRKEA ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬂ%%
il ﬁ@%%ﬂ%mAﬁﬁkﬁﬁm
(K 2 ERERABEER) R
HEEmMEL - BEEERQ jﬂxfﬁ‘tb
BB A ) 122 ) A B L ] B R EE AR
FaENAREENT !

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/
ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

In May 2011, the Group acquired 55.64% of the equity
interest of Kunming Generator by way of capital
contribution of RMB250,000,000 to Kunming Generator.
The Group’s ultimate parent company, HE, had previously
obtained a controlling equity interest of 78% in Kunming
Generator in 2010. The Group accounted for the acquisition
of Kunming Generator using the principles of merger
accounting in order to include the results of the combining
entities since the date of which first come under common
control (note 3). Kunming Generator come under control by
the Group's ultimate parent company, HE, in 2010 and was
acquired for the strategic consideration in respect of the
development of environmental-friendly products such as
hydropower electrical generation equipment and related
products. The fair values of identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed of Kunming Generator at date of
obtaining control by HE are as follows:

AREFIT
RMB'000
L E Property, plant and equipment 81,430
JEft AR S Prepaid lease payments 54,486
BB E B Deferred tax assets 6,892
75/\ HAN] o Interests in associates 150
FIHE R E Available-for-sale investments 17,696
ﬁﬁ Inventories 184,601
JE U AR X Trade receivables 151,208
EkEE Bills receivables 976
HipE K ~ & RIB 8 Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 45,624
Eiﬂ&#@fﬂf7¢?%k Pledged bank deposits 22,119
RITIE Bank deposits 160
HENIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 22,449
FERHBR X Trade payables (118,435)
Hib e et E R Other payables and accrued charges (21,227)
Bllize Deposits received (159,170)
(RN Borrowings (97,850)
R E Tax payables (15,518)
175,591
eI R Non-controlling interests (88,536)
JEE (BiaE) Capital contribution (note) (87,055)
B Consideration —
WHEEENFREMA Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:
Frus g R SR T SR IR & Bank balances and cash acquired 22,449
FRKEHBATNIRES RIBLEMEY  Net cash inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
FREBEEMA respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries 22,449

iz EAEERKRERBNAAEER
IARE B ERFHETZ AN ©

Note: Fair values of Kunming Generator at acquisition date are
accounted for as capital reserve of the Group.
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35. WEBHB LR, MEBAEZEE
IMRERR ()

(c)

RZE—ZFERENRNE QR AR
SE_T-TEMNEEFEROAR
¥ 370,770,000 7T ° £ AN F [ B i 7
B 4 A R 44,943,000 7T B9 6
BREEABHAOET - REBBBIK
BR-_T—ZTF— A A%k &k
BlresAE@mfgz—_T T+ =
A=+—H It FE /&5 K5 F AT
SRERRBERER -

RZZ—Fth  AEBEL&HE
F—EB AR  MEERSRERR
TRMEFRLERD AR F
D) TR —KREBAARE
50,000,000 T EAEE : M B F—
S I e lNE P el -
K — X &8 A AR 20,000,000
TLEVEAJEE WA O R R B A
3o EMRERABKNBERET
BRI - RAENTESIBAEER
P ORI mE — L IN6.67% °
FEEATER - NEEFHIIEH D
60% M iEm - HARXERNEE -
H b REEIR D AR 1,946,000 70K
FIRF - SEEREZR A INARY
21,946,000 7T °

R=ZZT—ZFF—F  AEEHRIAA
R 154,800,000t & A R ®
58,880,000 st KR (B it — X FEAK A1
BB AWERAERAE (TR A
AN REREEEBEREMTA A
([BHAR]]) K9 FEFEAR AR R UL T i8R
A R R BN RIHI8.37% K 2.26%
s o ZERAIIEFR B - 57
WE R R TR B AR RIS
% o RUSERT - NEE D RIHER R
N A K E R A H62.53% K
87.37% #Ezm o AL )T HmE A Al
RE#WARMER  FEERER D7
B AR # 203,136,000 7T M A R
78,426,000 7T °

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/
ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(c)

The subsidiaries acquired during the year 2010 contributed
approximately RMB370,770,000 to the Group's turnover
for 2010. Included in the profit for the year was a loss of
RMB44,943,000 incurred by the business of Kunming
Generator. Had the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2010, there would have no significant difference
on the impact on the Group’s turnover and profit for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

In July 2011, the Group had completed a capital
contribution of RMB50,000,000 to one of its subsidiaries,
MEXERHERARIEZARFTLERAA (“FHAELL)
and at the same time, the non-controlling interest of A3t
f [ also completed a capital contribution of
RMB20,000,000 thereon. #ff7E9 » established in the PRC
to engage in research and development of hydropower
generation equipment engineerisation technology. The
capital contribution resulted the Group an increase of
further 6.67% equity interest on fff 3¢ # /L), prior to the
capital contribution, the Group had 60% equity interest in
iff 3t " 0. Due to the capital contribution, the other
reserves had decreased by an amount of RMB1,946,000
while the non-controlling interest had increased an amount
of RMB21,946,000.

In January 2010, the Group completed the acquisition of a
further 8.37% and 2.26% equity interest in P& B8 )& )5 & 14
BABERAR ("W AF ") and BRESEBRERETA
7] (“E # A F]"), companies established in the PRC to
engage in manufacturing of steam turbines and
manufacturing of steam turbine generator sets and hydro
turbine generator sets in the PRC, respectively, for a
consideration of RMB154,800,000 and RMB58,880,000
from the non-controlling shareholders of /5## /A &) and &
# N 7], respectively. Prior to the acquisition, the Group
had 62.53% and 87.37% equity interest in /3% 2 &) and
B 12 7] respectively. Due to the acquisition of additional
interest in J5 ¥ # A &) and T A 7, the non-controlling
interests decreased by RMB203,136,000 and
RMB78,426,000, respectively.
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36. HEMB QA

REBE—Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE "
REBERELHEME QR EE =R
R ARAR (I =FEE]) ks BER EE T
AEREEAR(MELARE ] EE R
BBRA IR HIME - Bt - =M RER A
RATHAAEENHEAR  EXRAAE
SENFHEMRE - W —HIFRER
5 o

RZZE—ZFN\A AEBUBREAR
#& 156,750,000 7T HH & H A IS & 'S B =
BEXROHAERAE ([MEME]) & EHE
DA AN EEE35% Itk - MEMER
HIBRARHENP KT - RPBEEEY
XERRMFEHEXE REEEEAT
E a4 AR 160,349,000 7T ©

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group lost its
control over the operating and financial policies of its subsidiaries
namely, BB =FITERMHER A (" =FZE ") and MEERE
HEEOBREEAR("ELOZRAR"). As a result, =FZE and #
i @2 7] ceased to be subsidiaries and become available-for-sale
investments of the Group. This represents a non-cash
transaction.

In August 2010, the Group disposed of its entire 35% equity
interest in MBRBERSBHMEZEXERNHEMRAE ("RBEHE") and
its subsidiaries for a total consideration of RMB156,750,000.
15 2 i 7= and its subsidiaries were established in the PRC and
engaged in property development and property leasing in the
PRC. A gain on disposal of approximately RMB150,349,000 arose
from this disposal.
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the above

BEEWMT : companies disposed of as at the dates of disposal were as
follows:
2011 2010
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEWTEE Net assets disposed of
REEE R A 2 s Interests in associates — 158
BB Investment properties — 236,328
ME - HE KR Property, plant and equipment 21,990 4,254
TEf LA E K Prepaid lease payments 6,203 —
| EE Intangible assets 1,885 —
BEFIIEE = Deferred tax assets 391 =
FE Inventories 10,146 355,454
JEUBRFR Trade receivables 8,145 14,474
JEW =15 Bills receivable 4,049 —
H UGk « e RIBFRIE Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 50,756 22,202
Be KIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 16,913 102,294
e BR X Trade payables (2,993) (228,213)
HihpE L ETER Other payables and accrued charges (34,634) (184,863)
BR Borrowings (3,000) (227,099)
BUIES Deposits received (864) (65,665)
ERFiE Tax payables (92) (19,581)
78,895 9,743
HEWZSIE N FRE - The gain on disposal is calculated as follows:
BHE&KE Cash consideration — 156,750
REBEFHEMRENER Fair value of interest retained in available-for-
DR EE sale investments 45,100 —
REENBARBERLN Statutory capital reserve realised on disposal
B of subsidiaries 6,621 —
T &/ FEE Net assets disposed of (78,895) (9,743)
FEERR R Non-controlling interests 27,563 3,342
& Yas Gain on disposal 389 150,349
WE = - Satisfied by:
FHEMREZAAEE Available-for-sale investments, at fair value 45,100 —
BERHEE Cash received — 156,750
45,100 156,750
HEELMFIRS ORH),MA « Net cash (outflow)/inflow arising on disposal:
EUWRESRKE Cash consideration received - 156,750
FHENRITEBRRIES Bank balances and cash disposed of (16,913) (102,294)
FREEMBARNRE KA S Net cash (outflow)/inflow of cash and
LEWEFERS R, RA cash equivalents in respect of the disposal
of subsidiaries (16,913) 54,456
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37. EXEE 37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

MR EHIR AN E B & ARR R A AT & A% The Group and the Company had the following capital
= commitments at the end of reporting period:

5

FEM NG|
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
AR®T ARBFT ARM®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
(&5)
(restated)
ERLNBREE Contracted, but not provided for
WHEETHIER - In respect of the acquisition of:
— BB M e — plant and machinery 567,068 758,051 9,396 114,471
RT3 ARNEE In respect of capital
contribution to:
— B AR — subsidiaries - — 548,605 —

Rt+=—A=+—H At 31 December 567,068 758,051 558,001 114,471
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37. EXEE R

B B EEE SN -

AEERELFEGHE

TTRNRS

(i)

(ii)

MN-B—FEAA=1+NA AR
—XHMB AR LB E =L
& R EH AR 160,000,000
THEBAERERCER) ERA
R149% P&tk - BMAEREERCERS)
BRAREEZENFENERAEES
HERERWEEFRABRRER
BECER)BRAR - XS ERE
E_T——%+-_H=+—HItFE
RTERK °

RZE—ZFNA=_+/"B ' X27]
—RMIBARERIBILE = FE] M
2K FHEARRERAER
OI%) BRAR ° REZWZE - AR
A& /EE AR 186,000,0007T * &
B %M B 2 A1651% ik iE - A REK
BARCREBEE-—ZE——%F+= A
=t+—HBIEFERKIL °

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Group had entered into the
following transactions in last year:

(i)

(ii)

On 26 September 2010, a subsidiary of the Company had
entered into an agreement with an independent third party
to acquire 49% equity interest of GE Energy (Shenyang)
Co., Ltd. at a total consideration of approximately
RMB160,000,000. GE Energy (Shenyang) Co., Ltd is
principally engaged in the wind power business in the PRC.
After the acquisition, the company will change its name as
GE & HE Wind Power (Shenyang) Co., Ltd. Such
transaction was completed during the year ended 31
December 2011.

On 26 September 2010, a subsidiary of the Company had
entered into an agreement with an independent third party
to form a new subsidiary, namely Harbin Electric and
General Electric Wind Power (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. According
to the agreement, the Company needs to contribute
RMB186,000,000 representing 51% equity interest of the
new subsidiary. Such formation was completed during the
year ended 31 December 2011.
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38. FAREE

(a)

(b)

S B HPBHER

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

Financial guarantees issued

rEME
The Group
2011 2010

ARBT R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

INBE =TT P —RIRITRE
[AIERTT I TS MR e (AR AR

RIERR - RAREH—R2EM
BARERRITREMR —RIRITIE
A RIER o AA AR RE HRBE
BB ERIIFAEN RS B ERZN

BARARIORBOARE
1,260,000,000 TL(ZZE—Z4F : AR
#& 1,575,699,0007T) ° ANA Al EFE R
A ARARRRZERERENT
BEMETE  MZERNAABET
Ko

FERFRR

RZE—ZF  AEENHBARE

BREA-—EHER G FHEAF —
BEP([REANDEAEREELHA
R #8,800,0007T ° [RE AEM)IE
IR IR BRI R AR A RIEBL B 2R
R AE K AEA R 9,000,0007T
HIER1TIE R - H AR A K 4,000,000
THEENERERASHERED BID
A B #1452000T & A R &
326,000 T T L ERRIEF
i 1SARR

facilities granted to external parties -

(b)

Guarantee given to bank and financial
institution in respect of general banking

5,000

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company has
given corporate guarantees to a bank in respect of banking
facilities granted to a wholly owned subsidiary. The
maximum liability of the Company under the guarantees
issued represents the amount drawn down by the
subsidiary of approximately RMB1,260,000,000 (2010:
RMB1,575,699,000) at the end of the reporting period. The
directors of the Company consider that the fair value of the
guarantee was insignificant as it is not probable that a claim
will be made against the Company under the guarantee.

Pending litigation

In 2010, a litigation was brought against the Group’s
subsidiary namely, Kunming Generator, by one of its
customers (the “Plaintiff”) in relation to a dispute in sales
transaction for a compensation of a sum of approximately
RMB8.8 million. The Plaintiff was granted a freezing order
by Sichuan Provincial Liangshan Yi Autonomous Prefecture
Intermediate People’s Court over Kunming Generator’s
bank deposits of RMB9 million of which a sum of RMB4
million was subsequently released in return for a pledge of
Kunming Generator’s prepaid lease payment and buildings
with carrying values of approximately RMB1,452,000 and
RMB326,000 respectively.
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39.

(b)
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fFReRER () (b)

RZZT——FMA  BHEEEEE
HEE 4 A R ¥ 15,712,000 7T & # 23
B (ER DMERITER AN T
HERREFTERROIRIEMG - B
BASFAAMDEEITR - MARAIEER
RELF S EAMEHBNSRE &
ARSI AR R AR FAGTHIR A ©

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Pending litigation (continued)

In April 2011, Kunming Generator pledged its machinery
with carrying amount of approximately RMB15,712,000 in
exchange for a release of the abovementioned bank
deposits, prepaid lease payment and buildings. The
litigation is still in progress and the directors of the
Company consider that the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliability, no provision was
made for this pending litigation.

The Group did not have any other significant contingent liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period.

EXBABAIRS 39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

AEBORIL T ERBEB TR S

(a)

The Group has entered into the following material related party

transactions:

BEZRH (a) Financing arrangement
[ RS
FE B 75 TR0 1 BAME 75 X8 () BA
Amounts due from Amounts due to Related interest
related parties related parties (expenses)/income
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
ARBT T ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARBT T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Z51)
(restated)
REEBARIFE Advance from holding
(PZE39(a)i)) company (note 39(a)(i) - — 1,169,838 1,042,918 (17,690) (37,626)
RRAZMBARFG  Cashand cash equivalent
ReRBR2EEN deposit with a fellow
(Ffi=E 39(al(ii) subsidiary (note 39(a(ii) 730,843 759,381 - — 27,749 543
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39. ERBEHLERS ®

(a)

(b)

BMERH(E)
(o
() REBRXRFALEHREBETAR

KB Z2ER DRlAARE
179,160,000 L(=F—FF : A
R %73,400,0007T ) & A B #&
990,678,000 L (=T —Z4F : A
R #969,5618,0007T ) © B B
A & BB23%( =T — T F:
4.78%) o BL/RFRIEE EE R -
RBEHRENAERN TS
EXRBEIRIEA ©

iy BESERBER—RRFRHB
AR BBEEEETNEFFE
BEREEECEMRERBBEME
SEB) M AL FERITBA IS LS )
ZHERBESEEY - ZERS
MAEREBNFERZHERBER
5 BREVBREFBHINRARD
AIEA-—ZT—ZTF+_A+N

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Financing arrangement (continued)

Notes:

(i) The balance of the advance from holding company
comprises of non-interest bearing and interest bearing
loans amounting to RMB179,160,000 (2010:
RMB73,400,000) and RMB990,678,000 (2010:
RMB969,518,000) respectively with effective interest
rate of 5.23% (2010: 4.78%) per annum and have no
fixed repayment term. The amount will not be
demanded for repayment in the next five years from the
end of the reporting period.

(ii) The amount represents cash and cash equivalents
deposit with a fellow subsidiary which is a non-bank
financial institution within the HE Group to facilitate
handling of the corporate funding and related finance
activities of the HE Group. These transactions were also
continuing connected transactions of the Group during
the year and the details of the financial services have
been set out in the announcement of the Company

B2z e dated 14 December 2010.
BEEXRS (b) Trading transactions
AFEEEERH S Amount of trading transactions during the year
2011 2010
ARET T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
SHEEMm Sales of goods
— RRWB AT — Fellow subsidiaries 24,192 36,278
PR EE Purchases of goods
— RRKBAR] — Fellow subsidiaries 181,789 202,964
BR 75 & WA Service fee income
— RREWBAF] — Fellow subsidiaries 8,021 7,823
AR %% & > Service fee expenses
— RRKMEBAA] — Fellow subsidiaries 57,138 54,126

ZERGINBAEBERFRNZFHER
ER S BARSFHBIERAARAR
AT ZTFF+_A-+-HZA
,ﬁﬁo

These transactions were also continuing connected
transactions of the Group during the year and the details of
the transactions have been set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 22 December 2010.




39. ERBEBH LIRS ®

(b)
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BEXRS (B)
THEERFGELZ EHRNFRFER

39.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Trading transactions (continued)

The following balances arising from trading transactions

)= were outstanding at the end of the year:
PEUs FRIE EAFRE
Amounts due from Amounts due to
—E——F —E-TF —E——F —T-TF
2011 2010 2011 2010
AR¥TR ARBFT AR¥TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RYERE A RIFIA Advance from holding
(M‘TE39(b) i) company (note 39(b)(i)) - — 2,785 20,478
eI R ZHEBARZIE Amounts due from fellow
(B EE39(b) (i) subsidiaries (note 39(b)(i) 59,929 112,920 - —
FEf R R B ARFIE Amounts due to fellow
(P 5E39(b)ii)) subsidiaries (note 39(b)(ii)) - = 36,266 24,418

MeE
(i) £33

SN

—’X REERR - RERAR
“i R R BEFZ A
HEF BRI RE 29 1R EE -

(i) ZEFEHELKF  RERER
BREE -

(i) The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. Details of terms and conditions of
the loan from holding company are disclosed in note 29.

(ii) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
are repayable on demand.
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39. ERBEHLERS ®

(c)

(d)

TEEEASHH

TREBABZEHM(BENESH
BEAARREEXNZHB)MNT

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

Key management personnel compensation

Compensation for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company's directors as disclosed in
note 8, is as follows:

2011 2010
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000

TEHEEMEHE TEF Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 1,919 1,606
RIRAEA Post-employment benefits 90 80
2,009 1,686

FfEEEsT A TB TRA] (2R
6(b)) °

HEMTABRELXE RS #EF

REE B S ENKBEREER LM
Bl BT A RES R ([E
BEEDXE - 1o NEEXE R
P R B A 4 1 O R EE SR L O — B
7 o FRER BRE AR 3 FER
RIRMEARETRZIN - AEE TR
HHEMBEALERAEBER BEER
RZEEALEEERNEEETEY
RHEHLBBIE=T °

AEEREEMEBLEENIHHE
HEEEBEXRBREWBERS  WEERH
HOTRERBEELE -

(d)

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
6(b)).

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by the PRC government (“state-controlled
entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under HE, which is controlled by the
PRC government. Apart from the transactions with HE and
fellow subsidiaries disclosed above, the Group also
conducts business with other state-controlled entities. The
directors consider those state-controlled entities are
independent third parties so far as the Group’s business
transactions with them are concerned.

In establishing its pricing strategies and approval process
for transactions with other state-controlled entities, the
Group does not differentiate whether the counter-party is a
state-controlled entity or not.
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39. ERBEBH LIRS ®

(d)

(e)

HEAMTHEEELCEZRS #F

(%)

AEEDEBEERXIVEZEARS
BREERRE  YEEERESE
ﬁ% o

AN - REEAER A B EBHEET
HERTMSRMEBER TREKE
o BREFR  ERMEM—ARRTT
BE - ENZRFROIXZONE &
ERREFTETORRKE -

RBEHXR - BEARARANER
AHEE AR TEMBEAREAESEAAR
#548,605,0007C( = ZF—ZF : &) o

39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC (continued)

The Group has entered into various transactions, including
sales and purchases, and maintained trade balances with
state-controlled entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including deposits placements, borrowings and other
general banking facilities, with certain banks and financial
institutions which are state-controlled entities in its ordinary
course of business. In view of the nature of those banking
transactions, the directors are of the opinion that separate
disclosure would not be meaningful.

The capital commitment at the end of reporting period in
respect of capital contribution from the Company to
subsidiaries for an amount of RMB548,605,000 (2010: Nil).
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40. HEMRREHARSH

41.

@@ MZTZE—Z—F=A AEEFV—E
EEH#H URKEARE
388,000,000 TREEBHEING T L
MERES o

b) ARFERERREPREEZIRKE
REIE - #FBEE R 330 A

ﬁo

CEA-EarhpsEl |

AR REER S MWk 2 fhat RAE - 75
ENEELRIEMAR (BRERARE
BRBRATHEAELR ZEMF) MED
AEEERARBARRZ AT RERE - Rt
R ENEHATESBEHZER
RBRER - L EHEERARZEEE
ERERFEZAEARBRDIEESRE
EXEENHRE -

40. NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE

41.

REPORTING PERIOD

(@ In March 2012, the Group entered into a placing agreement
to subscribe certain equity securities listed outside Hong
Kong for a consideration of RMB388,000,000.

(b)  After the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company proposed a final dividend. Further details are
disclosed in note 33(b).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that may have a significant effect on the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities mainly include those
related to manufacturing activities of main power equipments.
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(a)
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41. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to Enterprise Income Tax in the PRC.
Judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the
related taxation. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
periods in which such determination is made. As at 31
December 2011, the carrying amount of Enterprise Income
Tax payable was approximately RMB635,239,000 (2010
(restated): RMB406,831,000).

Deferred taxation relating to certain temporary deductible
differences is recognised as management considers it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary deductible differences or tax losses
can be utilized. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred taxation in the periods in which
such estimate is changed. The carrying value of deferred
tax assets at 31 December 2011 was approximately
RMB277,366,000 (2010 (restated): RMB205,071,000).
The amount of unrecognised unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences at 31 December 2011
was approximately RMB1,418,101,000 (2010:
RMB1,579,096,000).
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41. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the net realisable values and aging
of inventories and makes allowance for obsolete and slow
moving inventory items identified with reference to existing
market environment, the sales performance in previous
years and estimated net realisable value, i.e. the estimated
selling price, less estimated cost of completion and the
estimated cost necessary to make the sale. A specific
allowance for inventories is made if the estimated net
realisable value of the inventories is lower than its carrying
value. The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December
2011 was approximately RMB11,616,296,000 (2010
(restated): RMB12,824,895,000).

Construction contracts

As explained in policy notes 2(o) and 2(w)(ii), revenue and
profit recognition on an uncompleted project is dependent
on estimating the total outcome of the construction
contract, as well as the work done to date. Based on the
Group’'s recent experience and the nature of the
construction activity undertaken by the Group, the Group
makes estimates of the point at which it considers the
work is sufficiently advanced such that the costs to
complete and revenue can be reliably estimated. As a
result, until this point is reached the amounts due from/(to)
customers for contract work as disclosed in note 22 will
not include profit which the Group may eventually realise
from the work done to date. In addition, actual outcomes in
terms of total cost or revenue may be higher or lower than
estimated at the end of the reporting period, which would
affect the revenue and profit recognised in future years as
an adjustment to the amounts recorded to date.
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41. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
may not be recoverable, the asset may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy for impairment of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
as described in note 2(m)(ii). The carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. These assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and
the value in use. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement relating
to the level of selling price and the amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
selling price and the amount of operating costs. Changes in
these estimates could have a significant impact on the
carrying amount of the assets and could result in additional
impairment charge or reversal of impairment in future
periods. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
were approximately RMB5,799,944,000 (2010 (restated):
RMB4,890,113,000) and RMB444,922,000 (2010 (restated):
RMB432,708,000) respectively.
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41. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e)

()

(g)

Impairment for trade and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for trade and other
receivables resulting from the inability of the debtors to
make the required payments. The Group bases the
estimates on the ageing of the trade and other receivables
balance, debtors’ credit-worthiness, and historical write-off
experience. If the financial conditions of the debtors were
to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than
estimated. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and other receivables were
approximately RMB12,918,135,000 (2010 (restated):
RMB11,270,063,000) and RMB580,642,000 (2010
(restated): RMB430,478,000) respectively.

Derivative financial instruments

In determining the fair value of the derivative financial
instruments, considerable judgement is required to
interpret market data used in the valuation techniques. The
use of different market assumptions and/or estimation
methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated
fair value amounts. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying
amounts of derivative financial assets and derivative
financial liabilities were approximately RMB92,641,000
(2010: RMB104,276,000) and RMB32,671,000 (2010:
RMBNIl) respectively.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis by taking into account the residual value.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives periodically
to determine the related depreciation charges for its items
of property, plant and equipment. The estimation is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
items of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions with consideration of expected technology
renovation. Depreciation charges may be adjusted if there
are significant changes in prior assumptions and
estimation.
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41. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(h)

(i)

Provisions

The Group makes provisions for product warranty and
onerous contracts. Management estimates the provision
based on contract terms, available knowledge and past
experience. The Group recognises provisions to the extent
that it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event; it is more likely than not that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and that the amount can
be reliably estimated. As at 31 December 2011, the
carrying amount of provisions was approximately
RMB1,463,359,000 (2010: RMB783,397,000).

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that an
entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity as held to maturity. This classification requires
significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments
to maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to
maturity, it will be required to reclassify the whole class as
available-for-sale. The investments would therefore be
measured at fair value not amortised cost. The carrying
amount of held-to-maturity investments at 31 December
2011 was approximately RMB236,085,000 (2010: RMBNIil).

42. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to

current year's presentation.
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43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2011.

The Group has not early applied any of the following

amendments, new standards and interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets’

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements?

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities?

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income®

Deferred Tax — Recovery of
Underlying Assets*

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits?

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements?

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®
Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

HK (IFRIC)-Int 20
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43. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2011 (continued)

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group's results of
operations and financial position.
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

The following list contains only the particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries at 31 December 2011 which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the Group. All of these subsidiaries are incorporated and
operating in the PRC.

ERRFKE
MR AFE A EAREELL G
Particulars Percentage of nominal

ME AR &R of registered  value of registered capital FTEEH
Name of subsidiary share capital held by the Company Principal activities
AR®T T HiE B
RMB’000 Directly Indirectly
% %
BRERERARETEAR 746,853 90.94 — Manufacture of boilers
HEELE
R EEREERETAR 709,237 89.63 — Manufacture of steam turbines
generator sets and hydro turbine
generator sets
EERDAREDEENAREDES
BEEERBEBRIRARETAR 300,000 100 — Provision of engineering services
(formerly known as for power stations
"RRABHIREEREER RERM T2 RS
(HIJ%WAﬁﬁ/ﬁ iﬁI&ﬁﬁEﬂE
RA)*
BREDNERE KRG 27,000 55.55 4445  Trading
BRAR ** B2
BRE REEERAREAR 859,723 70.90 — Manufacture of steam turbines
EEB TR
KEEEMBBEWHHMAAERAT * 80,000 100 — Manufacture of valves
HEERM
MEXREXRERAR IRFEDPL 120,000 66.67 — Research and development of power
BRAR* equipment engineerisation technology
kAR EERETERN
UAE)jlzﬂ}O'ﬁé% ﬁl%ﬂim 10,000 — 100 Research and development of

mERLERA

hydropower generation equipment
engineerisation technology

MR RFRERNEERERM
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44. KQATEXTERMB A AIFEE @) 44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
EATEE
MRS &R E LA
Particulars Percentage of nominal
MEAREE of registered  value of registered capital FEEH
Name of subsidiary share capital held by the Company Principal activities
AR%T HE 3
RMB’000 Directly Indirectly
% %
BREREFERREREFED 70,000 — 96.86 Manufacture of engineering equipment
HETRR
W EE R TR AR AR * 60,000 — 100 Provision of engineering service
to turbines
ARt TIERE
KRB SRR T AREE AR 3,000 — 100 Development and manufacture of
thermal technology product, power
plant equipment and parts
REREERTEER - BRREREMS
IREEERNHIERBERE 30,000 100 — Provision of engineering service
BREEAR* RHTIRIRT
MBS (EBR)BREFAR* 87,550 — 55.64 Manufacture of small-scale hydro
power equipment
EENKNEER
MERBERINEEERAR 87,207 100 — Manufacture of medium-to-heavy -duty
(formerly known as AC/DC motors and nuclear power
"IERAE R E T B main pump motors
BREMATE")* EEAPAREREHRRZEEREHE
(RITE [MREREERBRERER
BREFAR])*
KELEE (%E%)i*”ﬁﬁ 2,050,000 34.15 65.85 Manufacture and assembly of large-scale
BRAF] thermal power, nuclear power and
gas turbine
EEMERATANE « ZE R R
* BREERA @ Limited liability company
> RHOBRAHE **  Joint stock limited company
N6 [ N A ] Y B 1 R B AT (I (B 75 3% None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during

% o the year.
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Disclosure of Significant Events

1. General Meeting

(1)

(2)

The 2010 Annual General Meeting of the Company was
held in the conference room at 17th Floor, Block B, No.39
Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District, Harbin, Heilongjiang
Province, the People’s Republic of China on 13 May 2011.
All the proposed resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting dated 18 March 2011 were duly passed
at the meeting.

The 2011 Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company
was held in the conference room at 17th Floor, Block B,
No.39 Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District, Harbin,
Heilongjiang Province, the People’s Republic of China on 6
July 2011. The resolution in connection with the Financial
Service Framework Agreement dated 13 April 2011 was

not passed at the meeting.

2. The Board

(1)

On 18 March 2011, the sixth session Board of the
Company convened its eighth meeting to consider and
approve capital increase of Engineering Company, AC/DC
Company and Valve Company, construction works of fuel
gas compressor units of Turbine Corporation,
establishment of a branch in India by Engineering Company
and provision of financial services as connected
transactions to the Company by HE Finance Company
Limited.

On 18 May 2011, the sixth session Board of the Company
by way of a written resolution approved to subscribe for
100,000,000 shares of Datang International at the minimum
subscription price under a private placing.

On 6 August 2011, the sixth session Board of the
Company convened its ninth meeting to consider and
approve the development of a self-owned land located at
Liushun Street (7~ & #7) by Harbin Power Technology &
Trade Inc.
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(4)

(5)

On 16 December 2011, the sixth session Board of the
Company convened its eleventh meeting to approve the
resignation of Mr. Ma Sui and appointment of Mr. Liu Zhi-
quan as company secretary with effect from 16 December
2011; and the resignation of Ms. Lee Wai-fun Betty and
appointment of Mr. Tung Tat-chiu, Michael as joint
company secretary in Hong Kong with effect from 1
January 2012.

On 16 December 2011, the sixth session Board of the
Company convened its eleventh meeting to consider and
approve the sponsorship of the construction works of pilot
cultural tourism region in Tibet and donation to “Alumni of
Tsinghua — Harbin Electric scholarship (BZEZ K — BE
SERSEES)".

3. Significant Events and Material Contracts

(1)

On 1 July 2011, the name of the Company has been
formally changed from “ FaEREE) D& ERMBR AR " in
Chinese and “HARBIN POWER EQUIPMENT COMPANY
LIMITED"” (“HPEC") in English to “"MEREBERBZMDERA
A" in Chinese and "HARBIN ELECTRIC COMPANY
LIMITED" in English, respectively.

In 2011, the Company and five of its subsidiaries, namely
Harbin Electrical Machinery Company Limited, Harbin
Boiler Company Limited, Harbin Turbine Company Limited,
Harbin Electric Power Equipment Company Limited and HE
Harbin Power Plant Valve Company Limited were re-
recognised as High and New Technology Enterprises,
which entitles the Company to a 15% preferential income
tax rate.
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Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)
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(4)

(10)

On 3 March 2011, the Company and Jiangsu Guoxin Group
signed a supply contract for 6x250MW pumped-storage
water turbines for Liyang, Jiangsu.

On 28 May 2011, the Company and Hangzhou Huadian
Banshan Power Generation Co., Ltd. signed a supply
contract for three units of 9F-class combined-cycle
cogeneration power units for Banshan, Hangzhou.

On 12 June 2011, the Company and Chiping Xinfa
Materials Supplies Service Co., Ltd. signed a contract for
4x1,700MW ultra supercritical boiler units for Nongluishi,
Xinjiang.

On 15 June 2011, the Company and China Hydropower
Group International Engineering Co., Ltd. signed a supply
contract for CCS 8x188.27MW water turbine power
generating units for Ecuador.

On 27 July 2011, the Company and China National Electric
Engineering Co., Ltd. signed a turn-key contract for three
units of 600MW sub-critical desulfation units for Hongsa,
Laos.

On 25 August 2011, the Company and Shandong No.3
Electric and Construction Company signed a supply
contract for desalination equipment for a power plant
located at Cuddalore, India.

On 31 August 2011, the Company and Datang Jiangshan
Power Generation Co., Ltd. signed a supply contract for
6FA cogeneration power units for Jiangshan, Zhejiang.

On 14 October 2011, the Company and CPI Henggin
Power Generation Co., Ltd. signed a supply contract for
two units of 9F-class combined-cycle cogeneration power
units for Hengqin, Zhuhai.
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Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)
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(11)  On 10 November 2011, the Company and Yangtze Power
signed a purchase contract for upgrade of thirteen water
turbines for a power station located at Gezhouba.

(12) On 19 December 2011, the Company and Datang
International signed a supply contract for a desalination unit
with a capacity of 20,000 cubic meters per day for a power
plant located at WWushashan, Zhejiang.

(13) On 27 December 2011, the Company and Pucheng Clean
Energy Chemical Co., Ltd signed a supply contract for four
gasifiers.

Save for disclosed above, the Company does not have any other
discloseable matters which are not disclosed.
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REGISTERED NAME OF THE COMPANY
REEERBGERAT

ENGLISH NAME OF THE COMPANY

Harbin Electric Company Limited

REGISTERED ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block 3

Nangang District High Technology Production Base
Harbin

Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Registration No. 2301001003796

OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road
Xiangfang District

Harbin

Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China
Postcode: 150040

Tel: 86-451-82135717 or 82135727
Fax: 86-451-82135700

Website: www.chpec.com

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1601, 16th Floor
LHT Tower
31 Queen's Road Central

Hong Kong

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Gong Jing-kun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wu Wei-zhang
Mr. Liu Zhi-quan
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Liu Zhi-quan
Mr. Tung Tat Chiu, Michael

AUDITORS

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

34/F The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Crowe Horwath China CPAs

4/F, Tower 2, No. 16 XiSihuanZhonglLu
Haidian District

Beijing

People’s Republic of China

100039

LEGAL ADVISORS

as to PRC Law

HAIWEN & PARTNERS

Room 1016, Beijing Silver Tower
No. 2, Dongsanhuan North Road
Chaoyang District

Beijing

People’s Republic of China

as to Hong Kong Law

Reed Smith Richards Butler
20th Floor, Alexandra House
18 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

H Shares
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 1133
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22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA

REEBR

P.O. Box 11258
Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286-1258
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DEPOSITARY

The Bank of New York
American Depositary Receipts
22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA

INVESTOR RELATIONS

P.O. Box 11258
Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286-1258

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

Available at the Secretariat of the Board of Directors of
Harbin Electric Company Limited

Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road

Xiangfang District

Harbin

PRC

SHAREHOLDERS RECEPTION TIME

On 8th, 18th, and 28th (the following day in case a holiday)
From 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. and

From 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.

Tel: 86-451-82135717 or 82135727

Fax: 86-451-82135700
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Documents Available for Inspection

1. AR ZZT——FEREEAR- 1. The original copy of the 2011 Annual Report of the Company.

2. ANPREEZZMIERMERIER ° 2. The original copy of the Company's audited financial statements.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
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1. BRUHERREHZE2011MF128318 1k
FEMETEREE

2. BHIUHEAFTEHZE2011F12/31H 1k
FEMEEEREE

3. BHRIHMELT2011E1H1BE20114F
12 A 31 B HE R EIXIR B FIAZERE R

4. BEHREQAR 201N FFEREEBRARE
0.14 T (SHEERE) ;

6. ZRERBRAELERARRES-

BRIEE

6. BEAREFZABRZMETMALEMHE
EZeRRERICLERES  HEHEXR
RE T —RBERASTAERE B

7. REAREZSREREEUETEMNS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Harbin
Electric Company Limited (the “Company”) for the year of 2011 will be
held at Conference Room, 17th Floor, Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road,
Xiangfang District, Harbin, Heilongjiang Province, the People’'s Republic
of China on Thursday, 17 May 2012 at 9:00 a.m. for the following
purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and approve the Report of the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2011;

2. To consider and approve the Report of the Supervisory
Committee for the year ended 31 December 2011;

3. To consider and approve the audited accounts and the auditor’'s
report for the period from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011;

4. To declare the 2011 final dividend of RMBO0.14 per share
(appropriate tax included);

5), To appoint Mr. Bai Shao-tong as a supervisor of the Company.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

6. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to appoint
any person to fill in a casual vacancy in the Board of Directors or
as an additional director, his term of office shall expire at the
conclusion of the next general meeting of the Company;

7. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to appoint

auditors and fix their remuneration;
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

8. BEARREFSHEETHEMEZE EZH
AR T CEFERA/BEERE  —K
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8. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company, in

compliance with applicable laws and regulations and at times
they deem appropriate, to place new H shares or new A shares
with an aggregate nominal amount of not exceeding twenty
percent (20%) of the aggregate nominal amount of the
Company's issued shares as at the day of passing this resolution.
The authorization will be valid for a period of 12 months
commencing from the day of passing this resolution or remain
valid until its revocation or alteration by a special resolution at a
general meeting of the Company. In the event of the above
resolution to place new shares being approved and implemented,
to authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to make
necessary revision to clause 15 and clause 16 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, so as to reflect the alterations of
the Company's share capital structure and registered capital

resulting from the new shares placement.
By Order of the Board
Liu Zhi-quan
Company Secretary

Harbin, PRC, 18 March 2012

Registered Office of the Company:

Block 3, Nangang High Technology Production Base
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province
People’s Republic of China

Office Address of the Company:

Block B, No 39 Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)
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Notes:

For the purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from 17 April 2012 to 16 May 2012
(both dates inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. Shareholders whose names appear on the register
before book closure shall be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting. Persons buying shares of the Company during the
period of book closure shall not be entitled to attend the Annual
General Meeting. In order to qualify for attending the Annual General
Meeting, all transfers of shares accompanied with the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's Registrar in Hong
Kong, namely, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 16 April 2012.

Shareholders intending to attend the Annual General Meeting shall
give written reply to the Company at its office address by 5:00 p.m.
on 26 April 2012.

A Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more persons (whether or not a
shareholder of the Company) as his proxy to attend and vote on his
behalf.

To be valid, the form of proxy, together with a notarially certified
power of attorney or other document of authority, if any, under which
the form is signed, must be deposited at the office address of the
Company not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for
holding the Annual General Meeting.

Brief particulars of Mr. Bai Shao-tong:

Mr. Bai Shao-tong, born in February, 1963, is a graduate of Northeast
China Institute of Electric Power holding a bachelor’s degree in
engineering. He is a senior engineer and a member of the China
Communist Party. He was the deputy head and head of the power
station department of the Electric Machinery Bureau under the
Ministry of Electric Power Industry, manager of the power station
equipment department of FEIZEE B UL E TR (L E)E Q7] (China
Huadian Power Station Equipment Engineering Group Corporation),
deputy general manager and general manager of AR [B%E & & b E 5
T #2( &% ) # /2 7](China Huadian Power Station Equipment
Engineering Group Corporation), and general manager of Jiangsu
branch of China Huadian Corporation. Mr. Bai has been a standing
committee member appointed by the China Communist Party and a
secretary of the disciplinary committee of Harbin Electric Corporation
since December 2011.
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